¥
Sy PYLE S R

PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES 2003 ANNUAL REPORT

]
LT

04025890

PROCESSED

7 4PR 14
iRy

00D
;OMPANY

1aae [ »

L gl
0

lig : ®¢ :. B Tl L




" TABLE OF G

2003 ANNUAL RE

LETTER TO

A RECORD YEAR

. 2003 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

» REPORTED RECORD NET INCOME OF $411 MILLICN,
OR $3.46 PER DILUTED SHARE.

» REPORTED RECORD CASH FLOW FRCM OPERATIONS
OF $764 MILLICN.

» REDUCED DEBT $113 MILLION.

% POSTED 26% RETURN ON EQUITY AND 15% RETURN
CN CAPITAL EMPLOYED.

 INCREASED PRODUCTION 36%.

» REPLACED 193% OF PRODUCTION WITH AVERAGE FINDING
AND DEVELOPMENT CCST OF $6.64 PER BOE.

% DRILLED 383 WELLS WITH 84% SUCCESS.

% DRILLED NEW DISCOVERIES IN THE GULF OF MEXICG,
ALASKA, ARGENTINA AND TUNISIA.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS DEFINITIONS

Except for historical information contained BOE:  Barrel oil equivalent

herein, the statements in this document are MBOE: Thousand barrels oil equivalent
forward-looking statements that are made MCFE: Thousand cubic feet gas equivalent
pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of TCFE: Trillion cubic feet gas equivalent
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995. Forward-looking statements and the

business prospects of Pioneer Natural

Resources Company are subject to a number

of risks and uncertainties that may cause

Pioneer’s actual results in future pertods to

differ materially from the forward-looking

statements. These risks and uncertainties
are described on pages 4 and 8 through 12 of
Pioneer’s Form 10-K included with this report.




RARELY, THE RiGHT ELEMENTS COME TOGETHER
TO CREATE A UNIQUE ENVIRONMENT, PROVIDING
EXCEPTIONAL STRENGTH.....
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TO QUR SHAREHOLDERS

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

In 2003, we reported record earnings and cash flow, increased
our oil and gas production 36%, posted strong drill bit results
and reduced debt. Over the last three years, we have added
significant net asset value; and our stock price performance,
reserve replacement and finding cost results were in the top
quartile of our peer group. We are at one of the strongest
points in our history.

In the midst of declining production in the U.S. oil and
gas industry, we grew our U.S. production 44%. At a time
when other oil and gas exploration and production companies
are turning to acquisitions as the primary means of offsetting
declines in their base production, we are growing organically,
through drill bit success.

Look beyond the numbers, and you will see that our
strength is founded on the stability of our legacy assets,
supported by a solid financial position, distinguished by our
exploration track record and quality opportunities and driven
by the talented, committed people of Pioneer. I've asked a
few of our people to share their views with you, and through
the remainder of this report, you'll read firsthand what
being a part of Pioneer is all about.

ON A FIRM FOUNDATION

A solid foundation is key to the long-term success of any
company. Long-lived production from our onshore assets and
high-volume production from new offshore fields form a great
base. Danny Kellum, our executive vice president of domes-
tic operations, shares with you his views on our U.S. pro-
ducing assets, and Glimar Vaca Coca, president of our
Argentina subsidiary, will discuss our assets and opportuni-
ties there. We've also included information on our properties
in Canada, South Africa and Tunisia.

Danny and his team have done an excellent job of
maintaining production from our onshore base by reinvesting
only a portion of the cash flow and diligently controlling
costs. They have a multiyear inventory of onshore drilling
locations to support continued activity. In the deepwater Gulf
of Mexico, we had three fields producing at year end, added
another field in January and plan to have three more fields
producing by mid-year. With three other offshore fields in
the commercialization phase and an active exploration pro-
gram, we expect that Danny and his team will be busy for
quite a while.

In Argentina, Gliimar and his team have successfully
navigated the challenges of an unstable economic and
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political environment, and with the environment now
stabilizing, they are back on track with production growth
in 2003 and expectations for a record year in 2004. Our oil
drilling program has benefited from lower drilling and
operating costs offering excellent returns, and we're
encouraged by stronger gas demand and the outlook for
improving Argentine gas prices.

WITH FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Through 2002, the majority of our cash flow was committed
to the development of our successful exploration projects.
These projects are now becoming cash generators, at a time
of strong oil and gas prices, and delivering exceptional
returns. We are committed to applying part of the returns
to further strengthen the balance sheet and have made
significant progress in this regard, as evidenced by our
recent upgrade to Investment Grade status. By the end of
2004, we expect to have reduced our ratio of debt to book
capital to within our targeted range. Tim Dove, our chief
financial officer, reviews our financial results. He discusses
the priority we place on maintaining the financial flexibility
to develop future successes while funding our typical capital
budget and our other options for using cash flow to benefit
our shareholders.

AND QUALITY CPPORTUNITIES

A great base and sufficient capital are crucial and can generate
moderate near-term growth, but quality opportunities are
what drive exceptional long-term results. Our opportunity
pipeline is filled with projects in various phases of
commercialization beginning with recent discoveries being
evaluated for development and progressing to fields in
the last months of development before production.

Our prospects range from lower-risk satellite or offset
opportunities near existing facilities to rank exploration
ideas in proven basins.

Bill Hannes, vice president of engineering and
development, outlines the discoveries that are currently
in final development and commercialization phases.

With responsibility for projects from discovery to first
production, his team is critical to our success. The Falcon
field was our first operated deepwater development, and

it and a satellite discovery we also operate were brought to
first production ahead of schedule, setting new records for
deepwater development.

Our exploration team is led by Chris Cheatwood, executive




vice president of worldwide exploration. With a track record of success
in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, South Africa, Gabon, North Africa
and most recently in Alaska, the exploration team’s contribution to
Pioneer’s current strength is evident. Chris discusses the drivers
behind Pioneer’s successful program and the opportunities Pioneer
will be testing in the years to come.

While the primary growth driver for Pioneer has been exploration,
we've completed over half of a billion dollars in acquisitions since
2000. These acquisitions have supplemented our ownership in key
areas and projects, assets we know best, adding significant value.
Over the next five years, we will build on this program and are
expanding our acquisition team. Ray Alameddine, executive vice
president of worldwide business development, reviews our strategy
and our progress on advancing acquisitions to achieve a more
balanced approach to growth.

ABOUT EVMPOWERED PEOPLE

The strength I'm most proud of is less evident and more difficult to
quantify but is at the heart of our success. It’s our culture. I am
confident in our ability to extend Pioneer’s success, and my confidence
is based in large part on our unique culture and the enthusiasm,
commitment and talent of our people. We continually challenge
ourselves to be innovative, to accept individual responéibility for the
common good and empower people to make a difference. We believe
in being authentic, direct and open. We take the health and safety
of our employees and the environment seriously. We like to win, but
only if we can do it with integrity. When we achieve individual and
Company performance goals, all employees participate in our
restricted stock program, aligning their interests with those of our
shareholders. Our culture is best understood through the words and
faces of our people, and on the pages that follow, you'll hear from
many of them directly.

IN GOOD COMPANY
This year marks my 25th year with this Company, and while we
believe our strengths are unique, we're not content. We'll work hard
to add to our base asset foundation, further solidify our financial
flexibility, add new quality opportunities to the pipeline and advance
our successful culture.

We’re never fully satisfied with our accomplishments as each day SCOTT D, SHEFFIELD
brings new challenges and opportunities. We're up for the task. Chatrman, President and CED

Jese p Sl
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“Qur management has done a remarkable job of
moving the workforce from the simple team concept
to one of pride in the fact that we're a member

of this progressive Pioneer family.”

Brett Benardino, Director, Purchasing
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“The people at Pioneer allow you to think

independently but offer a vast experience base,

fostering personal growth. Pioneer’s

accessible and supportive culture has quickly
helped me transition from a college graduate to
a confributing member of the Pioneer team.”

Erin McCuistion, Reservoir Engineer
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Nabil Nashed
Kathy Navarrete

Karen Oremus
Juan Ortegon
Gary Osborn
Keith Overby
Steve Owen
Dana Owens
Gervais Owono Akoué
Jan Pace
Gleno Packer
Steve Pagan
Joe Paredes
Glen Paris
David Parker
Travis Parker
Wes Parker
Steven Parr
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“Even with the huge growth in our company
in the past couple of years, no one is
ever too busy to stop and make you feel
like a priority.”

Dawn Altman, Engineering Technician
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“]1 felt Ploneer’s positive culture the
minute | walked in the door. Pioneer
truly treats its employees as its
greatest asset.”

Carcline Braich, Atterney
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“It's great to work for a company where
you [cok ferward to Monday as much
as Friday. This s a company where the
executives know their employses on
a first-name basis and are familiar
with their projects. Not only dees the
Company allow you to express your

ideas, it also acts on them.”

Louis Goldstein, Manager, US Onshere Exploitation
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Dusane Thomas
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CORPORATE OFFICERS:

{IN ORDER FROM LEFT TQ RIGHT, TOP TQ BOTTCM)

Scott D. Sheffield
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Danny L. Kellum
Executive Vice President,
Domestic Operations

Timothy L. Dove
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Chris J. Cheatwood
Executive Vice President,
Worldwide Exploration

Mark L. Withrow
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

A. R. Alameddine
Executive Vice President,
Worldwide Business Development

Susan A. Spratlen
Vice President,
Investor Relations and Communication

William F. Hannes
Vice President,
Engineering and Development

Richard P. Dealy

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Jay P Still
Vice President,
Gulf of Mexico Operations

Thomas C. Halbouty
Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Larry N. Pauisen
Vice President,
Administration and Risk Management

“Last year, [ was called to
active duty in support of
the global war on terrorism.
The Company immediately
assured me that they would
support me and my family,
freeing me to concentrate on
my wartime responsibilities
overseas and service to the
natien. [t’s this corporate
spirit of taking care of its
peopie that makes me proud
to be here at Pioneer.

Greg Champion,
Director of Negotiations, Business
Development

Sy

“Ploneer people are given the toels they need and the enecoureg@sment o
tae ereative risks. Seolt ane the Mmanagement commitiee promele eam
velues and have the paticnes to stay the courss.”

jom GuiflcoasbxplotationgManasgey
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A FIRM FOUNDATION

“l am proud of the role that eur domestic legacy assets have played as
we've transformed Pioneer into a giobal company.”

Techmology has been one of the keys to
significant operating cost reductions. In
the Spraberry field, we have significantly
reduced costs by employing the largest
SCADA (System Confrol Analytical Data
Acquisition) system in the world. This
system allows us to remotely monitor field
operations, maximizing the reach of our
lease operators and minimizing downtime.

We have put a lot of effort into building a strong position
in the Spraberry, a long-lived oil field in West Texas,
becoming the largest operator in the field. When we formed
Pioneer in 1997 and added long-lived gas in the Hugoton
and West Panhandle fields, we knew we were creating a
new company with a great foundation, and I am proud of
the role that our domestic legacy assets have played as
we've transformed Pioneer into a global company.

We use a small portion of the cash flow from these assets
to maintain their production, about $150 million per year.
During 2003, our onshore U.S. assets generated cash flow
of about $530 million. The excess cash flow from these
assets has fueled the transformation of Pioneer, providing
the capital for our exploration program and for developing

10 PIONEER MATURAL RESQURCES

the new fields we discovered in the Gulf of Mexico and
South Africa. And these legacy fields will be there long
into the future providing fuel for our growth.

Today, our onshore U.S. assets are still about 70% of our
total company reserves and offer slow production declines
with an average reserve to production ratio of 20 years, and
an average productive life of 30 years. Still, we stay busy
drilling new development wells in these fields to maintain
and in some cases increase production, and since we have
a lot of drilling locations in inventory, we'll be active in
these areas for several more years.

We operate nearly all our wells in these fields and own
the gathering and processing facilities associated with
most of our production. As a large operator in each of




DANRNY KELLUM

Executive Vice
President, Domeslic |

Operations

USTRA Vsu‘ﬁ ;
ez

these fields, we are relentless about capturing the economies
of scale and managing our costs. We believe in our people,
we encourage their input, and they come through for us time
and time again.

We continually challenge ourselves to find opportunities
to squeeze more profit out of these fields, and encourage
and train our lease operators to think like engineers. We are
relentless in seeking ways to drill cheaper, better and
faster. In fact, we have reduced drilling costs in the
Spraberry field to the point that we have a contract with a
major oil company that also operates in the field to drill
their wells for them, earning a fee and interest in their
production.

Technology has played a huge role in reducing costs

by automating many of our processes and allowing us to
remotely monitor our wells. Our technology group is pioneer-
ing and innovative, and we've seen big savings as a result.

This year, we plan to drill about 240 wells in these
onshore fields. We're excited about the opportunity we see
to continue to extend the success we've seen from our
drilling program in the Pawnee field area in South Texas.
We're also testing the potential of some acreage we hold in
northern Louisiana. While the onshore assets may not be
as glamorous as our new deepwater fields, they are at the
heart of our success and will be for many years to come.

That’s not to say that we're not excited about our new
deepwater fields. By the end of 2004, we expect that 35%
of Pioneer’s production will come from just 21 wells in

2003 ANNUAL REPORT 11
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OTHER INTERNATIONAL

Pioneer’s North American gas production base includes
several operated filelds in Qanada where the Company
expects moderate drill bit growth. While Pioneer’s strategy
has been to build pn this position through acquisitions,
opportunities to buy Canadian assets and meet minimum
return hurdles havz‘e been very limited.

Qi production from the lSabIe field offshore South
Africa was initiated in 2003 utilizing a floating produc-
tion, storage and ‘pfﬂ:oad‘i'n}g vessel.

Pioneer's latest|internatjonal entry is in northern Africa
where the Compalny has bjuilt a large acreage position in
Tunisia. The exploration progr'qm there is still in its early stages,
but three wells are already p‘(oducing oil, two discoveries are

being evaluated, arild add:ivtifonal wells are planned this year.

three distinct projects. The Canyon Express gas project set
a record for the world’s deepest production when it began
producing in September 2002. We are the sole owner and
operator of the Falcon gas system and initiated production
there in March 2003 with the Falcon field. We have since
added production to the system from the Harrier satellite
field and expect to add production from two more satellites
later this year. We plan to initiate production from our
third project, the spar development of the Devils Tower o1l
and gas field, by mid-year.

To date, our production rates from deepwater fields have
been higher than expected, and we've had good uptime on
the facilities. Infrastructure is king in the deepwater,
lowering the reserve threshold and reducing lead time for
nearby discoveries. For example, our Falcon development

ARGENTINA

nated revenues.

has emerged even stronger.

— GIIMAR VACA COCA
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team set an industry record achieving first production
from the Harrier satellite field in less than 12 months. We
are working with the development team on plans to tie in
two satellite fields at Devils Tower, and the exploration
team has several additional satellite prospects to drill.
Our deepwater operations team is focused on maximizing
the value of these high-return deepwater fields by carefully
controlling costs and minimizing downtime. The deepwater
Gulf of Mexico is a demanding technical and business
environment, and through these projects we've gained critical
expertise that we hope to leverage into other deepwater
opportunities in the Gulf and around the world.

— DANNY KELLUM

As Argentina’s economic and political crisis engulfed the country in 2002, we stood strong with assets of
excellent quality. Our people responded by working harder to weather the crisis and protect our business,
seizing opportunities to improve long-term results. We enhanced the value of the peso-denominated gas
stream by recovering liguids that can be sold in dollar-denominated markets. We shut down our gas
drilling efforts, but shot new 3-D surveys and worked to advance our exploration program while costs were
low. We gained a more favorable position for marketing gas and acquired additional acreage. Oil develop-
ment continued, benefiting from reduced operating costs for peso-denominated services with dollar-denomi-

Today, the environment is stabilizing, our oil drilling continues to deliver high-return growth, our gas sales
have strengthened, and we are again developing gas reserves with good economics where we can strip out
liquids. We expect that the government will soon implement a program for gradual gas price increases, fur-
ther improving gas development economics. When the market for gas expands, we are in position to signif-
icantly increase production through development of our existing discoveries and new exploration.

For 2004, we are back on track for meaningful growth in both oil and gas sales and have doubled our
capital budget, which is still within expected Argentine cash flow. Most of the budget is directed to lower-risk
development drilling and facilities. We are eager to appraise significant gas discoveries and continue our
exploration drilling program. Qur resilience was tested, and the storm has subsided. The Argentina team
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COMMERCIALIZATION AND DEVELOPMENT

To bring large-scale projects from discovery to first production, we needed a
strong team with broad experience and expertise. These are the kind of people
who are in high-demand and can go anywhere because they are the best at
what they do. So what attracts them to Pioneer? Their compensation is a
given. We must pay them well, but they can get that anywhere. It's our culture
that's different. We take top talent and provide them the opportunity to use
their skills, putting them on world-class projects that rival the majors’. We
challenge them, give them the tools they need, hold them accountable and
let them do what they do best. We ali work hard and enjoy what we do.

We work to build good working relationships with our partners and service
contractors to make us all one team with common goals. We do our share
and more, even on projects that we don't operate. We welcome the opportunity
to work with and learn from other companies known for their expertise.
We participate in decisions, contribute solid solutions and aren’t afraid to
ask guestions.

o

BILL HANNES, Vice President, Engineering and Development

kB ki we

RESPONSIBLE CPERATICNS

Pioneer joined the Environmental Protection Agency's
Natural Gas STAR program as a charter member in the
gas processing sector in 2000. As a result of our program
for reducing methane emissions, Pioneer was recog-
nized as the EPA's Gas STAR Rookie of the Year in 2001
and was named Processing Partner of the Year in 2002.

We operate two gas processing facilities, the Fain
plant in the Texas panhandle and the Satanta plant in
western Kansas, and have several other smaller gas
treating plants. Reducing methane emissions has always
been a priority, but joining the STAR program has created
a more formal platform for our environmental protection
policies, and provides resources to help us identify
additional emissions reduction opportunities.

Our entire team, from the front-line staff operating
our facilities to senior management, is committed to
protecting the environment and to good corporate
citizenship. It's an ongoing process, and our participation
in the EPA's STAR program highlights our efforts,

— HENRY GALPIN

We currently have nine discoveries in various stages of commercialization.
In the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, first production is targeted by mid-year from
the Devils Tower, Raptor and Tomahawk fields, and we’re planning tie-backs
for three other fields.

In Gabon, we are awaiting results from our current drilling campaign to
finalize the plan for development. We drilled three successful wells in Alaska
during 2003, have farmed into additional acreage and are evaluating the
potential to develop our Qooguruk field. Offshore South Africa, we are
encouraged with the potential to develop gas reserves on our blocks. We are
working to establish a contract to supply gas to an existing synthetic gasoline
plant just onshore from our blocks.

The Falcon gas system was our first operated project in the deepwater
Guif, and we're proud to have brought the first two wells there on line ahead
of schedule. We have a number of interesting projects on the table and are
committed to maximizing their value.

— BiLL HANNES
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WITH FINANCIAL STRENGTH

“We’ll preserve our financial flexibility and
prudently steward the Investments made by
our fellow stakeheiders.”

We are well on the way to achieving our financial goals. We have gone
through the paces of launching an exploration program, having early success,
and then facing the challenge of funding multiple large-scale development
projects at a time when cash was scarce. It was because of the quality and
stability of our legacy assets that we were able to divert development
dollars to these new high-impact projects, maintain our exploration program
and reduce debt while still maintaining our base production.

Yes, we have been the beneficiary of relatively high commodity prices
during this period, just like everyone in our industry. But to accomplish
this task, we have stuck to our plan and fulfilled past promises. This has
taken patience, a focus on prudent capital allocation and dedication to
continuous balance sheet improvement. Our efforts have been rewarded
with a return to Investment Grade status.

Today, we have substantial flexibility and firepower. Qur debt statistics
have shown consistent improvement. Our ratio of debt to total book capi-
talization was below 47% at the end of the year, and we expect to reach our
targeted range of 37% to 43% during the next few quarters. A total of 26
of the world’s largest financial institutions participated in the renewal of
our $700 million corporate credit facility at the end of 2003, and we
announced the initiation of a dividend for 2004, reflecting our growing
strength and confidence in our financial future.

Pioneer has many advantages. We have legacy long-lived onshore assets
that continue to generate significant excess cash flow, especially at today’s
commodity prices. The strong cash flow from the Canyon Express and Falcon

Sy . area gas projects will soon be augmented by cash flow from the Devils
Tid m@v[z Execmftwe Vice Pn’esmﬂem ' Tower project. These deepwater projects are some of the highest rate of
and Chief Financial Officer return projects in the Company. Their impact on our financial results

The audit committee of the board regularly meets with Pioneer's management. Pictured (left to right) are
board member Harty Gardner, retired treasurer of Mabil, Rich Dealy, chief accounting officer, board member 2004 CAPEX BUDGET
Jim Houghton, a retired senior tax partner with Ernst & Young, and Tim Dove, chief financial officer.

$550-$600 MILLIOM

O UMITED STATES 70%
O ARGENTINA 19%
C AFRICA 5%
O CANADA 5%
O OTHER FOREIGN 1%
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (piLuteD) NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTEVITIES in miLLONS
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was dramatic in 2003: we generated record net income of
$411 million, a return on equity of 26% and a return on
capital employed of 15%.

01l and gas production for 2003 was up 36% over the
prior year, and cash flow from operations more than
doubled to $764 million. As we bring on four more deep-
water fields, we expect our production will significantly
increase again this year, by 15% to 25% before the impact of
potential acquisitions. We expect to generate annual cash
flows that are several hundred million dollars above our
normal capital needs for the next few years.

We take seriously our responsibility to invest this cash
flow to achieve the best returns. We've set the initial budget
for our 2004 capital program at $550 million to $600 million
and would look to increase the budget to appraise or begin
developing a discovery or for potential acquisitions. We have
a substantial inventory of projects, and because our best
returns have come from investing in good projects, we will
retain the financial wherewithal to develop the discoveries
that have already been made and to continue to explore for
and develop new reserves. We have a strong track record in
acquiring properties as well, having bought over a half billion
dollars worth of properties in the last five years, all in our
core areas. We've been buying more of what we already own
and know, and have added significant value.

Although we have a large number of high-quality projects
to invest in over the next several years, we also believe in
returning capital to our shareholders. The recently
announced $200 million share repurchase program and the
dividend are steps in that direction. Finally, we expect to
reduce debt a minimum of $100 million this year as we
continue to progress toward our leverage targets.

Our outstanding finance team has been instrumental in
our success, and they will continue to play an integral role
in Pioneer’s future. Our fast-paced culture demands a sharp
team, with the knowledge and resourcefulness to handle an
ever-changing environment, and they consistently deliver.

YEAR-END DEBT PER BOE AVERAGE FINDING COST PER BOE

OF PROVED RESERVES

$2.35 $2.26 $1.97 $3.00 $7.49 $6.30 $6.64 $10.00
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We maintain an open, close working relationship with the
audit committee of our Board of Directors and are
fortunate to have such great depth of industry knowledge
and experience on the committee.

Our team’s focus will be on financing our plan as it is
implemented, properly assessing risks and returns, actively
practicing portfolio management, ensuring that our projects
meet strict economic thresholds and accurately evaluating
capital allocation decisions. We'll be patient, value-oriented
and thinking long-term. We'll preserve our financial
flexibility and prudently steward the investments made by
our fellow stakeholders.

— TiM DOVE

2003 ANNUAL REPORT 15




16 PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES




CHRIS CHEATWOOD,
Executive Vice President,
Worldwide Exploration

When Pioneer was formed in 1997, a key component of the
company's vision was creating a successful exploration
program. Many on our team left the security of major oil
companies to help make the vision become reality. When you
ask them why, they all give a similar answer. They want to
know that each day they can make a difference. They want
to be a part of something special. That’s what drives our
culture and has resulted in the success that differentiates us
from many of our peers.

We had early success in the Gulf of Mexico and South
Africa, and those projects are now delivering strong production
growth. We've drilled discoveries in Gabon, Alaska,
Argentina and Tunisia. We strive to create real value through
exploration, not just add reserves. To do this, we focus our
technical work on accurately quantifying risk and uncertainty
and try to have a balanced portfolio of opportunities. We will
take a series of “singles and doubles” rather than always
“swinging for the fence.”

Our exploration team emphasizes doing fundamental
geoscience, basic blocking and tackling, to understand the
petroleum system of a basin. Then we apply higher technology
to high-grade specific plays and prospects. We strive to
consistently assess the potential size, risk and economics of
all prospects across the entire company. To reduce bias, we
put all exploration prospects through a peer review and do
lock-backs to see if we are delivering the expected result.

We encourage our people to speak freely and challenge the
system, s0 peer reviews sometimes involve intense debate,
but with a common sense of purpose and a passion to share
expertise and improve our chance of success.

The deepwater Gulf of Mexico will remain a major focus
area for Pioneer. With seven deepwater discoveries and three
others being commercialized, our deepwater team has
delivered solid results. In the near term, we will target satellite
prospects near our existing fields to take advantage of the
infrastructure in place. We have already drilled one satellite
discovery and successfully appraised another this year.

The basin is maturing, pushing new drilling into deeper
horizons. After about two years of regional work and technical
analysis, we've entered a new deepwater play to target deep
prospects below salt. This new play has been delivering
promising results, and as this report goes to press, we have
three wells drilling in the play and are working several other
entry opportunities. These early wells offer not only the
potential to participate in significant discoveries, but also
the ability to gain critical information for the future. The
well data combined with our seismic mapping will position

us to continue to target prospective acreage via farm-in
arrangements from current leaseholders, and participate in
federal lease sales in 2006 through 2008 when many expiring
leases will become available.

We expanded our U.S. exploration program into Alaska
and drilled three successful wells on the North Slope in
2003. We secured additional acreage on the discovery and
will look at development options to complete our commercial
evaluation this year. We added acreage at the state lease
sale in three focus areas that offer a variety of risk profiles
and field size potential. The North Slope has a prolific
hydrocarbon system, and we believe we entered this area at
exactly the right time and have already formed excellent
relationships with the existing players.

Pioneer entered West Africa in 1997, leasing the Olowi block
in the shallow water offshore Gabon. After acquiring and
processing new 3-D seismic data, we drilled four successful
wells confirming significant oil and gas in place on the block.
We are drilling additional wells to better quantify the reserves
in place and will define a development plan for the oil rim
this year.

West Africa is one of the world’s most promising new
exploration areas, with recent discoveries all along the coast.
We recently joined forces with Kosmos Energy, a privately
held company founded by businessmen and technical
professionals with a proven track record in this region.

We plan to jointly explore an area along the west coast of
Africa extending from Morocco through Angola. By combining
the strengths of our two companies, we gain exposure to
many new opportunities in this resource-rich region.

Pioneer’s newest international venture is focused on the
prolific petroleum system of the Ghadames Basin in North
Africa. We established a strong acreage position in Tunisia
in late 2001 and 2002. Five of the seven wells we've drilled
to date have been successful, and with just three wells produc-
ing, gross production has reached 9,000 barrels per day. We
believe the real upside will be proven through future drilling
and plan to drill five to eight wells in 2004 as we seek oppor-
tunities to expand our acreage position into neighboring
countries.

As we built the exploration team, we were obviously looking
for great technical people, but we were looking for great people
too. The success of our exploration program is the result of
the commitment of that team. They all took a risk on Pioneer.
They came here to make a difference, and they do.

— CHRIS CHEATWOOD
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“In targeting new and emerging
plays, preparation and patience g

drive our efforts.”

AR, ALAMEDDINE, Executlve Vice President,
Worldwide Busimess Development - ]
-

QOver the past several years, Pioneer has built an industry- * e ;@i‘m‘ T ?"___ =
leading exploration team, and our results show it. We have .
made property acquisitions in our core areas during this
time with good results, while we directed most of our capital
to developing discoveries. Now that those discoveries are
generating cash, we are expanding our business development
team to complement our exploration program and provide
more flexibility in achieving our growth goals.
While today’s high commodity prices have created a seller’s
market, we see this as a great time to develop a portfolio
of opportunities to target when the time is right. To build our
program, we've put together multi-disciplined teams focused
on our existing core areas and are striving to leverage
the latest communications and information technology to
maximize our efforts and improve results. ' ) q
To get to assets that offer both scale and upside in a
competitive market, we'll first seek plays and areas where
we have expertise and the best understanding of the
technical and commercial keys to value creation. After all,
our long-lived core assets were built on an “acquire and
exploit” strategy. In targeting new and emerging plays,

_ preparation and patience drive our efforts. When we find
an entry point, we count on Pioneer’s dynamic environment
to efficiently evaluate and then decisively act to capture 4
the best opportunities. S " B I :

Ultimately, our success will depend on many talented
people and the dynamic and entrepreneurial environment
that have combined to create a unique Pioneer culture.
We have great confidence that the enthusiasm, energy and
creativity of Pioneer’s business and technical professionals
will again make a difference as we turn our efforts to this
important initiative.

"\rliiiW'""‘
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— A.R. (RAY) ALAMEDDINE o T e .

¥
4
>

1 ESTABLISHED ACQUISITION TRACK RECORD

AREA- DATE PRICE ($MM) |
1‘ DEEPWATER GULF OF MEXICO
FALCON 2002, 2003 $174
] CANYON EXPRESS 2001 48 .
1 DEVILS TOWER 2000, 2001 16 a
$238 5L '
WEST TEXAS P
SPRABERRY 2000, 2001, 2003 $112 :
TEXAS PANHANDLE
WEST PANHANDLE 2002 $138 o
ARGENTINA . .
NEUQUEN BASIN 1999, 2001 %55 Hashim Alkhersan, Manager of Pioneer Natural Resources
' Tunisia LTD, has 35 years of experience in the oil and gas
TQTAL ACQUISITIGNS $543 industry and has worked more than 25 years in the

Middle East.
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Parts I and i1 of this annual report on Form 10-K (the "Report”) contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Accordingly, no assurances can be given that the actual events and results will not be materially different than the
anticipated results described in the forward looking statements. See "Item 1. Business - Competition, Markets and Regulations” and
"Ttem 1. Business - Risks Associated with Business Activities" for a description of various factors that could materially affect the
ability of Pioneer Natural Resources Company to achieve the anticipated results described in the forward-looking statements.

Definitions of Ofl and Gas Terms and Conventions Used Herein

Within this Report, the following cil and gas terms and conventions have specific meanings: "“Bbl" means a
standard barrel containing 42 United States gallons; "BOE" means a barrel of oil equivalent and is a standard convention
used to express oil and gas volumes on a comparable oil equivalent basis; “Btu” means British thermal unit and is a
measure of the amount of energy required to raise the temperature of one pound of water one degree Fahrenheit;
"LIBOR" means London Interbank Offered Rate, which is a market rate of interest; "MMBtu® means one million Btus;
"VBBLI™ means one thousand Bbis; "MBOE® means one thousand BOE; “MMBOE" means one millicn BOE; "Mef™
means one thousand cubic feet and is a measure of natural gas volume; *MMef" means one million cubic feet; “Bef™
means one billion cubic feet; “NGL" means natural gas liquid; "NYMEX" means The New York Mercantile Exchange;
"proved reserves’” mean the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reserveirs, under
existing economic and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by coniractual arrangements, but not on escalations based upon
future conditions.

(i) Reservoirs are considered proved if economic producibility is supported by either actual production or
conclusive formation test. The area of a reservoir considered proved includes (A) that portion delineated by drilling and
defined by gas-oil and/or oil-water contacts, if any; and (B) the immediately adjoining portions not yet drilled, but which
can be reasonably judged as economically productive on the basis of available geological and engineering data. In the
absence of information on fluid contacts, the lowest known structural occurrence of hydrocarbons controls the lower
proved limit of the reservoir.

(ii) Reserves which can be preduced economically through application of improved recoverytechniques (such
as fluid injection) are included in the "proved" classification when successful testing by a pilot project, or the operation
of an installed program in the reservoir, provides support for the engineering analysis on which the project or program
was based.

(iii) Estimates of proved reserves do not include the following: (A) oil that may become available from known
reservoirs butis classified separately as "indicated additionalreserves"; (B) crude ¢il, natural gas, and natural gas liquids,
the recovery of which issubject to reasonable doubt because of uncertainty as to geology, reservoir characteristics, or
economic factors; {C) crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liguids, that may occur in undrilled prospects; and (D) crude
oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids, that may be recovered from oil shales, coal, gilsonite and other such sources.

"Standardized Measure® means the after-tax present value of estimated future net revenues of proved reserves,
determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC™), using prices and costs in effect at the specified date and a 10 percent discount rate; “acquisition and finding
cost per BOE" means total costs incurred divided by the summation of proved reserves attributable to revisions of
previcus estimates, purchases of minerals-in-place and new discoveries and extensions; and "reserve replacement
percentage" means, expressed as a percentage, the summation of annual proved reserves, on a BOE basis, attributable
to revisions of previous estimates, purchases of minerals-in-place and new discoveries and extensions divided by annual
production of oil, NGLs and gas, on a BOE basis.

Gas equivalents are determined under the relative energy content methed by using the ratic of 6.0 Mcf of gas to
1.0 Bbl of o1l or NGL.

With respect to information on the working interest in wells, drilling locations and acreage, "net” wells, drilling
locations and acres are determined by multiplying “gross™ wells, drilling locations and acres by Pioneer Natural
Resources Company's working interest in such wells, drilling locations or acres. Unless otherwise specified, wells,
drilling locations and acreage statistics quoted hereinrepresent gross wells, drilling locations or acres; and, all currency
amounts are expressed in U.S. dollars.




PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Pioneer Natural Resources Company (the "Company" or "Picneer") is a Delaware corpeoration whose commmon
stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Pioneer is an oil and gas exploration and production
company with ownership interests in oif and gas properties located in the United States, Argentina, Canada, Gabon, South
Africa and Tunisia.

The Company's executive offices are located at 5205 N. C'Connor Blvd., Suite 900, Irving, Texas 75039. The
Company's telephone number is (972) 444-9001. The Company maintains other offices in Midland, Texas; Buenos
Aires, Argenting; Calgary, Canada; Capetown, South Africa; Tunis, Tunisia; and Libreville, Gabon. At December 31,
2003, the Company had 1,014 employees, 505 of whom were employed in field and plant operations.

Available Information

Picneer files ennual, quarterly and curreni reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The public may read and copy any materials that Pioneer files with the SEC at the
SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Alsc, the SEC maintains an
Internet website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers,
including Pioneer, that file electronically with the SEC. The public can cbtain any documents that Pioneer files with the
SEC at http://www .sec.gov.

The Company also makes available free of charge on or through its Internet website (hitp://www.picneemrc.com)
its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and, if applicable,
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably
practiceble after it electronically files such material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC.

Mission and Strategles

The Company's mission is t¢ provide sharehoiders with superior investment returns through strategies that
maximize Pioneer's long-term profitability and net asset value. The strategies employed to achieve this mission are
predicated on maintaining financial flexibility and capital allocation discipline. Historically, these strategies have been
anchored by the Company's long-lived Spraberry oil field and Hugeton and West Panhandle gas fields' reserves and
production. Underlying these fields are approximately 65 percent of the Company's proved oil and gas reserves as of
December 31, 2003. These fields have a remaining productive life in excess of 40 years. The stable base of oil and gas
production from these fields, combined with the deepwater Gulf of Mexico Canyon Express, Falcon and Harrier gas
projects which began production in September 2002, March 2003 and January 2004, respectively, and the Sable oil
discovery in South Africa which began preduction in August 2003 will generate the operating cash flows that will a2llow
the Company to improve its financial flexibility in 2004. These activities will be further enhanced by initial production
in mid-2004 from the Company's Devils Tower oil discovery and the Raptor and Tomahawk gas ciscoveries, all located
in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico.

The above exploration successes represent some of the results of the Company's decision to selectively reinvest
capital from the long-lived Spraberry, Hugoton and West Panhandle fields to areas offering superior investmentremrns.
Similarly, the Company will continue to: {a) selectively explore for and develop proved reserve discoveries in areas that
offer superior reserve growth and profitability potential; (b) evaluate opportunities to acquire oil and gas properties under
terms that will complement the Company'sexploration and development drilling activities; (c} invest in the personnel
and technology necessary to maximize the Company's exploration and developmentsuccesses; and (d) enhance liquidity,
allowing the Company to take advantage of future exploration, development and acquisition opportunities. The Company
is cormmitted to continuing to enhance shareholder investment returns through adherence to these strategies.




Business Activities

The Company is an independent oil and gas exploration and production company. Pioneer's purpose is to
competitively and profitably explore for, develop and produce oil, NGL and gas reserves. In so doing, the Conmpany sells
homogenous oil, NGL and gas units which, except for geographic and relatively minor qualitative differentials, cannot
be significantly differentiated fromunits offered for sale by the Company's competitors. Competitive advantage is gained
in the oil and gas expleration and development industry through superior capital investment decisions, technological
innovation and price and cost management.

Petrolewm industry. The petroleum industry has been characterized by fiuctuating oil, NGL and gas commodity
prices and relatively stable supplier costs during the three years ended December 31, 2003. During and just prior to
2000, the Organization of Petroleumn Exporting Countries ("OPEC™) and certain other oil exporting nations reduced their
oil export volumes. Those reductions in oil export volumes had a positive impact on world oil prices, as did overall gas
supply and demand fundamentals on North American gas prices. During 2002, world oil prices increased in response
to political unrest and supply disruptions in the Middle East and Venezuela while Neorth American gas prices improved
as market fundamentals strengthened. During 2003, world oil and North American gas supply and demand fundamentals
continued to strengthen. Significant factors that will impact 2004 commeodity prices include the final resolution of issues
currently impacting Iraq and the Middle East in general, the extent to which members of OPEC and other oil exporting
nations are able to continue to manage oil supply through export quotas and overall North American gas supply and
demand fundamentals. To mitigate the impact of commeodity price volatility on the Company's net asset value, Pioneer
utilizes commedity hedge contracts. See Note J of Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for information regarding the impact to oil and gas revenues during the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 from the Company's hedging activities and the Company's open hedge
positions at December 31, 2003.

The Comparny. The Company's asset base is anchored by the Spraberry oil field located in West Texas, the
Hugoton gas field located in Southwest Kansas and the West Panhandle gas field located in the Texas Panhandle.
Complementing these areas, the Company has exploration and Gevelopment cpportunities and/or ¢il and gas production
activities in the Gulf of Mexico, the onshore Gulf Coast area and in Alaska, and internationally in Argentina, Canada,
Gabon, South Africa and Tunisia. Combined, these assets create a portfolio of resources and opportunities that are well
balanced among oil, NGLs and gas, and that are alsc well balanced between long-lived, dependable production and
exploration and developmentopportunities. Additicnally, the Company has a team of dedicated employees that represent
the professional disciplines and sciences that will allow Pioneer to maximize the long-term profitability and net asset
value inherent in its physical assets.

The Company provides administrative, financial and managementsupport to United States and foreign subsidiaries
that explore for, develop and produce oil, NGL and gas reserves. Production operations are principally located
domestically in Texas, Kansas, Louisiana and the Gulf of Mexico, and internationally in Argentina, Canada, South Africa
and Tunisia.

Production. The Company focuses its efforts towards maximizing its average daily production of oil, NGLs and
gas through development drilling, production enhancement activities and acquisitions of producing properties while
minimizing the controliable costs associated with the production activities. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
the Company's average daily oil, NGL and gas production increased as a result of () a full year of gas production from
the Company's Canyon Express gas project in the deepwater Guif of Mexico, (ii) gas production since March 2003 from
the Company's Falcon gas field in the deepwater Guif of Mexico, (iii) increased production from Argenting primarily
resulting from the resumption of oil drilling activities since the third quarter of 2002, (iv) oil production since May 2003
from the Company's Adam field in Tunisia and (v) oil preduction since August 2003 from the Company's Sable field
offshore South Africa. These increases more than offset normal production declines. During 2002, the Company's
average daily oil, NGL and gas production decreased primarily due to normal production declines, reduced Argentine
demand for gas, the Company's curtailmentof Argentine drilling activities during the first half of 2002 and the Decernber
2001 sale of the Company's Rycroft/Spirit River field in Canada. During 2001, the Company's average daily oil, NGL
and gas production decreased primarily as a result of oil and gas property divestitures that were supportive of the
Company'sdebt reduction goal. Production, price and cost information with respect to the Company's properties for each




of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is set forth under "Item 2. Properties - Selected Oil and Gas
Information - Production, Price and Cost Data".

Drilling activities. The Company seeks to increase its oil and gas reserves, production and cash flow through
exploratory and development crilling and by conducting other production enhancement activities, such as well
recompletions. During the three years ended December 31, 2003, the Company drilled 1,002 gross (744.1 net) wells,
86 percent of which were successfully completed as productive wells, at 2 total drilling cost (met to the Compeny’s
interest) of $1.5 billion. During 2003, the Company drilled 383 gross (338.8 net) wells. The Company's current 2004
capital expenditure budget is expected to range from $550 million to $600 million. Excluding the 2003 acguisitions,
the Company's 2004 capital expenditure budget is comparable to 2003 costs incurred for oil and gas producing activities.
The Company has allocated the budgeted 2004 capital expenditures as follows: 65 percent to development drilling and
facility activities and 35 percent to exploration activities.

The Company believes that its current property base provides a substantial inventory of prospects for future reserve,
production and cash flow growth. The Company's proved reserves as of December 31, 2003 include proved undeveloped
reserves and proved developed reserves that are behind pipe of 188.9 miilion Bbls of oil and NGLs and 670.8 Bef of gas.
Develepment of these reserves will require future capital expenditures. The timing of the development of these reserves
will be dependent upon the commodity price enviromment, the Company's expected operating cash flows and the
Company's financial condition. The Company believes that its current portfolio of undeveloped prospects and reserves
provides attractive development and exploration opportunities for at least the next three to five years.

Exploratory activities. Since 1998, the Company has devoted significant efforts and resources to hiring and
developing a highly skilled exploration staff as well as acquiring and drilling a portfolic of exploration opportunities.
The Company's commitment to exploration has resulted in significant discoveries during this tirne period, such as the
1998 Sable cil field discovery in South Africa; the 1999 Aconcagua, 2000 Devils Tower, 2001 Falcon and 2003 Harrier,
Tomahawk and Reptor discoveries in the deepwater Gulf of Mexice; the 2001 Olowi permit discovery located in the
Southern Gabon basin; and the 2002 Borj El Khadra permit discovery in the Ghadames basin onshore Southern Tunisiz.
The Company currently anticipates that its 2004 exploration efforts will be approximately 35 percent of total 2004 capital
expenditures and will be concenirate¢ domestically in the Gulf of Mexico, and internationally in Argentina, Canada,
Gabon and Tunisia. Exploratory drilling involves greater risks of dry holes or failure to find commercial guantities of
hydrocarbons than development drifling or enhanced recovery activities. See "[tem 1. Business - Risks Associated with
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Business Activities - Drilling activities" below.

Acquisition activities. The Company regularly seeks to acquire properties that complement its operations, provide
exploration and development opportunities and potentially provide superior refurns on investment. In addition, the
Company pursues strategic acquisitions that will allow the Company tc expand into new geographical areas that feature
producing properties and provide exploration/exploitation opportunities. During the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, the Company expended $151.0 million, $195.5 million and $170.8 million, respectively, of acquisition
capital to purchase additional interests in, and other assets associated with, its existing assets and to acquire new
prospects for future exploration activities. See Note D of Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents included in "ltem
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a description of the Company's acquisitions during 2003, 2002
and 2001.

The Comwany pericdically evaluates and pursues acquisition opportunities (including cpportunities to acquire
particular oil and gas properties or related assets; entities owning oil and gas properties or related assets; and
opportunities to engage in mergers, consolidations or other business combinations with such entities) and at any given
time may be in various stages of evaluating such opportunities. Such stages may take the form of internzl financial
analysis, oil and gas reserve analysis, due diligence, the submission of an indication of interest, prelirninary negotiztions,
negotiation of a letter of intent or negotiation of a definitive agreement.

Asset divestitures. The Company regulariy reviews its asset base for the purpose of identifying non-sirategic
assets, the disposition of which would increase capital resources available for other activities and create crganizaticnal
and operational efficiencies. While the Company generally does not dispose of assets solely for the purpose of reducing
debt, such dispositicns can have the result of furthering the Company's objective of financial flexibility through reduced
debt levels,




During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s divestitures consisted of the early
termination of derivative hedge contracts and the sales of oil and gas preperties and other assets for net proceeds £ $35.7
million, $118.9 million and $113.5 million, respectively, which resulted in 2003, 2602 and 2001 net divestiture gains
of $1.3 million, $4.4 million and $7.7 million, respectively. The net cash proceeds from the 2003, 2002 and 2001 asset
dispositions were primarily used to fund additions to oil and gas properties or to reduce the Company's outstanding
indebtedness. See Note N of Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” for specific information regarding the Company's asset divestitures.

The Company anticipates that it will continue to sell non-strategic properties or other assets from time to time to
increase capital resources available for other activities, to achieve operating anc administrative efficiencies and to
irmprove profitability.

Operations by Geographic Area

The Company operates in one industry segment. During the three years ended December 31, 2003, the Company
had oil and gas producing and development activities in the United States, Argentina, Canada, Gabon, South Africa and
Tunisia, and had exploration activities in the United States, Argentina, Canada, Gabon, Scuth Africa and Tunisia. See
Note R of Notes to Conselidated Financial Staternents included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data" for geographic operating segment information, including results of operations and segment assets.

Marketing of Production

General. Production from the Company's properties is marketed using methods that are consistent with industry
practices. Sales prices for oil, NGL and gas production are negotiated based on factors normally considered in the
industry, such as the index or spot price for gas or the posted price for oil, price regulations, distance from the well to
the pipeline, well pressure, estimated reserves, commeodity quality and prevailing supply conditions.

Significant purchasers. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company's primary purchasers of oil were
ExxonMobil Corporation ("ExxonMobil") and Plains Marketing LP ("Plains"), the Company's primary purchaser of
NGLs was Enterprise Products Cperating L.P. {"Enterprise”) and the Company's primary purchasers of gas were
Williams Energy Services ("Williams") and Concco Phillips. Approximately 16 percent, eight percent and seven percent
of the Company's 2003 combined oil, NGL and gas revenues were attributable to sales to Williams, Conoco Phillips and
Enterprise, respectively, and approximately five percent of combined oil, NGL and gas revenues of 2003 were
attributable to sales to ExxonMobil and Plains. The Company is of the opinion that the loss of any one purchaser would
not have an adverse effect on its ability to sell its oil, NGL and gas production.

Hedging activities. The Company utilizes commodity swap and collar contracts in order to (i) reduce the effect
of price volatility on the commodities the Company produces and sells, (if) support the Company's annual capital
budgeting and expenditure plans and (iii) reduce commodity price risk associated with certain capital projects. See "Item
7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for a description of the
Company's hedging activities, "Jtem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" and Note J of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for
information concerning the impact on o1l and gas revenues during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
from the Company's commodity hedging activities and the Company's open commedity hedge positions at December
31, 2003.

Competition, Markets and Regulations

Competition. The oil and gas industry is highly competitive. A large number of companies and individuals engage
in the exploration for and development of oil and gas properties, and there is a high degree of competition foroil and
gas properties suitable for development or exploration. Acquisitions of oil and gas properties have been an important
element of the Company's growth. The Company intends to continue to acquire cil and gas properties that complement
its operations, provide exploration and development opportunities and potentially provide superior return on investment.
The principal competitive factors in the acquisition of oil and gas properties include the staff and data necessary to
identify, investigate and purchase such properties and the financial resources necessary to acquire and develop the




properties. Many of the Company's competitors are substantially larger and have financial and other resources greater
than those of the Company.

Markets. The Company's ability to produce and market oil, NGLs and gas profitably depends on nurnerous factors
beyond the Company's control. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted or anticipated. Althcugh the
Company cannet predict the occurrence of events that may affect these commodity prices or the degree to which these
prices will be affected, the prices for any commodity that the Company produces will generally approximate current
market prices in the geographic region of the production.

Governmental regulutions. Enterprises that sell securities in public markets are subject to regulatory oversight
by agencies such as the SEC. This regulatory oversight imposes on the Company the responsibility for establishing and
maintaining disclosure contrels and procedures that will ensure that material information relating to the Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to the Company's management and that the financial statements anc other
financia! information included in this Report do not contain any unfrue statement of a material fact, or omit {o state a
material fact, necessary to make the statements made in this Report not misleading.

Qil and gas exploration and production operations are also subject to various types of regulation by local, state,
federal and foreign agencies. Additicnally, the Company's operations are subject to state conservation laws and
regulations, including provisions for the unitization or pooling of il and gas properties, the establishment of maximum
rates of production from wells and the regulation of spacing, plugging and abandonment of wells. States and foreign
governments generally impose a production or severance tax with respect to productionand sale of cil and gas within
their respective jurisdictions. The regulatory burden on the oil and gas industry increases the Company's cost of doing
business and, consequently, affects its profitability.

Additional proposals and proceedings that might affectthe oil and gas industry are considered from time to time
by Congress, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, state regulatory bodies, the courts and foreign governments.
The Company cannot predict when or if any such proposals might become effective or their effect, if any, on the
Company's operations.

Environmental and kealth controfs. The Company's operations are subject to numerous federal, state, local and
foreign laws and regulations relating to environmental and health protection. These laws andregulations may require
* the acquisition of a permit before drilling commences, restrict the type, quantities and concentyation of various substances
that can be released into the environment in connection with drilling and production activities, limit or prohibit drilling
activities on certain lands lying within wilderness, wetlands and other protected areas and impose substantial liabilities
for pollution resuliing from oil and gas operations. These laws and regulations may also restrict air emissions or other
discharges resulting from the operation of gas processing plants, pipeline systems and other facilities that the Company
owns. Although the Company believes that compliance with environmental laws and regulations will not have a material
adverse effecton its future results of operations or financial condition, risks of substantial costs and liabilities are inherent
in oil and ges operations, and there can be no assurance that significant costs and liabilities, including potential criminat
penalties, will not be incurred. Moreover, it is possible that other developments, such as stricter environmenta! laws and
regulations or claims for damages to property or persons resulting from the Company's operations, could result in
substantial costs and liabilities.

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), alsc known as the
"Superfund" law, imposes liability, without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct, on certain classesof
persons with respect to the release of a "hazardous substance” into the environment. These persons include the owner
or operator of the disposal site or sites where the release occurred and companies that disposed or arranged for the
disposal of hazardous substances released at the site. Persons who are or were responsible for releases of hazardous
subsiances under CERCLA may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazaerdous
substances that have been released into the environment and for damages o natural resources, and it is not uncommon
for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage aliegedly
caused by the hazardous substances released into the environment.

The Company generates wastes, including hazardous wastes, that are subject to the federal Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act ("RCRA") and comparable state statutes. The United States Environmental Protection Agency and




various state agencies have limited the approved methods of dispesal for certain hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
Furthermore, certain wastes generated by the Company's oil and gas operations that zre currently exempt from treatment
as hazardous wastes may in the future be designated as hazardous wastes, and therefore be subject to more rigorous and
costly operating and disposal requirements.

The Company currently owns or leases, and has in the pastowned or leased, properties that for many vears have
been used for the exploration and production of oil and gas reserves. Although the Company has used operating and
disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time, hydrocarborns or other wastes may have been disposed
of or released on or under the properties owned or leased by the Company or on or under other locations where such
wastes have been taken for disposal. In addition, some of these properties have been operated by third parties whose
treatmentand disposal or release of hydrocarbons or other wastes was not under the Company'scontrol. These properties
and the wastes disposed thereon may be subject to CERCLA, RCRA and analogous state laws. Under such laws, the
Company could be required to remove or remediate previously disposed wastes or property contaminationor to perform
remedial plugging operations to prevent future contamination.

Federal regulations require certain owners or operators of facilities that store or otherwise handle oil, such as the
Company, to prepare and implement spill prevention contrel plans, countermeasure plans and facility response plans
relating to the possible discharge of oil into surface waters. The Oil Pollution Prevention Act of 1990 ("OPA™) amends
certain provisions of the federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, commonly referred to as the Clean Water Act
("CWA"), and other statutes as they pertain to the prevention of and response to oil spills into navigable waters. The
OPA subjects owners of facilities to strict joint and several liability for all containment and cleanup costs and certain
other damages arising from a spill, including, but not limited to, the costs of responding to 2 release of oil to surface
waters. The CWA provides penalties for any discharges of petrolewm products in reportable quantities and imposes
substantial liability for the costs of removinga spill. OPA requires responsible parties to establish and maintain evidence
of financial responsibility to cover removal costs and damages resulting from an oil spill. OPA calls for a financial
responsibility of $35 million to cover pollution cleariup for offshore facilities. State laws for the control of water
pollution alse provide varying civil and criminal penalties and liabilities in the czse of releases of petroleum or its
derivatives into surface waters or info the ground. The Company does not believe that the OPA, CWA or related state
laws are any more burdensome to it than they are to other similarly situated oil and gas companies.

Many states in which the Company operates regulate natwrally cccurring radicactive materials ("NORM") and
NORM wastes that are generated in connection with oil and gas exploration and production activities. NORM wastes
typically consist of very low-level radicactive substances that become concentrated in pipe scale and in production
equipment. Certain state regulations require the testing of pipes and production equipment for the presence of NORM,
the licensing of NORM-contaminated facilities and the careful handling and disposal of NORM wastes. The regulation
of NORM has minimal effect on the Company's operations because the Company generates only small quaniities of
NORM on an annual basis.

The Company does not believe that its environmental risks are materially different from those of comparable
companies in the oil and gas industry. Nevertheless, no assurance can be given that environmental laws will not result
in a curtailment of production or processing, a material increase in the costs of production, development, exploration or
processing or otherwise adversely affect the Company's future results of operations and financial condition.

The Company employs an environmental directer and environmental specialists charged with monitoring
environmental and regulatory compliance. The Company performs an environmental review as part of the due diligence
work on potential acquisitions. The Company is not aware of any material environmental legal proceedings pending
against it or any material environmental liabilities to which it may be subject.

Risks Associated with Business Activities

The nature of the business activities conducted by the Company subjects it to certain hazards and risks. The
following is 2 summary of some of the material risks refating to the Company's business activities,

Commodity prices. The Company's revenues, profitability, cash flow and future rate of growth are highly
dependent on oil and gas prices, which are affected by numerous factors beyond the Company's control. Qil and gas
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prices historically have been very volatile. A significant downward trend in commedity prices would have a material
adverse effect on the Company's revenues, profitability and cash flow and could, under certain circumstances, result in
a reduction in the carrying value of the Company's oil and gas properties and the recognition of a deferred tax asset
valuation allowance or an increase to the Company's deferred tax asset valuation allowances, depending on the
Company's tax attributes in each country in which it has activities.

Drilling activities. Drilling involves numerous risks, including the risk that no commercially productive oil or gas
reserveirs will be encountered. The cost of drilling, completing and operating wells is often uncertain and drilling
operaticns may be curtailed, delayed or cenceled as a result of a variety of factors, including unexpected drilling
conditions, pressure or irregularities in formations, equipment failures or accidents, adverse weather conditions and
shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment. The Commpany's future drifling activities may not be successfil and,
if unsuccessful, such failure could have an advesse effect on the Company's future results of operations and financizl
condition. While all drilling, whether developmental or exploratory, invelves these risks, exploratory drilling involves
greater risks of dry holes or faiture to find commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. Because of the percentage of the
Company's capital budget devoted to higher risk exploratory projects, it is likely that the Company will continue to
experience exploration and abandonment expense.

Unproved properties. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company carried unproved property costs of $179.8
million and $219.1 million, respectively. Generally accepted accounting principles require pericdic evaluation of these
costs on 2 project-by-project basis in comparison to their estimated value. These evaluations will be affected by the
results of exploration activities, commodity price cutlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all or a portion of the
leases, contracts and permits appurtenant to such projects. If the quantity of potential reserves determined by such
evaluations is not sufficient to fully recover the cost invested in each project, the Company will recognize noncash
charges in the earnings of future pericds.

Acguisitions. Acquisitions of preducing oil and gas properties have been a key element of the Company's growth.
The Company's growth following the full development of its existing property base could be impeded if it is unzble to
acguire additional oil and gas reserves on a profitable basis. The success of any acquisition will depend on 2 number
of factors, including the ability to estimate accurately the recoverable volumes of reserves, rates of future production and
future net revenues aitainable from the reserves and to assess pessible environmental liabilities. All of these factors
affect whether an acquisition will ultimately generate cash flows sufficient to provide a suitable return on investment.
Even though the Company performs a review of the properties it seeks to acquire that it believes is consistent with
indusiry practices, such reviews are often limited in scope.

Divestisures. The Company regularly reviews its property base for the purpose of identifying non-strategic assets,
the disposition of which would increase capital resources available for other activities and create organizational and
operational efficiencies. Various factors could materially affect the ability of the Company to dispose of non-strategic
assets, including the availability of purchasers willing to purchase the non-strategic assets at prices acceptable to the
Company.

Operation of natural gas processing plents. As of December 31, 2003, the Company owned interests in 11 natural
gas processing plants and five treating facilities. The Company operates seven of the plants and ali five treating
facilities. There are significant risks associated with the operation of natural gas processing plants. Gas and NGLs are
volatile and explosive and may include carcinogens. Damage to or misoperation ¢f a gas processing plant or fcility
could result in an explosion or the discharge of toxic gases, which could result in significant damage claims in addition
to interrupting a revenue source.

Operating hazards and uninsured losses. The Company's operations are subject to all the risks normally incident
to the oil and gas exploration and production business, including biowouts, cratering, explosions and pollution and other
environmental demage, any of which could result in substantial losses to the Company due to injury or loss of life,
damage t0 or destruction of wells, production facilities or other property, clean-up respensibilities, reguiatory
investigations and penalties and suspension of operations. Although the Company cwrrently maintains insurance
coverage that it considers reasonable and that is similar to that maintained by comparable companies in the oil and gas
industry, it is not fully insured against certain of these risks, either because such insurance is not available or because
of the high premium costs associated with obtaining such insurance.
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Environmental. The oil and gas business is subject to environmental hazards, such as oil spills, produced water
spills, gas leaks and ruptures and discharges of toxic substances or gases that could expose the Company to substantial
liability due to pollution and other envirommental damage. A variety of federal, state and foreign laws and regulations
govern the environmental aspects of the oil and gas business. Noncompliance with these laws and regulations may
subject the Company to penalties, damages or other liabilities, and compliance may increase the cost of the Company's
operations. Such laws and regulations may also affect the costs of acquisitions. See "ltem 1. Business - Competition,
Markets and Regulation - Environmental and health controls” above for additional discussion related to environmental
risks.

The Company dees not believe that its environmental risks are materially different from those of comparable
companies in the oil and gas industry. Nevertheless, no assurance can be given that future envircnmental laws will not
result in a curtailment of production or processing, a material increase in the costs of production, development,
exploration or processing or otherwise adversely affect the Company's future operations and financial condition.
Pollution and similar environmental risks generally are not fully insurable.

Debt restrictions and availabilizy. The Company is 2 borrower under fixed term senior notes and a corporate credit
facility. The terms of the Company's borrowings under the senior notes and the corporate credit facility specify
scheduled debt repayments and require the Company to comply with certain associated covenants and restrictions. The
Company's ability to comply with the debt repayment terms, associated covenants and restrictions is dependent on,
among other things, factors cutside the Company's direct contrel, such as commedity prices, interest rates and
competition for available debt financing. See Note E of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements included in "[tem
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for information regarding the Company's outstanding debt as of
December 31, 2003 and the terms associated therewith.

Competition. The oil and gas industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with other companies,
producers and operators for acquisitions and in the exploration, development, production and marketing of oil and gas.
Some of these competitors have substantially greater financial and other resources than the Company. See "Item 1.
Business - Competition, Markets and Regulation - Competition” above for additional discussion regarding competition.

Government regulation. The Company's business is regulated by a variety of federal, state, local and foreign laws
and regulations. There can be no assurance that present or future regulations will not adversely affect the Company's
business and operations. See "Item 1. Business - Competition, Markets and Regulation - Governmental regulations”
above for additional discussion regarding government regulation.

International operations. At December 31, 2003, approximately 21 percent of the Company's proved reserves
of oil, NGLs and gas were located outside the United States (16 percent in Argentina, three percent in Africa and two
percent in Canada). The success and profitability of internaticnal operations may be adversely affected by risks
associated with international activities, including econemic and labor conditions, political instability, tax laws (including
host-country export, excise and income taxes and United States taxes on foreign subsidiaries) and changes in the value
of the U.S. dollar versus the local currencies in which ¢il and gas producing activities may be denominated. To the
extent that the Company is involved in international activities, changes in exchange rates may adversely affect the
Company's future results of operations and financial condition. See Critical Accounting Estimates included in "Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Note B of Notes to
Consclidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for information
specific to Argentina's economic and political situation.

Estimates of reserves and future net revenues. Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating quantities of proved
reserves and future net revenues therefrom. The estimates of proved reserves and related future net revenues set forth
in this Report are based on varicus assumptions, which may ultimately prove to be inaccurate. Therefore, such estimates
should not be construed as accurate estimates of the current market value of the Company's proved reserves.
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ITEM Z. PROPERTIES

The information included in this Report about the Company's oil, NGL and gas reserves as of December 31, 2003
was based on reserve reports audited by Netherland, Sewell & Asscciates, Inc. for the Company's major properties in
the United States, Argentina, Canada and South Africa and reserve reports prepared by the Company’s engineers for alf
other properties. The reserve audit conducted by Netherland, Sewell & Asscciates, Inc. in aggregate represented 87
percent of the Company's estimated proved quantities of reserves as of December 31, 2003. The information included
in this Report about the Company's oil, NGL and gas reserves as of December 31, 2002 was based on reserve reports
audited by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. for the Company's major properties in the United States, Canada and
South Africa, reserve reports audited by Gaffney, Cline & Asscciates, Inc. for the Company's properties located in the
Neuguen Basin in Argentina and reserve reports prepared by the Company's engineers for all other properties. The
reserve audits conducted by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. and Gaffney, Cline & Associates, Inc., in aggregate,
represenied 71 percent of the Company's estimated proved quantities of reserves as of December 31, 2002. The
information in this Report about the Company's oil, NGL and gas reserves as of December 31, 2001 was based on proved
reserves as determined by the Company's engineers.

Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting future rates of production
and timing of development expenditures, including many factors beyond the Company's control. This Report contains
estimates of the Company's proved oil and gas reserves and the related future net revenues, which are based on varicus
assumptions, including those prescribed by the SEC. Actual future production, oil and gas prices, revenues, taxes, capital
expenditures, operating expenses and quantities of recoverable oil and gas reserves may vary substantially from those
assumed in the estimates and could materially affect the estimated quantities and related Standardized Measure of proved
reserves set forth in this Report. In addition, the Company's reserves may be subject to downward or upward revisicns
based on production performance, purchases or sales of properties, results of future exploration and development
activities, prevailing oil and gas prices and other factors. Therefore, estimates of the Standardized Measure of proved
reserves should not be construed as accurate estimates of the current market value of the Company's assets.

Standerdized Measure is a reperting convention that provides a cormon basis for comparing oil and gas companies
subject to the rules and regulations of the SEC. [t requires the use of oil and gas spot prices prevailing as of the date of
computation. Consequently, it may not reflect the prices ordinarily received or that will be received for oil and gas
production because of seasonal price fluctuations or other varying market conditions. Standardized Measures as of any
date are not necessarily indicative of future results of operations. Accordingly, estimates included herein of future net
revenues may be materially different from the net revenues that are ultimately received.

The Company did not provide estimates of total proved oil and gas reserves during the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 or 2001 to any federal authority or agency, other than the SEC.

Proved Reserves

The Company's proved reserves totaled 789. 1 million BOE at December 31, 2003, 736.7 million BOE at December
31, 2002 and 671.4 million BOE at December 31, 2001, representing $4.6 billion, $4.1 billion and $2.5 billion,
respectively, of Standardized Measure or $6.0 billion, $5.1 billion and $2.5 billion, respectively, on a pre-tax basis. The
seven and 11 percent increases in proved reserve volumes and Standardized Measure, respectively, during 2003 were
primarily due to two core area acquisitions, discoveries in Gabon, the deepwater Gulf sf Mexico and Tunisia and positive
reserve revisions due to increased commodity prices extending the estimated economic life of various properties,
increased recoverable reserve estirnates based on well performance and the addition of reserves resulting from the
Company' expanded development drilling program. The ten and 65 percent increases in proved reserve volumes and
Standardized Measure, respectively, during 2002 were attributable to an increase in commodity prices, the purchase of
incremental interests in two core assets and the Company's successful capital investments.

On a BOE basis, 65 percent of the Company's total proved reserves at December 31, 2003 were proved developed
reserves. Based on reserve information as of December 31, 2003, and using the Company's production information for
the year then ended, the reserve-to-production ratio associated with the Company's proved reserves was 14.0 years on
a BOE basis. The following table provides information regarding the Company's proved reserves and average daily
production by geographic area as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003:




PROVED OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION

2003 Average
Proved Reserves as of December 31, 2003 Daily Production ()
ol Standardized ot

& NGLs Gas Measure & NGLs Gas

(MBbis) (MMef) MBOE (in thousands) (Bbls) (Ve BOE
United States ...... 362,751 1,553,976 621,747  § 3,797,488 44,863 445,609 119,129
Argentina ......... 33,469 549,856 125,112 443,118 10,005 94,128 25,694
Canada ........... 2,407 93,829 18,045 218,419 1,017 41,669 7,962
Africa ............ 24.154 - 24,154 124,228 1,981 - 1,981
Total ............. 422,781 2,197,661 789,058 $_4,583,253 57.866 581,406 154,766

(a) The 2003 average daily production was calculated using a 365-day year and without making pro forma adjustments for any
acquisitions, divestitures or drilling activity that occurred during the year.

Finding Cost and Reserve Replacement

The Company's acquisition and finding costs per BOE for the years ended December 31, 2003,2002 and 2001
were $6.64, $6.30 and $7.49 per BOE, respectively. The average acquisition and finding cost for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2003 was $6.76 per BOE, representing an eight percent increase over the 2002 three-year average
rate of $6.24 per BOE.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company replaced 193 percent of its annual production on a BOE
basis (299 percent for oil and NGLs and 129 percent for gas). During 2002, the Company replaced 258 percent of its
annual production on a BOE basis (384 percent for oif and NGLs and 144 percent for gas). During 2001, the Company
replaced 208 percent of its annual production on a BOE basis (169 percent for oil and NGLs and 245 percent for gas).
The Company's 2003 and 2002 reserve replacement percentages were the result of revisions of previous estimates
including revisions related to changes in commodity prices, asset purchases and new discoveries andfield extensions.
The Company's 2001 reserve replacement percentage was primarily impactedby asset purchases and new discoveries
and field extensions.

Description of Properties

Asof December 31, 2003, the Company has production, development and/or exploration operations in the United
States, Argentina, Canada, Gabon, South Africa and Tunisia.

Domestic. The Company's domestic operations are located in the Permian Basin, Mid-Continent, Gulf of Mexico
and onshore Guif Coast areas of the United States. The Company also has unproved properties in Alaska. Approximately
83 percent of the Company's domestic proved reserves at December 31, 2003 are located in the Spraberry, Hugoton and
West Panhandle fields. These mature fields generate substantial operating cash flow and have a large portfolio of low
risk infill drilling opportunities. The cash flows generated from these fields provide funding for the Company's other
development and exploration activities both domestically and internationally. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
the Company expended $563.0 million in domestic acquisition, exploration and development drilling activities. The
Company has budgeted approximately $427 million for domestic exploration and development drilling expenditures for
2004.

Spraberry field. The Spraberry field was discovered in 1949 and encompasses eight counties in West Texas. The
fieid is approximately 150 miles long and 75 miles wide at its widest point. The oil produced is West Texas Intermediate
Sweet, and the gas produced is casinghead gas with an average energy content of 1,400 Btu per Mcf. The oil and gas
are produced primarily from three formations, the upper and lower Spraberry and the Dean, at depths ranging from 6,700
feet to 9,200 feet. Recently, the Company has been adding the Wolfcamp formation at depths ranging from 9,300 feet
to 10,300 feet to selected completions with successful resulis. The center of the Spraberry field was unitized in the late
1950s and early 1960s by the major oil companies; however, until the late 1980s there was very limited development

14




activity in the field. The Company believes the area offers excellent opportunities to enhance oil and gas reserves
because of the numerous undeveloped infill drilling locations, many of which are reflected in the Company's proved
undeveloped reserves, and the ability to reduce operating expenses through economies of scale.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company placed 123 Spraberry wells on production and drilled
one developmentzl dry hole. The Company plans to drill approximately 114 development wells in the Spraberry field
during 2004,

Hugoton field. The Hugoton field in southwest Kansas is one of the largest producing gas fields in the continental
United States. The gas is produced from the Chase and Council Grove formations at depths ranging from 2,700 feet to
3,000 feet. The Company's Hugoton properties are located on approximately 257,000 gross acres (237,000 net acres),
covering approximately 400 square miles. The Company has working interests in approximately 1,200 wells in the
Hugoton field, about 1,000 of which it operates, and partial royalty interests in approximately 500 wells. The Company
owns substantially all of the gathering and processing facilities, primarily the Satanta plant, that service its preduction
from the Hugoton field. Such cwnership aliows the Company to control the production, gathering, processing and sale
of its gas and NCL production.

The Company's Hugoton operated wells are capable of producing approximately 90 MMcfof wet gas per day (L.e.,
gas production at the wellhead before processing and before reduction for royalties), although actual production in the
Hugoton field is limitec by allowables set by state regulators. The Company estimates that it and other major producers
in the Hugoton field produced at or near capacity during the year ended December 31, 2003. During 2003, the Company
placed 18 development wells on production, drilled one developmental dry hole and had one well in progress as of
December 31, 2003 in the Hugoton field. The plans for 2004 include drilling approximately 20 development wells.

The Company is continuing to evaluate the feasibility of infill drilling into the Council Grove Formation and may
submit zn application to the Kansas Corporation Commission to allow infill drilling. Such infill drilling may increase
production from the Company's Hugoton properties. However, until an application has been submitted and approved,
the Company will not reflect any of the infill drilling locations as proved undeveloped reserves. There can be no
assurance that the application will be filed or approved, or as to the timing of such approval if granted.

West Panhandle field. The West Panhandle properties are located in the panhandle region of Texas where initial
preduction commenced in 1918. These stable, long-lived reserves are attributable to the Red Cave, Brown Dolomite,
Granite Wash and fractured Grznite formations at depths no greater than 3,500 feet. The Company's gas in the West
Panhandie field has an average energy content of 1,300 Bt per Mcf and is produced from approximately 600 wells on
more than 241,000 acres covering over 375 square miles. The Company's wellhead gas produced from the West
Panhandle field contains a high guantity of NGLs, yielding relatively greater NGL volumes than realized from the
Company's 1,025 Btu per Mcf content wellhead gas in its Hugoton field. The Company controls the wells, production
equipment, gathering system and gas processing plant for the field.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company placed 71 new development wells on production, drilled
four development wells that were plugged and abandoned due to noncomumerciality and had 24 development weils and
two extension wells in progress at December 31, 2003. The Company plans to drill approximately 111 wells in the West
Panhandle field during 2004.

Gulf of Mexico area. In the Gulf of Mexico, the Company is focused on reserve and production growth through
a portfolio of shelf and deepwater development projects, high-impact, higher-risk deepwater exploration drilling, shelf
exploration driliing and exploitztion opportunities inherent in the properties the Company currently has producing on
the shelf. To accomplish this, the Company has devoted most of its domestic exploration efforts to the Gulf of Mexico
shelf and deepwater as well as investments in and utilization of 3-D seismic technology. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, the Company successfully drilled three exploratory wells in the deepwater Guif of Mexico and one
successful development well on the shelf. The Company also drilled four exploratory dry holes on the shelf and two
exploratory dry holes in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico during 2003 and had four exploratory wells in the deepwater Gulf
of Mexico and one exploratory well on the shelf in progress as of December 31, 2003.




In the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, the Company has three major projects, two of which are now on production and
one that was in progress at December 31, 2003:

° Canyon Express - The Canyon Express development project is a joint development of three deepwater Gulf of
Mexico gas discoveries, including the Company’s TotalFinaElf-operated Aconcagua and Marathon-operated
Camden Hills fields, where the Company holds 37.5 percent and 33.3 percent working interests, respectively.
The Company participated in the discovery of the Aconcagua gas field in 1999 during the early stages of building
its exploration program, and later added Camden Hills to its portfolio to enhance its ownership in the project. The
Canyon Express project was approved for development in June 2000 and reached first production in September
2002. The Canyon Express gathering system is the first in the area and provides the Company and its partners
with the opportunity to collect gathering and handling revenues from the use of the system by any future
discoveries in the area. The Company has plans to drill and complete an additional development well at
Aconcagua during 2004.

Falcon Area - The Company-operated Falcon two-well field was completed ahead of schedule and placed on
production in March 2003. During the first quarter of 2003, the Company drilled its Harrier discovery, along with
two exploratory dry holes. The Company aiso acquired the remaining 25 percent working interest in the Falcon
field, Harrier discovery and swrrounding prospects that it did not already own in March 2003. In addition, during
the third quarter of 2003, the Company successfully drilled the Tomahawk and Raptor prospects. All three
discoveries, Harrier, Tomahawk and Raptor, will be developed as single-well subsea tie-backs to the Faicon field
facilities which were designed to be expandable. To accommodate this incremental production and potential
throughput associated with additional planned exploration, an additional parallel pipeline connecting the Falcon
field to the Falcon platform on the Gulf of Mexico shelf has been added, doubling its capacity to 400 MMcf of
gas per day. The Company placed the Harrier field on production in early January 2004 and plans to place
Tomahawk and Raptor on production in mid-2004. In addition to the development operations discussed above,
the Company has budgeted to drill up to three additional Faicon area prospects in 2004,

Devils Tower - The Dominion-cperated Devils Tower development project was sanctioned in 2001 as a spar
development project with the owners leasing a spar from a third party for the life of the field. The hull of the spar
was constructed in Indonesia and was successfuily transported to the United States during the first quarter of 2003
where the topsides were added in the fourth quarter of 2003. The spar has slots for eight dry tree wells and up
to two subsea tie-back risers and is capable of handling 60 MBbls of oil per day and 60 MMcf of gas per day.
Eight Devils Tower wells and one subsea tie-back well, the Triton field, have been drilled and are awaiting
compietion. In addition, the Company has drilled an appraisal well at Triton that was successful subsequent (o
year-end and an exploration well is in progress on its Goldfinger prospect. Devils Tower production is expected
to begin in mid-2004 and will be phased in as the wells are individually completed from the spar. The Company
holds a 25 percent working interest in each of the above projects.

During 2002, the Company also participated in the Marathon-operated deepwater Gulf of Mexico Ozona Deep
discovery. The Company is currently negotiating a tie-back agreement to an existing facility in the area, the economics
of which will determine future activities. In late 2003, the Company spudded an exploratory weil on the BP-operated
Juno prospect with a 25 percent working interest and an exploratory well on the Unocal-operated Myrtle Beach prospect
with a 10 percent working interest, each of which remains in progress with results expected to be known in February
2004. The Company alsc plans to spud an exploratory well on the Dominion-operated Thunder Hawk prospect during
2004. The Company has a 12.5 percent working interest in Thunder Hawk.

During January 2003, the Company announced a joint exploration agreement with Woodside Energy (USA), Inc.
("Woodside"), a subsidiary of Woodside Energy Ltd. of Australia, for a two-year drilling program over the shallow-water
Texas shelf region of the Gulf of Mexico. Under the agreement, Woodside acquired a 50 percent working interest in
47 offshore exploration blocks operated by the Company. The agreement covers eight prospects and 19 leads and
included five exploratory wells to be drilled in 2003 and three in 2004. Most of the wells to be drilled under the
agreement will target gas plays below 15,000 feet. The first three wells under this joint agreement were unsuccessful.
The fourth well, Midway, subsequent to December 31, 2003 encountered 30 feet of net gas pay and is expected to be
tied back to an existing production platform with first production anticipated during the second half of 2004. Three other
intervals with an additional 60 feet of gas bearing sands were alsc encountered and will require additional analysis to




determine future commercial potential. The Company has a 37.5 percent working interest in this well. The fifth well
to be drilled in 2003 and the three wells scheduled for 2004 under the agreement, which has been extended for one
additional year, were mutually agreed to be deferred until more technical work can be performed on the prospects by
both companies. Additionally, the Company and Woodside are evaluating shaliower gas prospects on the Gulf of
Mexico shelf for possible inclusion in the 2004 drilling program.

Onshore Gulf Coast area. The Company has focused its drilling efforts in this area on the Pawnee field in the
Edwards Reef trend in South Texas. The Company placed five development wells and one extension well on production
at Pawnee during 2003, had two wells in progress at year-end and plans to drill approximately ten wells in 2004.

Alaska area. During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company acquired a 70 percent working interest and
operatorship in ten state leases on Alaska's North Slope. Associated therewith, the Company drilled three exploratory
wells during the first quarter of 2003 to test a possible extension of the productive sands in the Kuparuk River field into
the shallow waters offshore. Although all three of the wells found the sands filled with oil, they were too thin to be
considered commercial on a stand-alone basis. However, the wells also encountered thick sections of cil-bearing
Jurassic-aged sands, and the first well flowed at a sustained rate of approximately 1,300 barrels per day. The test resulis
are continuing o be evaluated to determine the commercial viability of the Jurassic reservoir. Subsequent to year-end,
the Company farmed-into a large acreage block to the southwest of the Company's discovery. During 2004, the
Company plans to evaluate seismic data over the area to the southwest of its discovery, analyze resuits from other weils
drilled in the area and determine the location of future exploration wells to further test the discovery.

In addition, the Company was the high bidder on 53 tracts covering an additional 159,000 acres on the North
Slope in the most recent state lease sale, establishing a leasehold over a variety of prospects. The Company has opened
an office in Anchorage and is putting together a team of employees that will focus their efforts on enhancing the
Company's position in Alaska.

International. The Company's international operations are located in the Neuquen and Austrzl Basins areas of
Argentina, the Chinchega, Martin Creek and Lookout Butte areas of Canada, the Sable oil field offshore South Africa
and in southern Tunisia. Additionally, the Company has other significant oil development and exploration activities in
the shallow waters offshore Gabon, gas exploration activities in the shallow waters offshore South Africa and oil
development and exploration activities in Tunisia. As of December 31, 2003, approximately 16 percent, two percent
and three percent of the Company's proved reserves are lecated in Argentina, Canada and Africa, respectively.

Argentina. The Company's share of Argentine production during the year ended December 31, 2003 averaged
25.7 MBOE per day, or approximately 17 percent of the Company's equivalent production. The Company's operated
production in Argentina is concentrated in the Neuquen Basin which is located about 925 miles southwest of Buenos
Aires and to the east of the Andes Mountains. Oil and gas are produced primarily from the Al Norte ce la Dorsza), the
Al Sur de la Dorsal, the Dadin, the Loma Negra, the Dos Hermanas, the Anticlinal Campamentc and the Estacion
Fernandez Oro blocks, in each of which the Company has a 100 percent working interest. Most of the gas produced from
these blocks is processed in the Cormpany's Loma Negra gas processing plani. The Company also operates and has a
50 percent working interest in the Lago Fuego field which is located in Tierra del Fuego, an island in the extreme
southern portion of Argentina, approximately 1,500 miles south of Buenos Aires.

Most of the Company's non-operated production in Argentina is located in Tierra del Fuego where oil, gas and '
NGLs are produced from six separate fields in which the Company has a 35 percent working interest. The Company
also has a 14.4 percent working interest in the Confluencia field which is located in the Neuguen Basin.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company expended $52.1 million on Argentine development,
exploration and acquisition activities. The Company drilled 31 development wells and 30 extension/exploratory wells,
of which 29 development wells and 21 extension/exploratory wells were successful. Also during 2003, the Company
acquired an additional 150,000 acres in the Ojo de Agua, Cutral Co Sur and Collun Cura blocks in the Neuguen Basin
and shot seismic covering approximately 258,000 acres. The Company plans to be more active in Argentina in 2004
with approximately $113 million budgeted for oil and gas development and exploration opportunities.
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Canada. The Company's Canadian producing properties are located primarily in Alberta and British Columbia,
Canada. Production during the year ended December 31, 2003 averaged 8.0 MBOE per day, or approximately five
percent of the Company's equivalent production. The Company continues to focus its development, exploration and
acquisition activities in the core areas of northeast British Columbia and southwest Alberta. The Canadian assets are
geographically concentrated, predominantly shallow gas and more than 95 percent operated by the Company in the
following areas: Chinchaga, Martin Creek and Lockout Butte.

Production from the Chinchaga area in northeast British Columbia is relatively dry gas from formation depths
averaging 3,400 feet. In the Martin Creek area of British Columbia, production is relatively dry gas from various
reservoirs ranging from 3,700 feet to 4,300 feet. The Lookout Butte area in southwest Alberta produces gas and
condensate from the Mississippian Turner Valley formation at approximately 12,000 feet.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company expended $53.0 million on Canadian exploration,
development, and acquisition activities. The Company drilled 14 development wells and 42 exploratory/extension wells,
primarily in the Chinchaga and Martin Creek areas, of which seven development wells and 16 exploratory/extension
wells were successful. Most of these wells were drilled during the first quarter of 2003 as these areas are only accessible
for drilling during the winter months. The Company plans to spend approximately $31 million on oil and gas
development and exploration opportunities in Canada during 2004,

Africa. In Africa, the Company has entered into agreements to explore for oil and gas in South Africa, Gaben
and Tunisia. The amended Scuth African agreements cover over five million acres along the southern coast of South
Africa, generally in water depths less than 650 feet. The Gabon agreement covers 313,937 acres off the coast of Gabon,
generally in water depths less than 100 feet. The Tunisian agreements can be separated into two categories: the first
includes three permits covering 2.9 million acres onshore southern Tunisia which the Company cperates with a 50
percent working interest and the second includes the Anadarko-operated Anaguid permit covering 1.2 million acres
cashore southern Tunisia in which the Company has a 38.7 percent working interest and the AGIP-operated Adam
concession and Borj El Khadra permit covering 212,420 acres and 969,755 acres, respectively, onshore southern Tumnisia
in which the Company has a 28 percent and 40 percent working interest, respectively. During the year ended December
31, 2003, the Company expended $52.9 million of acquisition, development and exploration drilling and seismic capital
in South Africa, Gabon and Tunisia.

South Africa. In South Africa, the Company spent $32.8 million of capital to complete its Petro SA-operated
Sable development project and to drill three exploratory wells that were dry holes. The Sable oil field began producing
in August 2003. The Company has a 40% working interest in the Sable field. In 2004, the Company currently plans to
spend approximately $9 million in South Africa for production enhancement opportunities at Sable and for an exploration
well late in the year.

Gabon. In Gabon, the Company spent $4.4 million of development and seismic capital to further evaluate its
Bigorneau Scuth discovery, located offshore in the Southern Gabon Basin on its Clowi permit. Pioneer is the operator
of the permit with a 100 percent working interest. To date, the Company has drilled four successful offshore wells which
have established significant oil in place. The Company recently received ministerial approval for improved terms
assoclated with the Olowi permit. Subsequent to year-end, the Company has commenced a multi-well drilling program
to further define the scale of a development plan, initially focusing on the Lower Gamba, and to test a new exploratory
prospect. The Company is also soliciting bids from possible new partners in the project.

Tunisia. In Tunisia, the Company spent $15.6 million of acquisition, drilling and seismic capital during the year
ended December 31, 2003 primarily tc drill one successful development well in its Adam concession, one successful
exploratory well in its AGIP-operated Hawa oil field and one exploratery well that was a dry hole in its Company-
operated Jorf permit. The Hawa oil field started production in January 2004. In addition, the Company alsc drilled two
exploratory wells on its Anadarke-operated Anaguid permit that remain in progress as of December 31, 2003. The
Company also completed the construction of a 15 kilometer flowline from the Adam discovery to an AGIP-operated
facility, allowing production to begin in May 2003. The capital budget of approximately $14 million for Tunisia in 2004
includes an exploration well and development well in the Adam concession, iwo exploration wells on the Company-
operated El Hamra permit and two appraisal wells on the Anaguid permit.




Selected Gil and Gas Information

The following tables set forth selected oil and gas information for the Company as of and for each of the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Because of normal production declines, increased or decreased drilling
activities and the effects of past and future acquisitions or divestitures, the historical informationpresented below should
not be interpreted as being indicative of fuuture results.

Production, price and cost data. The following table sets forth production, price and cost data with respect to
the Company's properties for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:
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Productive wells. The following table sets forth the number of productive oil and gas wells attributable to the
Company's properties as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

PRODUCTIVE WELLS (a)

Gross Productive Wells Net Productive Wells
Ol Gas Total Cil Gas Total

As of December 31, 2003:
United States 2,012 5,703 2,978 1,907 4,885
Argentina 194 863 141 680

268 272 210 214
- 8 - 3
2474 6,846

2,258 5,782

As of December 31, 2002:
United States 1,952 5,400 1,855 4,600
Argentina 208 902 142 676

I 246 247 197 198
Africa 5 5 2

4,148 2,406 6.554 2,194 5,476

As of December 31, 2001:
United States 3,485 1,931 5,416 1,613 3,729
Argentina 669 162 831 132 586
4 299 303 240 243

4,158 2,392 6,550 1,985 4,558

(a) Productive wells consist of producing wells and wells capable of production, including shut-in wells. One or more completions
in the same well bore are counted as one well. Any well in which one of the multiple completions is an oil completion is
classified as an oil well. As of December 31, 2003, the Company owned interests in 132 gross wells containing multiple
completions.

Leasehold acreage. The following table sets forth information about the Company's developed, undeveleped and
royalty leasehold acreage as of December 31, 2003:

LEASEHOLD ACREAGE

Developed Acreage Undeveloped Acreage Royalty
Gross Acres Net Acres Gross Aeres Net Acres Acreage

As of December 31, 2003:
United States:

Onshore 1,011,370 869,974 125,095 79,224 229,650
Offshare 120,333 58,838 828311 562,604 18,500
1,131,703 928,812 953,406 641,828 240,150

Argentina 713,000 319,000 1,154,000 1,094,000 -
Canada 161,000 123,000 431,000 310,000 15,000

222.020 63,318 10,778,415 6,109,136 -
2,227,723 1,434,130 13.316.821] 8,154,964 255.150




Drilling activities. The following table sets forth the number of gross and net productive and dry wells in which
the Company had an interest that were drilled during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. This
information should not be considered indicative of future performance, nor should it be assumed that there was any
correlation between the number of productive wells drilled and the oil and gas reserves generated thereby or the costs
to the Company of productive wells compared to the costs of dry holes.

DRILLING ACTIVITIES
Gross Wells Net Wells
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
United States:
Productive wells:
Development ........................ 244 148 228 210.5 83.0 114.6
Exploratory ............ oot 4 6 20 4.0 20 11.0
Dry holes:
Development ...........coviinieui.. 6 4 15 6.0 3.7 14.6
Bxploratory .............cieninnn.n. 6 3 8 3.6 2.1 5.1
260 161 271 224.1 90.8 145.3
Argentina:
Productive wells:
Development .................c.c...... 29 13 19 29.0 13.0 17.9
Exploratory ... 21 9 26 21.0 9.0 255
Dry holes:
Development .............cccoouovan. 2 1 1 20 1.0 1.0
ExXploratory ..........coiiiiiiiin 9 8 16 9.0 8.0 14.0
61 3] 62 61.0 310 58.2
Canada:
Productive wells:
Development ........................ 7 13 24 7.0 104 20.3
Exploratory ............o.iiiiiin. 16 9 12 14.9 9.0 10.2
Dry holes:
Development ...........c.cooviinn.. 7 4 2 6.5 4.0 2.0
Exploratory ............c.coiiiianan, 26 3 13 2.t . 3.0 11.8
56 29 51 49.5 26.4 44.3
Africa:
Productive wells:
Development ........................ 1 4 - 3 1.6 -
Exploratory ............c.ooviiiiiin.. 1 4 3 4 3.4 24
Dry holes:
Development ..................... ... - - - - - -
Explotatory ............c. it 4 - 3 3.5 - 1.9
6 8 6 4.2 5.0 4.3
Total ... ... 383 229 390 338.8 1532  252.1
Successratio (@) .. ... 84% 90% 85% 85% 86% 80%

(a) Represents the ratio of those wells that were successfully completed as producing wells or wells capable of producing to total
wells drilled and evaluated.
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The following table sets forth information about the Company's wells upon which drilling was in progress as of
December 31, 2003:

Gross Wells Net Wells

United States:

Development ..........c.ccoiiiiiiniiiinneeinan, P 28 27.1
EXPIOTAIOTY . .ottt et e e e e s 11 5.8
3% 329
Argentina:
DevelODIMENt . .. oo e 3 3.0
J25q o) (0T - 10) o 10.0
13 13.0
Canada:
Development . ... .vu et e 6 5.6
BXPIOTAIOTY . oottt e 11 10.1
17 15.7
Africa:
DeveloDIMENt ... ..ot e - -
B PlOTaIOTY . . ittt e _ 2 8
—2 -8
LAl e e AN 62.4

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is party to various legal proceedings, which are described under "Legal actions” in Note [ of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”. The Company
is also party to other litigation incidental ¢o its business. Except for the specific legal actions described in Note [ of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "ltern 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data", the Company
believes that the probable damages from such other legal actions will not be in excess of 10 percent of the Company's
current assets.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY BEOLDERS
The Company did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2003.
PART X

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The Company's commen stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "EXD".
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for the Company's comenon stock,
as reported in the New York Stock Exchange composite transactions. The Company's board of directors did not declare
dividends to the holders of the Company's common stock during the years ended December 31, 2003 or 2002. See "2004
Cutlook" included in "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
for discussion related to futre dividends.
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The following table sets forth quarterly kigh and low prices of the Company's common stock for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2003:

FOUrth QUArEr . . . oottt e e $ 3290 $ 2500

THIFD GUATTET -« .+ . et e et ettt e e $ 2652 $ 2276

SeCONd QUATTET . . .\ et e $ 2844 $ 2285

FIrst QUaTter . ... ... .ottt § 2744 § 2327
Year ended December 31, 2002:

Fourth qUAarter . . ... ..o vttt e e $ 2750 $ 2170

Third QUATTET . . . . . oot e $ 2623 $ 1950

SeCONd GUAITET . .\ ot e e e e $ 2605 $ 20.00

FITSEQUATTET . o o oottt et ettt et e e e $ 2230 $ 16.10

On January 30, 2004, the last reported sales price of the Company's common stock, as reported in the New York
Stock Exchange composite transactions, was $31.92 per share.

As of January 30, 2004, the Company's common stock was held by approximately 29,118 holders of record.
Securities Authorized for Issnance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2003:

@)
Number of securities
(2) remaining availeble
Number of for future issuzmee
securities to be under eguity
fssued upon Weighted average compensation plans
exercise of exercise price of (excluding securities

outstonding options outstanding options  reflected in first columm)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders (c):
Pioneer Natural Resources Company:

Long-Term Incentive Plan........... 4,857,064 $19.63 6,305,591
Employee Stock Purchase Plan .. ..... - § - 589,884

Predecessorplans ..................... 417.052 $ 2595 -
5274116 6,895,475

(a) There are no outstanding warrants or equity rights awarded under the Company's equity compensation plans.

(b) The Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for the issuance of a maximum number of shares of common stock equal
to 10 percent of the total number of shares of common stock equivalents outstanding less the total number of shares of common
stock subject to outstanding awards under any stock-based plan for the directors, officers or employees of the Company. The
number of remaining securities available for future issuance under the Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan is based on
the criginal authorized issuance of 750,000 shares less 160,116 cumulative shares issued through December 31, 2003. See Note
G of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a
description of each of the Company's equity compensation plans.

(c) There are no equity compensation plans that have not been approved by security holders.
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FTEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2003
for the Company should be read in conjunction with "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and "ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

Year Ended December 31,
2083 2002 2001 2009
(in millioms, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues and other income:
$ 1,298.6 $§ 7018 § 847.0 852.7
Interest and other (a) 12.3 11.2 21.8 25.8
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net 13 4.4 1.9 342
Total revenues and other income 1,312.2 717.4 876.5 912.7
Costs and expenses:
Qil and gas production 279.5 199.6 209.7 189.3
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 390.8 216.4 222.6 214.9
Impairment of properties and facilities - - - -
Exploration and abandonments 132.8 85.9 127.9 87.5
General and administrative 60.5 48.4 37.0 333
Reorganization - - - -
Accretion of discount on asset retirement
obligations 5.0 - - -
Interest 91.4 95.8 131.9 162.0
Other (b) 214 39.5 43.4 79.5
Total costs and expenses 981.4 685.6 772.5 7656.5
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle 330.8 31.8 104.0 146.2
Income tax benefit (provision) {c) 64.4 5.1 (4.0 6.0
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 395.2 26.7 100.0 152.2
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of tax (d) 15.4 -

Net income (loss) 410.6 267 100.0
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle per share:

24 .01
23 .00

Net income (loss) per share:
. .24 .01

Diluted . . .00
Weighied average shares outstanding:

98.5 99.4 .
99.7 99.8 00.

Balance Sheet Data (as of December 31):
Total assets . . $ 3,271.1 29544  § 29295
Long-term liabilities . . $ 1,743.7 1,804.5 § 19145
Total stockholders' equity . . $ 1,2854 9049 § 7746

(a) 1999 includes $41.8 million of option fees and liquidated damages and $30.2 million of income associated with an excise tax
refund.

{b) Other expense for 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 include losses on the early extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million, $22.3 million,
$3.8 million and $12.3 million, respectively. Other expense for 2000 and 1999 include noncash mark-to-market charges for
changes in the fair values of non-hedge financial instruments of $58.5 million and $27.0 million, respectively. See Note O of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

The Company's income tax benefit for 2003 includes a $197.7 million adjustment to reduce United Sates deferred tax asset
valuation allowances. See Note P of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data".

The Company's cumulative effect of change in accounting principle relates to the adoption of SFAS No. 143. See Notes B and
L of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item §. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2003 Highlights
Pioneer's financial and operating results for the year ended December 31, 2003 included the following highlights:

° Production volumes increased 36 percent in 2003 as compared to 2002, principally due to the completion
of the Canyon Express, Falcon and Sable development projects.

° Qil and gas revenue increased 85 percent in 2003 as a result of the increased procduction velumes and
increases in North American gas and worldwide ol prices.

° Pre-tax income increased to $330.8 miilion from $31.8 million in 2002.

° Pioneer's solid progress towards its strategic objectives over the past four years and improving key
economic indicators, together with other relevant factors and asscciated evaluations, led the Company to
reverse its allowances against United States deferred tax assets during 2003. The reversal of the
allowances against United States deferred tax assets resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax benefit
of $197.7 million during 2003 of which $104.7 million was reversed in the third quarter of 2003 (see Note
P of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding the reversal of the allowances against the
Company's United States deferred tax assets).

° Net cash provided by operating activities increased 130 percent to $763.7 million in 2003 as compared
to $332.2 million in 2602.
° The Company replaced its $575 million revolving credit facility with a new five-year $700 million

revolving credit agreement with terms similar to investment grade companies.

o The Company participated in exploration discoveries in the Harrier, Tomahawk and Raptor fields in the
deepwater Guif of Mexico and the Hawa field in Tunisia.

° The Company completed a strategic acquisition of the remaining 25 percent working interest that the
Company did not already own in the Falcon field, Harrier field and surrounding satellite prospects.

° The Company was the high bidder on 53 tracts covering an additional 159,000 acres on the Alaskan North
Slope.

@ The Company succeeded in obtaining ministerial approval for improved terms associated with the Olowi
permit in Gabon and booked 16.6 MMBOE of proved reserves in Gabon during 2003.

° The Company's successful capital investment programs resulted in the replacement of 193 percentand 216
percent of production during the one- and three-year periods ended December 31, 2003, respectively,
resulting in total proved reserves of 789.1 MMBOE at December 31, 2003.

° The Company reported acquisition and finding costs per BOE of $6.64 and $6.76 during the one- and
three-year periods ended December 31, 2003, respectively.

2003 Financial and Operating Performance
During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recorded net income of $410.6 million,

$26.7 million and $100.0 million ($3.46, $.23 and $1.00 per diluted share), respectively. Compared to 2002, the
Company's 2003 total revenues and other income increased by $594.8 million, or 83 percent, including a $596.9 million
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increase in oil and gas revenues. The increzse in oil and gas revenues was due to increases in production volumes and
increases of 12 percent, 40 percent and 53 percent in average oil, NGL and gas prices, respectively, including the effects
of commodity price hedges.

Compared to 2002, the Company's total costs and expenses increased by $295.8 million, or 43 percent, during
the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in total costs and expenses was primarily reflective of a $46.5 million
increase in exploration and abandonments expense, primarily due to increased exploration/extension drilling in the Guif
of Mexice, Argentina, Canada and South Africa, a $174.5 million increase in depletion, depreciztion and amortization
expense, primarily driven by increases in depletion associated with increased production volumes from higher-cosi-basis
Gulf of Mexico and South Africa properties and an $80.0 miilion increase in oil and gas production costs, which
primarily resuited from increases in production volumes, the strengthening of both the Argentine peso and Canadian
dollar and commeodity prices that impected variable lease operating expenses and production taxes, partially offset by
an $18.3 millicn decrease in other expense, primarily due to $22.3 million of losses recognized during 2002 associated
with debt extinguished prior to ifs stated maturity.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company's net cash provided by operating activities increased 1o
$763.7 million, as compared to $332.2 million during 2002 and $475.6 million during 2601, The increase in net cash
provided by operating activities during 2003 was primarily due to increases in oil, NGL and gas procduction volumes and
prices, as discussed above.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, successful capital investment activities increased the Company's
proved reserves to 789.1 MMBOE, reflecting the effects of strategic acquisitions of properties inthe Company's core
operating zreas and a successful drilling program which resulted in the replacement of 193 percent of production at an
acquisition and finding cost per BOE of $6.64. During the three vears ended December 31, 2003, Pioneer has replaced
216 percent of production at an acquisition and finding cost per BOE of $6.76. Costs incurred for the year ended
December 31, 2003 totaled $723.0 million, including $151.0 million of proved and unproved property acquisiticns and
$572.0 million of exploration and development drilling and seismic expenditures.

See "Resulis of Operations” and "Capital Commitments, Capital Resources and Liguidity"”, below, for more in-
depth discussions of the Company's oil and gas producing activities, including discussions pertaining to oil and gas
production volumes, prices, hedging activities, costs and expenses, capital commitments, capital resources and liquidity.

2804 Outlook

Commeodity prices. World oil prices increased during the year ended December 31, 2003 in response to political
unrest and supply disruptions in the Middle East as well as other supply and demand factors. North American gas prices
also increased during 20803 in response to continued strong supply and demand fundamentals. The Company's outlook
for 2004 commodity prices is cautiously optimistic. Significant factors that will impact 2004 commodity prices include
developments in Iraq and other Middle East countries, the extent to which members of OPEC and other cil exporting
nations are able to manage oil supply through export quotas and variations in key North American gas supply and
demand indicators. Pioneer will continue to sirategically hedge oil and gas price risk to mitigate the impact of price
volatility on its oil, NGL and gas revenues.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had hedged 18,973 barrels per day of 2004 ¢il production under swap
contracts with a weighted average fixed price to be received of $25.84 per Bbl. The Company kad also hedged 283,962
Mcf per day of 2004 gas production under swap contracts with a weighted average fixed price to be received of $4.16
per MMBtu. During January 2004, the Company increased its 2004 commodity hedge positions by entering intc 32,967
Mcf per day of first quarter gas swap coniracts with average per MMBtu fixed prices of §7.11. Additicnally, at
December 31, 2003 the Company had net deferred gains on terminated oil hedge contracts of $1.0 million that will be
recognized as increases to oil revenue during 2004 and $42.9 million of net deferred gains on terminated gas hedge
contracts that will be recognized as increases to gas revenue during 2004. See Note J of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding
the Company's commodity hedge positions at December 31, 2003. Also see "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures AboutMarket Risk" for disclosures about the Company's commodity related derivative financial instruments.




Capiral expenditures. During 2004, the Company’s budget for oil and gas capital activities is expected to range
from $550 million to $600 million, of which approximately 65 percent has been budgeted for development drilling and
facility costs and 35 percent for exploration expenditures. The Company's 2004 capital budget is allocated
approximately 70 percent to the United States, 19 percent to Argentina and the remaining 11 percent is budgeted for
expenditures in Canada, Gabon, Tunisia, South Africa and other foreign areas. Pioneer expects to drill approximately
400 exploration and development wells during 2004. During 2004 and 2005, the Company expects to expend
approximately $219 million and $348 million, respectively, of capital for development drilling and facility costs related
to its proved undeveloped reserves. '

Production growth. The Company expects that its annual 2004 worldwide preduction will range from 65
MMBCE to 73 MMBCE, or approxirmately 178 MBOE to 200 MBOE per day, an increase of 15 percent to 29 percent
over 2003 levels. The bottom end of the range includes a full year of production from the Company's deepwater Gulf
of Mexico Falcon and Harrier gas fields, the Sable oil field in South Africa and the Hawa field in Tunisia, coupled with
increases in production from the Company's 2004 cepital program and the inherent variability in production results. The
Company expects, based on quoted futures prices, to generate cash flow significantly in excess of its capital program
and has considered the potential to invest a portion of the excess cash for additional development drilling or core area
acquisitions in arriving at the top end of the 2004 production range.

The outlock for continued production growth in 2005 is strong considering that first production from several new
projects is not expected until well into 2004. The Company will have its first full year of production from the Devils
Tower, Tomahawk and Raptor deepwater fields during 2005, and the Company believes it has sufficient development
inventory to support production growth in the United States, Argentina, Canada and Tunisia. As a result, Pioneer
currently expects production in 2005 to match 2004 at 2 minimum, with considerable upside given the potential
investment of excess cash flow to develop new exploration successes and/or acquire additional assets in core areas
during 2004 and 2005.

Longer term, with several discoveries to develop for 2006 and beyend, a pipeline of exploration opportunities,
potential for continued core ares acquisitions, continuing strong commedity prices and significant excess cash flow,
Pioneer has targeted five-year average compounded annual production growth of ten percent.

Costs and expenses. The Company expects that its costs and expenses that are highly correlated with production
volumes, such zs production costs and depletion expense, will increase in absolute amounts during 2004. Additionally,
the Company expects that depletion expense will increase on a per BOE basis during 2004 as compared to 2003 due to
new production from Harrier, Tomahawk, Raptor and Devils Tower fields in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and
increased production from the Sable oil field offshore South Africa. The per BOE cost bases of these fields are higher
than that of Pioneer's average producing propeity in 2003. Additionally, the average per BOE lifting costs of Devils
Tower and Sable oil field production are expected to exceed the Company's average 2003 per BOE lifting costs. The
Company expects average per BOE production taxes to decline during 2004 as compared to 2003 as the production from
the aforementioned properties are not burdened by such taxes. Ad valorem taxes are highty correlated with prior year
commodity prices. As a consequence of increases in oif, NGL and gas prices during 2003, ad valorem taxes are expected
to be higher in 2004, as compared to 2003. The Company anticipates an increase in general and administrative expenses
during 2004 due to additional staffing and the amortization of restricted stock that is being awarded to officers and
employees in lieu of stock options, which were awarded in prior years.

Capital allocation. Four years ago, the Company made a commitment to move its financial position to investment
grade standards, and significantimprovementhas been accomplished during that period with year-end 2003 debt to book
capitalization reaching 46.9 percent as compared to 69.3 percent at the end of 1999. The Company has established a
targeted range for debt to book capitalization of 37 percent to 43 percent. Given the expanding financial strength of the
Company and expectations for significant cash flow in excess of its capital budget, the Company expects to use 2 portion
of its excess cash flow in 2004 to further reduce long-term debt by a minimum of $100 million. Additionally, the
Company's Board of Directors have approved a plan to begin a dividend program of $.20 per common share, payable
in two semi-annual installments of $.10 per common share, beginning in 2004.

During 2004 through 2006, the Company anticipates, based upon year-end futures prices, that it will have
significant excess cash flow even afier funding its typical annual capital budgets, planned dividends and achieving its
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leverzge targets. The Company considers it a high pricrity to utilize a portion of the excess cash flow to fund the
development of new exploration successes and to selectively acquire additional assets in iis core areas. The Company
will also consider using a portion of the excess cash flow for share repurchases.

First guarter 2004. Based on current estimates, the Company expects that its first quarter 2004 production will
average 168,000 to 183,000 BOESs per day, reflecting the incremental production from Harrier which began producing
in January, the variability of oil cargo shipments in Tunisia and South Africa and the seasonal decline in gas demand
during Argentina's summer season. First quarter production costs are expected to average $5.00 to0 $5.50 per BOE based
on current NYMEZX sirip prices for oil and gas. Deprecation, depietion and amortization expense is expected to average
$7.75 t0 $8.25 per BOE as a greater proportion of the Company's production is being produced from higher-cost basis
deepwater Gulf of Mexico and South Africa properties. Total exploration and abandonment expense is expected o be
$25 million to $85 million. The first quarter range includes a number of high-impact deepwater Gulf of Mexico wells
that are in progress, up to five wells expected in Gabon to further refine development plaus and test 2 new explorzation
target, increased exploration drilling in Argentina and the winter drilling program in Canada. General and administrative
expense is expected to be $17 million to $20 million, $2 million to $3 million of which relates to estimated performance-
based compensation costs. Interest expense is expected to be $21 million to $23 million and accretion of discount on
assetretirement obligations is expected to be approximately $2 million. The Company recognizes deferred income taxes
reflecting its tax position in each of its areas of operation. However, cash income taxes are expected to be only $3
million tc $5 million, principally related to Argentine income taxes and nominal alternative minimum tax in the United
States. Other than in Argentina, the Company continues to benefit from the carryforward of net operating losses and
other positive tax atiributes.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements for inclusion in this Report in accordance with
accounting principles that are generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). See Note B of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a comprehensive discussion
of the Company's significant accounting policies. GAAP represents a comprehensive set of accounting and disclosure
rules and requirements, the application of which requires management judgments and estimates including, in certain
circumstances, choices between acceptable GAAP alternatives. Following is a discussion of the Company's most critical
accounting estimates, judgments and uncertainties that are inherent in the Company's application of GAAP:

Accounting for ofl end gas producing activities. The accounting for and disclosure of oil and gas producing
activities requires the Company's management to choose between GAAP alternatives and to make judgments about
estimates of future uncertainties.

Successful efforts method of accounting. The Company utilizes the successful efforts method of accounting for
oil and gas oroducing activities as oppesed to the alternate acceptable full cost method. In general, the Company
believes that, during pericds of active exploration, net assets and net income are more conservatively measured under
the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing activities than under the full cost method. The
critical difference between the successful efforts method of accounting and the full cost method is as follows: under the
successful efforts method, exploratory dry holes and geological and geophysical exploration costs are charged against
earnings during the pericds in which they occur; whereas, under the full cost method of accounting, such cosis and
expeunses are capitalized as assets, pooled with the costs of successful wells and charged against the earnings of future
perieds as a component of depletion expense. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
recognized exploration, 2bandonment, geological and geophysical expense of $132.8 million, $85.9 million and $127.9
million, respectively, under the successful efforts method.

Proved reserve estimates. Estimates of the Company's proved reservesincluded in this Report are prepared in
accordance with GAAP and SEC guidelines. The accuracy of a reserve estimate is a function of:

e the quality and quantity of available data;

s the interpretation of that data;

° the accuracy of various mandated economic assumptions; and
° the judgment of the persons preparing the estimate.
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The Company's proved reserve information included in this Report as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was based
on evzluations audited by independent petroleum engineers with respect to the Company’s major properties and prepared
by the Company's engineers with respectto all other properties. The Company's proved reserve information included
in this Report as of December 31, 2001 was based on evaluations prepared by the Company's engineers. Estimates
prepared by other third parties may be higher or lower than those included herein.

Because these estimates depend on many assumptions, all of which may substantially differ from future actual
results, reserve estimates will be different from the quantities of oil and gas that are ultimately recovered. In addition,
results of drilling, testing and production after the date of an estimate may justify material revisions to the estimate.

It should not be assumed that the present value offuture net cash flows included in this Report as of December
31, 2003 is the current market value of the Company's estimated proved reserves. In accordance with SEC requirements,
the Company based the estimated present value of future net cash flows from proved reserves on prices and costs on the
date of the estimate. Actual future prices and costs may be materially higher or lower than the prices and costs as of the
date of the estimate.

The Company's estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense. If the estimates of proved
reserves decline, the rate at which the Company records depletion expense will increase, reducing future net income.
Such a decline may result from lower market prices, which may make it uneconomic to drill for and produce higher cost
fields. In addition, a decline in proved reserve estimates may impact the outcome of the Contpany's assessment of its
oil and gas producing properties for impairment.

Impairment of proved oil and gas properties. The Company reviews its long-lived proved properties to be held
and used whenever managementdetermines that events or circumstances indicate that the recorded carrying value of the
properties may not be recoverable. Management assesses whether or not an impairment provision is necessary based
upon its outlock of future commodity prices and net cash flows that may be generated by the properties. Proved oil and
gas properties are reviewed for impairment by depletable pool, which is the lowest levelat which depletion of proved
properties is calculated.

Impairment of unproved oil and gas properties. Management periodically assesses individually significant
unproved oil and gas properties for impairment, on a project-by-project basis. Management's assessment of the results
of exploration activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all or a portion of such projects
impact the amount and timing of impairment provisions.

Suspended wells. The Company suspends the costs of exploratory wells that discover hydrecarbons pending a
final determination of the commercial potential of the related oil and gas fields. The ultimate disposition of these well
costs is dependent on the results of future drilling activity and development decisions. If the Company decides not to
pursue additional appraisal activities or development of these fields, the costs of these wells will be charged to
exploration and abandonment expense. At December 31, 2003, the Company had $88.6 million of suspended
exploratory well costs included in property, plant and equipment.

Assessments of functional currencies. Management determines the functional currencies of the Company's
subsidiaries based on an assessment of the currency of the economic environment in which a subsidiary primarily
realizes and expends its operating revenues, costs and expenses. The U.S. dellar is the functional currency of all of the
Company's international operations except Canada. The assessment of functional currencies can have a significant
impact on pericdic results of operations and financial pesition.

Argentine economic and currency measures. The accounting for and remeasurement of the Company's
Argentine balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 reflect management's assumptions regarding some
uncertainties unique to Argentina's cuirent economic situation. See Note B of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a description of the assumptions
utifized in the preparation of these financial statements. The Argentine economic and political situation continues to
evolve and the Argentine government may enact future regulations or policies that, when finalized and adopted, may
materially impact, among other items, (i) the realized prices the Company receives for the commodities it produces and
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sells; (if) the timing of repatriations of excess cash flow to the Company's corporate headguarters in the United States;
(iii) the Commpany's asset valuations; and (iv) peso-denominated monetary assets and liabilities.

Deferred tux asset valuation allowgnces. From 1998 untit 2003, the Company maintained 2 valvetion allowance
against a portion of its deferred tax asset position in the United States. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes", requires that the Company continually assess both pesitive and negative
evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets can be realized prior to their
expiration. In the third quarter of 2003 and as of December 31, 2003, the Company concluded that it is more likely than
not that it will realize its gross deferred tax asset position in the United States after giving consideration to relevant facts
and circumstances.

Accordingly, during the third quarter of 2003, the Company reversed its remaining valuation allowance in the
United States, resulting in the recognition of a deferred tax benefit of $104.7 million. For 2003 in total, the Company
reversed $197.7 million of United States valuation allowances resulting in a net deferred tax benefit for the year.
Further, the third quarter 2003 reversal of the allowance increased stockholders' equity by $32.6 million as the Company
recognized the tax effects of previous stock option exercises and deferred hedging gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. See Note P of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Ttem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding the Company's United States deferred tax
assets and a specific discussion of the relevant facts and circumstances that were assessed.

Pioneer will continue to monitor Company-specific, oil and gas industry and werldwide economic factors and
will reassess the likelihood that the Company's net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax attributes in each
jurisdiction will be utilized prior to their expiration. There can be no assurances that facts and circumstances will not
materizlly change and require the Company to reestablish a United States deferred tex asset valuation allowance in a
future period. As of December 31, 2003, the Company does not believe there is sufficient positive evidence to reverse
its valuation allowances related to foreign tax jurisdictions.

Litigation cnd environmental contingencies. The Company makes judgments and estimates in recording
liabiiities for ongoing litigation and environmental remediation. Actual costs can vary from such estimates for 2 variety
of reasons. The costs to setile litigation can vary from estimates based on differing interpretations of laws and opinions
and assessments on the amount of damages. Similarly, environmental remediation liabilities are subject to change
because of changes.in laws, regulations, additional information cobtained relating to the extent and nature of site
contamination and improvements in technology. Under GAAP, a liability is recorded for these types of contingencies
if the Company determines the loss to be both probable and reasonably estimated. See Note I of Notes to Consclidated
Financial Statements included in "ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information
regarding the Company's conumitments and contingencies.

Resu®ts of Operations

Qil and gas revennes. Revenues from oil and gas operations totaled $1.3 billion during 2003, as compared to
$701.8 million during 2002 and $847.0 million during 2001, representing an 85 percent increase from 2002 to 2003.
The revenue increase from 2002 to 2003 was due to a 36 percent increase in BOE production, a 12 percent increase in
oil prices, a 40 percent increase in NGL prices and a 53 percent increase in gas prices, including the effects of
commodity price hedges. The increased producticn is principally attributable to incremental gas preduction from the
deepwater Gulf of Mexico Canyon Express and Falcon field projects, initial oil production in South Africa and Tunisia
and increased oil and gas production in Argentina, offset by normal production declines. The revenue decrease from
2001 to 2002 was principaily due to year-on-year worldwide average oil, NGL and gas price declines of five percernt,
19 percent and 23 percent, respectively, including the effects of commodity price hedges, and an eight percent decline
in worldwide oil production, partially offset by worldwide NGL and gas production increases of four percent and two
percent, respectively.
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The following table provides production volumes and average reported prices, including the results of hedging
activities, by geographic area and in total, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Average daily production:
Cil (Bbis)
United States ... ..cvvrreriit i 24,525 23,437 23,641
ATgentina . ....... .. e 8,687 7,984 9,769
Canada ... 111 124 831
AFICA . o 1,981 - -
Worldwide .. ..o 35,304 31,545 34,241
NGLs (Bbls)
United S1AtES . ..\ vv ittt e 20,338 20,512 19,815
ATEENtING ... .. ooi ittt 1,318 696 547
Canada ..., i e e 906 946 1,008
Worldwide . ... 22,562 22,154 21,370
Gas (Mcf)
United SEAtES . ..o v vttt e 445,609 232,360 212,629
ATZENTING ...ttt i e 94,128 78,220 87,204
Canada .. ... 41,669 48,365 50481
Worldwide . ... 581,406 358,945 350,314
Total (BOE)
United SEaLES . .t v ittt ettt e e 119,129 82,677 78,893
ATEENENA . .. ettt e e 25,694 21,716 24,851
Canada ... .. e 7,962 9,131 10,253
Africa ... 1,981 - -
Worldwide ... ..o 154,766 113,524 113,997
Average reported prices:
Oil (per Bbl)
United States . ........ ..o $ 2525 $ 23.66 $ 2434
ATEENting ... ... .. $ 25.62 $ 2063 § 2379
CaANAGA .« vttt e e $ 29.10 $ 2226 $ 21.87
AfTICA .ottt $ 2952 $ - $ -
Worldwide ... ... $ 2559 $ 2289 $ 24.12
NGL (per Bbi)
United States . ....cooovrei it $ 19.04 $ 1377 $ 16.88
ATGENHNG .« ..ottt e $ 2285 $ 1456 $ 1929
Canada . ... i e § 2480 $ 1677 § 211t
Worldwide ... ... oo $ 1950 $ 1392 $ 17.14
Gas (per Mcf)
United STAIES . ..o v v v vt e e e $ 449 $§ 316 $ 410
ATentiNg .. ..ottt e $ .56 $ 48 § L3l
Canada . ..o e $ 390 $ 250 $ 286
Worldwide .. ... ..ot e § 381 $ 249 $ 323
Annual percentage increase (decrease) in average worldwide
reported prices:
Ol e 12 ) -
NGL o 40 (19) 1%
GaS oottt 53 23) 15

Hedging activities. The oil and gas prices that the Company reports are based on the market price received for
the commodities adjusted by the results of the Company's cash flow hedging activities. The Company uiilizes commodity
swap and collar contracts in order to (i) reduce the effect of price volatility on the commodities the Company produces
and sells, (ii) support the Company's annual capital budgeting and expenditure plans and (iii) reduce commedity price
risk associated with certain capital projects. The effective portions of changes in the fair values of the Company's
commodity price hedges are deferred as increases or decreases to stockholders' equity until the underlying hedged
transaction occurs. Consequently, changes in the effective portions of commodity price hedges add volatility to the

32




Company's reported stockholders' equity until the hedge derivative matures or is terminated. See Note [ of Notes (o
Consclidzted Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for information
concerning the impact to oil and gas revenues during the vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 from the
Company's hedging activities, the Company's open hedge positions at December 31, 2003 and descriptions of the
Company's hedge and non-hedge commodity derivatives. Also see "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk” for additional disclosure about the Company's commodity related derivative financial instruments.

Fnterest and other income. The Company recorded interest and other income toteling $12.3 million, $11.2
million and $21.8 during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company's interest and
other income was comprised of revenue that was not directly attributable to oil and gas producing activities or oil and
gas property divestitures. See Note M of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding interest and other income.

Goin on dispesition of assets. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
completed asset divestitures for net proceeds of $35.7 million, $118.9 million and $113.5 millicn, respectively.
Associated therewith, the Company recorded gains on disposition of assets of $ 1.3 million, $4.4 million and $7.7 million
during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The net cash proceeds from asset divestitures during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
used, together with net cash flows provided by operating activities, to fund additions to il and gas properties and to
reduce cutstanding indebtedness. See Note N of Notes to Conseclidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Datz" for additional information regarding asset divestitures.

O] and gas produciion cests. The Company recorded production costs of $279.5 million, $199.6 million and
$209.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The increase in total production
costs during 2003 as compared tc 2002 is primarily attributable to the increase in production volumes, while the decreese
in total production costs during 2002 as comypared to 2001 is principally attributable to lower production tax and field
fuel expenses due to lower commodity prices.

Total production costs per BOE increased during the year ended December 31, 2003 by three percent and
decreased during the year ended December 31, 2002 by four percent. [n general, lease operating expenses and workover
expenses represent the components of oil and gas producticn costs over which the Company has management conirol,
while production taxes, ad valorem taxes and field fuel expenses are directly related to commodity price changes. The
increase in production costs per BOE during 2003 was primarily due to increases in per BOE lease operating expenses,
field fuel expenses and production taxes, partially offset by decreases in per BOE a¢ valorem taxes and workover
expenses. The increase in per BOE lease operating expenses was due to the strengthening of both the Argentine peso
and the Canadian dollar, Argentine inflation and higher average lifting costs incuzred on South African Sable oil field
production, while the increases in per BOE field fuel expenses and production taxes primarily resulted from increases
in North American gas prices and world oil prices. The decrease in per BOE ad valorem taxes is primarily due to the
incremental production from the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, Argenting, South Africa and Tunisia fields which are not
subject to ad valorem taxes.

The decrease in production costs during 2002 was primarily due to decreases in field fuel expense and producticn
taxes as a result of lower North American average gas prices and lower Argentine lease operating expenses resulting
from lower Argentine expenses on a2 U.S. dollar equivalent basis due to the devaluation of the Argentine pesc versus
the U.S. dollar, partizily offset by moderately higher workover expenses, ad valorem taxes {which are computed using
prior year average annual commodity prices) and declines in the third party gas processing and {reating margin
component of lease operating expense.
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The following tables provide the components of the Company's total production costs per BOE and total
production costs per BOE by geographic area for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Yezr Endec December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Lease operating expenses 3.07 $ 287 3 276
Taxes:
Production .62 .54
Ad valorem 40 .54
Field fuel expenses 72 62
Workover expenses 14 25
Total production costs . $__4.82

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Total production costs:
United States 546 5.80 5.92
Argentina 2.78 1.75 293
Canada 4.49 3.23 3.33
3.99 - -
Worldwide 4.95 4.82 5.04

Depletion, depreciation and amortization expense, The Company's total depletion, depreciation and amortization
expense per BOE was $6.92, $5.22 and $5.35 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Depleticn expense, the largest component of depletion, depreciation and amortization, was $6.75, $5.01 and $5.02 per
BOE during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and depreciation and amgrtization of
other property and eguipment was $.17, $.21 and $.33 per BOE during each of the respective years. During 2003, the
increase in per BOE depletion expense was due to increases in higher cost-basis deepwater Gulf of Mexico and Scuth
African production volumes and downward revisions to proved reserves in Canada.

The following table provides depletion expense per BOE by geographic area for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001:
Year Ended Decemiber 31,
2003 2002 2001

Depletion expense:
United States 6.85 4.64 4.46
Argentina 4.96 5.00
Canada 9.98 8.36
10.69 -
Worldwide . ... ... 6.75 5.01




Exploration, abandonments, geological and geoplhysical costs. Exploration, abandonments, geological and
geophysical costs totaled $132.8 million, $85.9 miflion and $127.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The following table sets forth the components of the Company's exploration,
abandonments, geological and geophysical costs by geographic region for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001:

Alrica
United and
States Argenting Carada Cther Total
(im thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Geological and geophysical costs .. ......... $40,783 $ 7,689 $ 4,426 $ 3,903 § 56,801
Exploratorydryholes .................... 27,015 2,672 10,963 20,250 60,960
Leasehold abandonments and other ......... 4934 7.715 2,302 108 15.059

$72,732 $18.076 $17.691 $24261 $132760

Year Ended December 31, 2002:

Ceological and geophysical costs .. ......... $ 22,761 $ 4,138 $ 3,544 $ 7,223 § 37,666
EBxploratorydryholes . .......... ... ... .. 32,557 3,294 1,220 (539) 36,532
Leasehold abandonments and other ......... 7,637 2.874 1.077 108 11,696

$62,955 $10,306 $_5.841 $_6792 $_85,804

Year Ended December 31, 2001:

Geological and geophysical costs . .......... $29,620 $ 6,541 $ 2,373 $13,678 § 52,212
Exploratorydryholes . ................ ... 34,883 6,040 5,473 10,432 56,828
Leasehold abandonments and other ......... 5,546 11,276 2.036 8 18,866

$70.049 $23 857 $_9.882 $24,118 $127.906

The increase in 2003 exploration, abandonments, geological and geophysical expense, as compared to 2002, was
primerily due to increased geological and geophysical expenditures supportive of exploration activities in the Gulf of
Mexico and Alaska and 2 $24.4 million increase in exploratory dry hole expense. The increase in expleratory dry hole
expense during 2003 was primarily due to an increase in Canadian exploratory drilling activities and three unsuccessful
wells drilied in South Africa and one unsuccessful well drilled in Tunisia.

The decrease in 2002 exploration, abandonments, geological and geophysical expense reflected a decline in
Argentine exploration activities 2s the Company monitcred and assessed the economic environment and risks associated
with Argentina; a decline in exploratory dry holes and geclogical and geophysical expense in Africa, as the Company
assessed its exploratory successes in Gabon and Tunisie; and the allocation of 2 larger percentage of the Company's 2002
capital budget to the development of its significant discoveries in the Gulf of Mexico and offshore South Africa.

Approximately 38 percent of the Company's 2003 costs incurred for oil and gas producing activities were
exploration costs as compared to 20 percent i 2002 and 34 percent in 2001.

General and administrative expenses. The Company's general and administrative expenses tstaled $60.5 million
($1.07 per BOE), $48.4 million ($1.17 per BOE) and $37.0 million ($.89 per BOE) during the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The increase in general and administrative expense during 2003, as compared
to 2002, was primarily due to increases in admimistrative staff and perfermance-related compensation costs, including
the amortization of restricted stock awarded to officers, directors and key employees during 2003 and 2002,

The increase in administrative expense during the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001 was
primarily due to the elimination of operating overhead being charged by the Company to the 42 affiliated partnerships
that were merged into & wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company during December 2001 and amortization of restricted
stock awarded in 2002,

See Notes D and G of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Staternents and
SupplementaryData" for information regarding the affiliated parinership mergers and the restricted stock awards in 2003
and 2002 and their vesting periods, respectively.
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Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations. During the year ended December 31, 2003 the Company
recorded accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations of $5.0 million. The provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” ("SFAS 143™) require that the accretion
of discount on asset retirement obligations be classified in the consolidated statement of operations separate from interest
expense. Prior to 2003 and the adoption of SFAS 143, the Company classified accretion of discount on asset retirement
obligations as a component of interest expense. The Company's interest expense during each of the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 included $2.6 million of accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations that was
calculated prior to the adoption of SFAS 143 based on asset retirement obligations recorded in purchased business
combinations. See "Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle" below and Notes B and L of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional
information regarding the Company's adoption of SFAS 143.

Interest expense. Interest expense was $91.4 million, $95.8 million and $132.0 million during the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, while the weighted average interest rate on the Company's
indebtedness for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 5.3 percent as compared to 5.7 percent and 7.5 percent for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps. The
decrease in interest expense for 2003 as compared to 2002 was primarily due to $4.8 million of interest savings
associated with the July 2002 repayment of a $45.2 million West Panhandle gas field capital obligation (the "West
Panhandle Capital Obligation") which bore interest at an annual rate of 20 percent; $4.1 million of incremental savings
from the Company's interest rate hedging program; a $2.6 million decrease in accretion expense (see "Accretion of
discount on asset retirement obligations”, above); and lower underlying market interest rates and outstanding debt.
Partially offsetting the decreases in interest expense was a $6.8 million decrease in interest capitalized during 2003 as
compared to 2002 due to the completion of the Canyon Express and Faleon field development projects.

The decline in 2002 interest expense as compared to 2001, was primarily due to incremental interest savings of
$18.0 million from the Company's interest rate hedging program; 2 $6.3 million increase in interest capitalized; interest
savings from the retirement of the Company's outstanding 11-5/8 percent and 10-5/8 percent senior subordinated notes
during the third quarter of 2001and $38.7 million of the Company's 9-5/8 percent senior notes during the fourth quarter
of 2001; interest savings from the repurchase of 347.1 miilion of 9-5/8 percent senior notes and $13.9 million of 8-7/8
percent senior notes during 2002; interest savings from the repaymentof West Panhandle Capital Obligation; and interest
savings from reductions in underlying market interest rates.

See Note E of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" for additional information about the Company's long-term debt and interest expense.

Other expenses. Other expenses were $21.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2003, as compared to
$39.6 million during 2002 and $43.3 million during 2001. See Note O of Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents
included in "Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a detail of the components included in other
expenses.

Income tax provisions (benefits). The Company recognized a consolidated income tax benefit of $64.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2003 and conselidated income tax provisions of $5.1 million and $4.0 million
during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company's consolidated tax benefit in 2003 was
comprised of a $.1 million current United States federal tax provision, an $11.1 million current foreign income tax
provision, $76.3 million of deferred United States federal and state tax benefits and $.7 million of deferred foreign tax
provisions. The 2003 deferred United States federal and state tax benefits include a $197.7 million benefit from the
reversal of the Company's valuation allowances against United States deferred tax assets, of which $104.7 million was
reversed in the third quarter of 2003. As a result of the reversal of the valuation allowances against the Company's
United States deferred tax assets, the effective tax rate on the Company's future earnings in the United States will
approximate statutory rates.
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The Company's consolidated tax provision for 2002 was comprised of current United States state and local taxes
of $.2 million, current foreign taxes of $2.1 million and deferred foreign tax provisions of $2.8 million. The Company's
consolidated tax provision for 2001 was comprised of current U.S. state and local taxes of $1.1 million, current foreign
taxes of $10.5 million and deferred foreign tex benefits of $7.6 million.

See "Critical Accounting Estimates” above and Note P of Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements included
in "Item 8. Financial Staternents and Supplementary Data” for additional information regarding the Company's tax
position.

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. As previousiy discussed, the Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS 143 on January 1, 2003 and recognized 2 $15.4 million benefit from the cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle, net of $1.3 million of associated Argentine deferred income taxes during the year ended
December 31, 2003.

Cn January 1, 2003, the Company alsc adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 145, "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 anc¢ 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical
Corrections” ("SFAS 145"), the provisions of which did not result in 2 cumulative effect adjustment. Inaccordance with
the provisions of SFAS 145, the Company reclassified to other expense extracrdinary losses from the early
extinguishment of debt of $22.3 million and $3.8 million realized during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

See Note B of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "ltemn 8. Financial Statements znd
Supplementary Data® for additional information regarding the Company's adoption of SFAS 143 and SFAS 145,

Capital Commitments, Capital Resources and Liguidity

Capitel commizments. The Company's primary needs for cash are for exploration, development and acquisitions
of oil and gas properties, repayment of contractual obligations and working capital funding. Funding for exploration,
development and acquisitions of il and gas properties and repayment of contrectual obligations may be provided by
any combination of internally-generated cash flow, proceeds from the disposition of non-strategic assets or ziternative
financing sources as discussed in "Capital resources” below. Funding for the Company's working capital obiigations
is provided by internally-generated cash flows.

Oil and gas properties. The Company's cash expenditures for additions to oil and gas properties during the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled $688.1 millicn, $614.7 million and $529.7 millicn, respectively. The
Company's 2003 expenditures for additions to oil and gas properties were internally funded by $763.7 million of net cash
provided by operating activities. The Company's 2002 expenditures for additions to oil and gas properties were funded
by $332.2 millicn of net cash provided by opersting activities, $118.9 million of proceeds from the disposition of assets
and 2 portion of the proceeds from the issuance of 11.5 million shares of the Company's common stock during April
2002. The Company's 2001 expenditures were internally funded by $475.6 million of net cash provided by operating
activities and a portion of the Company's $113.5 million of proceeds from disposition of assets.

The Company sirives to maintzin its indebtedness at reasonable levels in order to provide sufficient financial
flexibility to take advantage of future opportunities. The Company's capital budget for 2004 is expected to range from
$550 million to $600 million. The Company believes that net cash provided by operating activities during 2004 will
be sufficient to fund the 2004 capital expenditures budget as well as reduce long-term debt by a minimurm of $100
million and fund the recently approved plan to begin an annual dividend program of $.20 per common share beginning
in 2004. For additional information regarding the Company's plans for 2004, see "2004 OCutlook" above.

Contractual obligations, including off-balance sheet obligations. The Company's contractual obligations include
iong-term debt, operating leases, drilling commitments, derivative obligations and other liabilities. From time to time,
the Company enters into off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions that can give rise to material off-balance shee
obligations of the Company. As of December 31, 2003, the material off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions
that the Company has entered into include (i) $47.6 million of undrawn letters of credit, (if) operating lease zgreements,
(iii) drilling commitments and (iv) contractual obligations for which the ultimate settlement amounts are not fixed and
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determinable such as derivative contracts that are sensitive to future changes in comumodity prices and gas transportation
commitments. See "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a table of changes in
the fair value of the Company's derivative contract assets and liabilities during the year ended December 31, 2003 and
Note I of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data" for additional information regarding future mininmum lease payments and gas transportation commitments.

The following table summarizes by pericd the Company's payments due for contractual cbligations estimated as
of December 31, 2003:
Payments Due by Year
2005 and 2007 and
2006 2008 Thereafter
(in thousands)

Long-term debt (a) $ 135,239 $ 669,750 $ 750,472
Cperating leases (b) 81,669 44950 24,174
Drilling commitments (c) 6,902 602 -
Derivative obligations {d) 161,574 41,640 7,185 -
Other liabilities (¢) 38.798 36,201 32.790 76,650

$249.488 $301,651 $ 755,277 $_851.296

See Note E of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
See Note I of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
Drilling commitments represent future minimum expenditure commitments under contracts that the Company was a party to
on December 31, 2003 for drilling rig services and well commitments.

Derivative obligations represent net liabilities for cil and gas commodity derivatives that were valued as of December 31, 2603.
These liabilities include $8.8 million of current liabilities that are fixed in amount and are not subject to continuing market risk.
The ultimate settlement amounts of the remaining portions of the Company's derivative obligations are unknown because they
are subject to continuing market risk. See "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk"” and Note
J of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for
additional information regarding the Company's derivative obligations.

The Company's other liabilities represent cuirent and noncurrent other liabilities that are comprised of benefit obligations,
litigation contingencies, asset retirement obligations and other obligations for which neither the uitimate settlement amounts
nor their timings can be precisely determined in advance. See Notes G, I and L of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding the Company's benefit
obligations, litigation contingencies and asset retirement obligations, respectively.

Capital resources. The Company’s primary capital resources are net cash provided by operating activities, proceeds
from financing activities and proceeds from sales of non-sirategic assets. The Company expects that these resources will
be sufficient to fund its capital commitments in 2004.

Operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities during the years endedDecember 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 were $763.7 million, $332.2 million and $475.6 million, respectively.  Net cash provided by operating
activities in 2003 increased by $431.5 million, or 130 percent, as compared to that of 2002. The increase in 2003 was
primarily due to increased production volumes and higher commodity prices as compared to 2002. Net cash provided
by operating activities in 2002 decreased by $143.4 million, or 30 percent, as compared to that of 2001. The decrease
in 2002 net cash provided by operating activities was principally due to declines in commeodityprices, offset partially
by declines in interest expense.

Investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001were $662.3 million, $508.1 million and $422.7 million. The $154.2 million increase in cash used in investing
activities during 2003 as compared to 2002 was primarily due to a $73.4 million increase in additions to oil and gas
properties and an $83.2 million decrease in proceeds from disposition of assets. The cash proceeds from asset
divestitures during 2003 were used to reduce outstanding indebtedness. The cash proceeds fromasset divestitures during
2002 and 2001 were used to fund a portion of the Company's 2002 and 2001 capital expenditures and for general
corporate obligations. See "Results of Operations”, above, and Note N of Notes to Consslidated Financial Statements
included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding asset
divestitures.




Financing activities. Net cashused in financing activities totaled $91.7 million and $64.0 million during the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2001. During the year ended December 31, 2002, financing activities provided $170.9
million of net cash. During 2003, financing activities were comprised of $105.5 million of net principle payments on
long-term debt, $14.1 milkicn of payments of other noncurrent liabilities, $2.8 million of loan fees and $2.3 million of
treasury stock purchases, partially offset by $33.0 million of proceeds from the exercise of long-term incentive plan stock
options and employee stock purchases. During 2002, the Company's financing activities were comprised of $236.0
million of proceeds, net of issuance costs, from the sale of 11.5 miilion shares of the Company's common stock; $48.0
millicnof net borrowings of long-term debt; and $14.4 million of proceeds from the exercise of long-term incentive plan
stock options and employee stock purchases, partially offset by $124.2 million of payments of other noncurrent liabilities
and $3.3 millionof debt issuance costs. During 2001, the Company's financing activities were comprised of$5.1 million
to repay long-term debt, $53.4 million to repay other noncurrent liabilities and $13.0 million to purchase treasury stock,
partially offset by $7.5 million of net cash provided from the exercise of long-term incentive plan stock options and
empleyee stock purchases.

Over the three-year pericd ended December 31, 2003, the Company has entered into financing transactions with
the intent of reducing its cost of capital and increasing liguidity through the extension of debt maturities. See Notes B
and J of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data”
and "Ttem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for more information about the Company's
debt instruments and interest rate hedging activities.

The Company's future debt level is dependent primarily on net cash provided by operating activities, proceeds
from financing activities and proceeds generated from asset dispositions. The Company believes it has substantial
borrowing capacity to meet any unanticipated cash requirements, and during low commedity price periods, the Company
has the flexibility to increase borrowings and/or modify its capital spending to meet its contractual cbligations and
maintain its debt ratings.

As the Company pursues its strategy, it may utilize various financing sources, including fixed and floating rate
debt, convertible securities, preferred stock or common stock. The Company may also issue securities in exchange for
oil and gas properties, stock or other interests in other oil and gas companies or related assets. Additional securities may
be of a class preferred to commeon stock with respectto such matters as dividends and liquidation rights and may also
have other rights and preferences as determined by the Company's Board of Directors.

Ligesidity. The Company's principal source of short-term liquidity is its revelving credit facility. During
December 2003, the Company entered into a new five-year revolving credit agreement (the "New Credit Facility") that
matures in December 2008. The New Credit Facility replaced the Company's $575 million revolving credit facility (the
"Prior Credit Facility") that had a scheduled maturity in March 2005. The terms of the New Credit Facility provide for
initial apgregate loan commitments of $ 700 million ficm a syndication of participating banks (the "Lenders"). Aggregate
loan commitments under the New Credit Facility may be increased to a maxirmum aggregate amount of $1 billion if the
Lenders increase their loan commitments or loan commitments of new financial mstitutions are added ic the New Credit
Facility. Outstending borrowings under the New Credit Facility totaled $160 million as of December 31, 2003.
Including $28.8 million of undrawn and outstanding letters of credit under the New Credit Facility, the Company has
$511.2 million of unused borrowing capacity as of December 31, 2003.

Book capitalization end current ratie. The Company's book capitalization at December 31, 2003 was $3.3
billion, consisting of debt of $1.6 billicn and stockholders' equity of $1.7 billion. The Company's debt to book
capitalization was 46.9 percent at December 31, 2003 as commared to 54.8 percent at December 31, 2002. The
Comparny'sratio of current assets to current liabilities was .48 at December 31, 2003 and .54 at December 31, 2002. The
decline in the Company's ratic of current assets to current labilities was primarity due to increases in current hedge
derivative obligations and trade payables. As more fully discussed in "2004 Cutlook” above, the Company has targeted
a range for debt to book capitalization of between 37 percent and 43 percent.




New Accounting Development

In its recent review of registrants’ filings, the staff of the SEC has taken the position that Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goeodwill and Other Intangible Assets” ("SFAS 142%), requires oil and gas entities to
separately report on their balance sheets the costs of leasehold mineral interests, including related accumulated depletion,
as intangible assets and provide related disclosures. The Company has historically included producing leasehold costs
in the proved properties caption on its balance sheet since the value of the leases is inseparable from the value of the
related oil and gas reserves. This classification is consistent with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 19, "Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing Companies”, and standard industry
practice. Almost all costs included in the umproved properties caption on the balance sheet are leasehold mineral
interests that are regularly evaluated for impairment based on lease term and drilling activity. The SEC staff has referred
the question of SFAS 142 applicability for consideration by the Emerging Issues Task Force. Ifthe provisions of SFAS
142 are determined to be applicable to oil and gas leasehold mineral interests, reclassifications within property, plant
and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and additional disclosures may be required. As of December 31,
2003, the Company has not determined the amount of such reclassifications, if applicable. The Company does not
believe that the provisions of SFAS 142, if determined to be applicable, will have a material impact on its financial
position, results of operations or liquidity.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The following quantitative and qualitative information is provided about financial instruments to which the
Company was a party as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and from which the Company may incur future gains or losses
from changes in market interestrates, foreign exchangerates or commodity prices. Although certain derivative contracts
that the Company is a party to do not qualify as hedges, the Company does not enter into derivative or other financial
mstruments for trading purposes.

The fair value of the Company's derivative comiracts are determined based on counterparties’ estimates and
valuation models. The Company did not change its valuation methed during the year ended December 31, 2003. During
2003, the Company was 2 party to forward foreign exchange contracts, commodity and interest rate swap contracts and
commodity collar contracts. See Note J of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial
Staternents and Supplementary Data" for additional information regarding the Company's derivative contracts, including
deferred gains and losses on terminated derivative contracts. The following table reconciles the changes that occurred
in the fair values of the Company's open derivative contracts during 2003:

Derivative Comtract Assets (Liabilities)

Foreign
Imterest Exchange
Commodity Rate Rate Taotal

(ir thousands)
Fair value of contracts outstanding

as of December 31,2002 ............ $ (108,804) $ - $§ 15 $(108,789)
Changes in contract fair values(a) .. ...... (282,530) 21,497 3 (261,030)
Contract realizations:

Maturities .. .....:..oiiiii i, 136,425 (3,230) (18) 133,177

Termination - cash settlements . ... .... 125 (18,267) - (18,142)

Termination - future net obligations . . . . 53,362 - - 53362

Fair value of contracts outstanding
as of December 31,2003 ............ $_(201.422) S - $ - $(201.422)

(a) At inception, new derivative contracts entered into by the Company have no inirinsic value.

Quantitative Disclosures

Interest rate sensitivigy. The following tables provide information about other financial instruments that the
Company was a party to as of December 31,2003 and 2002 and that are or were sensitive to changes in interest rates.
For debt cbligations, the tables present maturities by expected maturity dates, the weighted average interest rates

40




expected to be paid on the debt given current contractual terms and market conditions and the debt's estimated fair value.
For fixed rate debt, the weighted average interest rate represents the contractual fixed rates that the Company was
obligated to periodically pay on the debt as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. For variable rate debt, the average interest
rate represents the average rates being paid on the debt prejected forward proportionate to the forward yield curve for

the six-month LIBCR.
Imterest Rate Sensitivity
Debt Obligations as of December 31, 2003
Liability
Fair Value at
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2004 2005 2086 2007 2008 Thereafter Total 2003
(in thousands, except interest rates)
Total Debt:
Fixed rate maturities ...... $ - $135,239 § - $155,253  $354,497  $750,472 $1,395,461  $(1,549,026)
Weighted average
interest rate (%) ......... 7.93 7.86 7.83 7.81 8.34 8.37
Variable rate maturities .... § - $ - $ - $ - $160,000 $ - $ 160,000 § (1690,000)
Average interest rate (%) . . . 2.87 4.28 5.27 5.91 6.28 -
Imterest Rate Sensitivity
Debt Obligations as of December 31, 2002
Liability
Falr Value at
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2805 2006 2007 Thereafter Total 2002
(im thousamds, except interest rates)
Total Debt:
Fixed rate maturities ...... $ - $ - $146,704  $ - $161,130  $1,100,702  $1,408,536 $ (1,484,009)
Weighted average
interest rate (%) . ........ 7.94 7.94 7.87 7.83 7.81 7.77

Variable rate maturities .... $ - $ - $260,000 § - $ - $ - $ 260,000 $ (260,000)
Average interest rate (%) . . . 2.89 4.08 5.27 - - -

Forzign exchange rate semsivivity. There were no outstanding foreign exchange rate hedge derivatives at
December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2002, the Company was a party to a foreign exchange rate derivative that
matured during January 2003 as an $18 thousand asset of the Company.

Commodity price semsitivigy. The following tables provide information about the Company's oil and gas
derivative financial instruments that were sensitive to changes in oil and gas prices as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, all of the Company's oi! and gas derivative financial instruments qualified as
hedges.

Commodity hedge instruments. The Company hedges commedity price risk with swap and collar contracts. Swap
contracts provide a fixed price for 2 notional amount of sales volumes. Collar contracts provide minimum ("floor™) 2ad
maximurm ("ceiling") prices for the Company on a notional amount of sales volumes, thereby allowing some price
participation if the relevant index price closes above the floor price.

See Notes B, C and J of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data" for a description of the accounting procedures followed by the Company relative to hedge
derivative financial instruments and for specific information regarding the terms of the Company's derivative financial
instruments that are sensitive to changes in oil and gas prices.
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Oill Price Sensitivity
Derivative Financial Instruments as of December 31, 2003
Liabibity
Fair Value at
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2003
(in thousands)

Cil Hedge Derivatives {(a):
Average daily notional Bbl volumes:
Swap contracts 18,973 17,000 5,000 1,000 5,000 $ (50,240)
Weighted average fixed priceperBbl ... $ 2584 § 2493 § 2619 $ 2600 § 26.09
Average forward NYMEX ofl prices(b) . $ 30.12 $ 2803 §$ 2709 $ 2655 3 2660

(a) SeeNote J of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data"
for hedge volumes and weighted average prices per Bbl by calendar quarter.
(b) The average forward NYMEX oil prices per Bbl are based on January 30, 2004 market quotes.

Qill Price Sensitivity
Derivative Financial Instruments as of December 31, 2002
Liability
Fair Value at
Year Ended December 31 December 31,
2003 2004 2002
(im thousands)
Oil Hedge Derivatives:
Average daily notional Bbl volumes:
Swap contracts 14,000 $ (19,912)
Weighted average fixed price per Bbl . $ 2311
Average forward NYMEX oil prices (a) . $ 2575

(a) The average forward NYMEX oil prices are based on February 18, 2003 market quotes.

Gas Price Sensitivity
Derivative Financial Instruments as of December 31, 2003
Linbility
Fair Value at
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2004 2005 2006 2007 2003
(in thousands)

Gas Hedge Derivatives (a):
Average daily notional Mcf volumes (b):
Swap contracts (c) 283,962 60,000 70,600 20,000 $ (151,182)
Weighted average fixed price per MMBtu $ 416 $ 424 $ 4.16 $ 351
Average forward NYMEX gas prices (d) $ 466 $ 504 $ 474 $ 4060

(a) To minimize basis risk, the Company enters into basis swaps for a portion of its gas hedges to convert the index price of the
hedging instrument from a NYMEX index to an index which reflects the geographic area of production. The Company
considers these basis swaps as part of the associated swap and collar contracts and, accordingly, the effects of the basis swaps
have been presented together with the associated contracts.

See Note J of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data"
for hedge volumes and weighted average prices per MMBtu by calendar quarter.

(c) During January 2004, the Company increased its 2004 gas hedge positions by entering intc 32,967 Mcf per day of first quarter
2004 gas swap contracts with weighted average per MMBtu fixed prices of §7.11.

(d) The average forward NYMEX gas prices per MMBtu are based on January 30, 2004 market quotes.




Gas Price Semsitivity
Derivative Fimancial Instruments a5 of December 31, 2002

Liability
Yezr Ended December 31 Fair Velue at
2006 & December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2007 2092

(in thousands)
Gas Hedge Derivatives (a):
Average daily notional Mcf volumes:

SWap CONITACES . . . v v oo e e v 230,000 180,000 10,000 20,000 $ (88,892)
Weighted average fixed price per MMBtu ........ $ 376 $ 381 § 370 $ 375
Average forward NYMEX gas prices(b) ........... $ 553 § 480 § 431 $ 412

{2) Tominimize basis risk, the Company enters into basis swaps for a portion of its gas hedges tc convert the index price of the hedging
instrument from a NYMEZX index to an index which reflects the geographic area of production. The Company considers these basis
swaps as part of the associated swap and collar contracts and, accordingly, the effects of the basis swaps have been presented
together with the associated contracts.

(b) The average forward NYMEX gas prices per MM Btu are based on February 18, 2003 market quotes.

Qualitative Disclosures

Nomn-derivative financial instraments. The Company is aborrower under fixed rate and variable rate debt instruments
that give rise to interest rate risk. The Company's objective in borrowing under fixed or variable rate debt is to satisfy capital
requiremnents while minimizing the Company's costs of capital. See Note E of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
inctuded in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for a discussion of the Company's debt instruments.

Derivative financial instruments. The Company utilizes interest rate, foreign exchangerate and commodity price
derivative contracts to hedge interest rate, foreign exchange rate and commodity price risks in accordance with policies and
guidelines approved by the Company's board of directors. In accordance with those policies and guidelines, the Company's
executive management determines the appropriate timing and extent of hedge transactions.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company's primary risk exposures associated with financial instruments to which it
is a party include oil and gas price volatility, volatility in the exchange rates of the Canadian dollar and Argentine peso vis
4 vis the U.S. dollar and interest rate volatility. The Company's primary risk exposures associated with financial instruments
have not changed significantly since December 31, 2003.
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INDEPENDENT AUBITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pioneer Natural Resources Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pioneer Natural Resources Company (the
"Company")as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity,
cash flows and comprehensive income (loss) for each of the three years in the pericd ended December 31, 2003. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an gpinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtzain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. P

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consclidated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note B to the consolidated financial statements, in 2003 the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. Also, as discussed in Note B to the
consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities".

Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
January 26, 2004




PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES COMPANY

CONSCOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

December 31,

Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents ..........c...o it i $ 19,299 3 8,490
Accounts receivable:
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,727 and $4,744
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively .. ........... .. ... ... ..., 111,033 97,774
Duefromaffiliates ... ... . 447 448
B8 oA 1 a7 17,509 10,648
Prepaid €XPenses ... ... ... 11,083 5,485
Deferred InCOme taXes .. ..ottt et e 40,514 13,900
Other current assets:
DO IValIVES . . .ottt 423 2,508
Other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,486 and $3,351
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively ............. .. ... ... 4,807 7,840
Total CUITENT ASSELS - .« ¢ o v v vt e e et e e et et et e e 205,115 147,093
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Oil and gas properties, using the successful efforts method of accounting:
Proved PrOPETHIES . . . . oottt e e ettt 4,983,558 4,252,897
Unproved properties .. ................. P 179,825 219,073
Accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization . .................. ... ...... (1.676.136) (1,303,541)
Total property, plant and equipment . . . . ... . i i e 3.487.247 3.168.429
Deferred INCOMe taXES . .. i ettt et et e 192,344 76,840
Other property and equipment, MeT . .. ... ...ttt e 28,080 22,784
Gther assets:
D erIVALIVES .« . vttt et et e e e e 209 643
Other, net of allowance for doubiful accounts of $92 and $1,227
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively . ........ oo 38,577 39,327

$ 3951572

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

$3.455,116

Accounts payable:

7 (O $ 177,614 $ 117,582

Due to affilHiates .. ... .ottt e e s 7,192
Interest payable .. ... . e 37,034 37,458
Income taxes payable ... .. ... ... e 5,928 -
Other current liabilities:

DerIVALIVES . oottt e e e e 161,574 83,638

T . L ottt e e e 38,798 28,722

Total current liabilities .. ...... ... . i 429,752 274,592
Long-termdebt . . ... ... e 1,555,461 1,668,536
DT VaAtIVES . . ot ittt e e e 48,825 42,490
Deferred INCOME taXeS . o« oot vttt et ettt 12,121 8,760
Other Habilitles . .. ... 145,641 85,841
Stockholders' equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized; 119,665,784 and

119,592,344 shares issued at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively ............ 1,197 1,196
Additional paid-incapital . . . ... .. 2,734,403 2,714,567
Treasury stock, at cost; 378,012 and 2,339,806 shares at December 31,

2003 and 2002, respectively . . ... .. e §5,3 85 32,219
Deferred compensation . . ... ... ...t 9,933 14,292
Accumulated deficit . ... ... . . (887,848 (1,298,440
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss):

Net deferred hedge gains (losses), netoftax ......... ... it (104,130) 9,555

Cumulative translation adjustiment . .... . ...ttt 31,468 {5.470)

Total stockholders' equity .. ... . 1,759,772 1,374,897

Commitments and contingencies

$ _3.951.572

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Revenues and other income:
Oiland gas ... oottt $ 1,298,647 $ 701,780 $§ 847022
Interestandother ........... ... .ot 12,292 11,222 21,778
Gain on disposition of assets, net ................. .. ... ... 1,256 4,432 7.681
1,312,195 717,434 876,481
Costs and expenses:
Oil and gas production ... ............c.c.coiiiiiiiiiiiia... 279,526 199,570 209,664
Depletion, depreciation and amortization ...................... 390,840 216,375 222,632
Exploration and abandonments . .. ........... ... ... ... ..., 132,760 85,894 127,906
General and administrative ......... .. . i 60,545 48,402 36,968
Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations............. 5,040 - -
IEETESt . .ottt e 91,388 95,815 131,958
Other ... .. 21.320 39.602 43341
981,419 685,658 772,469
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle .. ........ ... .. . i 330,776 31,776 104,012
Income tax benefit (provision) ... ... 64.403 (5.063) {4016)
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. 395,179 26,713 99,996
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax ...... 15413 - -
NELINCOME + o vttt et et e et et e e e e $_ 410,592 $ 26713 $ 99996
Net income per share:
Basic:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . ... $ 3.37 $ 24 $ 1.01
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax . . . 13 - -
Netincome .......oviuniii i e 5 3.50 h) 24 $ 1.01
Diluted:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . ... ... $ 3.33 $ 23 $ 1.00
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax . . . A3 - -
Netineome . ......iiur i i e e $ 3.46 b .23 3 1.00
Weighted average shares outstanding:
BaSIC i e 117,185 112,542 98,529
Diluted ... ... .o 118,513 114,283 99,714

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES COMPANY

CONSQOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEtICOMIE . . o ottt e e e e $ 410,592 $ 26,713 $ 99,996
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depletion, depreciation and amortization .................. 390,840 216,375 222,632
Exploration expenses, includingdryholes ... .............. 97,690 64,617 103,595
Deferred income taXes . ......c..oviiiiniiiiineeian... (75,588) 2,788 (7,649)
Gain on disposition of assets, net . ......... ... .o (1,256) (4,432) (7,681)
Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations ........ 5,040 - -
Interest related amortization . ........... ... .. 0. (20,610) (5,809) 8,689
Commodity hedge related amortization ................... (71,816) 26,490 6,199
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,

Net Of 1A% .. o (15,413) - -
Othernoncashitems ......... ... i iiieininnnn... 10,395 31,647 18,697

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from

acquisitions:
Accountsreceivable,net . .......... .. il (10,983) (23,922) 41,295
INVENtOTIES . .. oottt e (7,734) 3,023 (4,256)
Prepaid eXpenses ............cviiiniiiiiiii i (5,598) 2,330 (4,328)
Other current assets, NEt ... oot vivnn v et enrnnns (602) (4,166) (1,976)
Accountspayable .......... ... i 58,603 (342) (541)
Interestpayable . ......... .. ... ... o (424) 48 (733)
Income taxes payable . ....... ... ... i 5,928 (530) 530
Other current liabilities . .. ........ ... . ... . ... (5,385) (2.585) 1,131
Net cash provided by operating activities.................. 763,679 332,245 475.600

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash acquired in acquisitions, net of feespaid .................. - - 11,119
Proceeds from disposition of assets ....................... ... 35,698 118,850 113,453
Additions to oil and gas properties ............... .. ... (688,133) (614,698) (529,723)
Other property additions, net .............. ... .. ... ... (9.865) (12,283) (17.590}
Net cash used in investing activities . ... .................. (662.300) (508.131) _(422.741)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under long-termdebt . ... ... ... .o oL o L 264,725 529,805 328,331
Principal payments on long-termdebt ............. ... ... . ... (370,262) (481,783) (333,410)
Common stock issuance proceeds, net of issuance costs .......... - 236,000 -
Payment of other liabilities .......... ... .. ... ... ... .. (14,055) (124,245) (53,437)
Stock options exercised and employee stock purchases ........... 33,020 14,389 7,504
Purchase of treasury stock ... ... ... . ., (2,349) - (13,028)
Deferred loan fees/debt issuance costs . .........c.ovinnnn., (2,799 (3.293) -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .......... (51.720) 170.873 __(64.040)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. 9,659 (5,013) (11,181)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents. . ... ... 1,150 831 (644)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .................... 8.490 14334 26,159
Cash and cash equivalents,end of year ......................... $__ 19299 $ 8,490 $__ 14334

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2083 2002 2081
Netineome ... ..ot i i i i e e $ 410,592 $ 26,713 $ 9999
Cther comprehensive income (loss):
Net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax:
Transition adjustment . ... - - (197,444)
Net deferred hedge gains (losses) .........ooovivinnnnnnnn. (282,165) (181,628) 395,297
Tax benefits (provisions) related to net deferred hedge
(gains)losses ........ ..o i 51,064 2,561 (2,293)
Net hedge (gains) lesses included in net income ............. 117,416 (12,424) 5,486
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities:
Net unrealized available for sale securities holding losses . ... .. - - (45)
Net available for sale securities gains included in net income .. . - - (8,109)
Translationadjustment . . ....... ... ... ., 36,938 2,188 (11,173
Other comprehensive income (loss) .................... (76.747) {189.303) 181,715
Comprehensive income (foss) ...l $__333.845 $_(162,590) §_ 281715

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

49




PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES COMPANY

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

NOTE A.  Orgamization and Nature of Operations

Pioneer Natural Resources Company (the "Company" or "Pioneer") is 2 Delaware corporation whose common
stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The Company is an oil and gas exploration and production
company with ownership interests in oil and gas properties located in the United States, Argentina, Canada, South Africa,
Gabon and Tunisia.

NOTE B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidution. The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries since their acquisition or formation, and the Company's interest in the affiliated oil and gas
partmerships for which it serves as general partner through certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company
proporticnately consolidates less than 100 percent-owned oil and gas parmerships in accordance with industry practice.
The Company owns less than a 20 percent interest in the oil and gas parmerships that it proportionately consolidates.
All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Investments in unaffiliated equity securities that have a readily determinable fair value are classified as "trading
securities" if management's current intent is to hold them for oniy a short period of time; otherwise, they are accounted
for as "available-for-sale" securities. The Company reevaluates the classification of investments in unaffiliated equity
securities at each balance sheet date. The carrying value of trading securities and available-for-sale securities are
adjusted to fair value as of each balance sheet date.

Unrealized holding gains are recognized for trading securities in interest and other revenue, and unrealized
holding losses are recognized in other expense during the perieds in which changes in fair value occur.

Unrealized holding gains and losses are recognized for available-for-sale securities as credits or charges to
stockholders' equity and other comprehensive income (loss) during the periods in which changes in fair value occur.
Realized gains and losses on the divestiture of available-for-sale securities are determined using the average cost method.
The Company had no investments in available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2003 or 2002.

Investments in unaffiliated equity securities that do not have a readily determinable fair value are measured at
the lower of their original cost or the net realizable value of the investment. The Company had no significant equity
security investments that did not have a readily determinable fair value as of December 31, 2003 or 2002.

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements. Preparation of the accompanying consclidated
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires managementto make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Depletion of cil and gas properties is detenmined using estimates of proved oil and gas reserves. There are
numercus uncertainties inherentin the estimation of quantities of proved reserves and in the projection of future rates
of production and the timing of development expenditures. Similarly, evaluations for impairment of proved and
unproved oil and gas properties are subject to numercus uncertainties including, among others, estimates of future
recoverable reserves; commodity price cutlocks; foreign laws, restrictions and currency exchange rates; and export and
excise taxes.

Argentina devaluation. Early in January 2002, the Argentine government severed the direct one-to-one U.S.
dollar to Argentine peso relationship that had existed for many years. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company
used exchange rates £ 2.93 pesos to $1 and 3.37 pesos to $1, respectively, to remeasure the peso-denominated monetary
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assets and liabilities of the Company's Argentine subsidiaries. The remeasurement of the peso-denominated monetary
net assets of the Company's Argentine subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 resulted in a charge of $.3 million
and $6.9 million, respectively.

As aresult of certain Argentine stability laws and regulations enacted since the devaluation of the Argentine peso
which impact the price the Company receives for the oil and gas it produces, the Company has continually reviewed its
Argentine proved and unproved properties for impairment during 2003 and 2002. Based on estimates of future
commodity prices and operating costs, the Company believes that the future cash flows from its of! and ges assets will
be sufficient to fully recover its proved property basis. The Company also plans to continue its exploration efforts on
all of its remaining unproved acreage. Based upon the Company's improved economic outlock for Argentina, the
Company has significantly increased its capital budget for exploration and development activities in 2004 as compared
to the capital budgets in 2003 and 2002.

While the Argentine economic and pelitical situation continues to improve, the Argentine governmeni may enact
future regulations or policies that, when finalized and adopted, may materially impact, among cther itemns, (i) the realized
prices the Company receives for the commodities it produces and sells; (ii) the timing of repatriations of excess cash flow
to the Company's corporate headquarters in the United States; (iii) the Corpany's asset valuations; (iv) the Company's
level of future investmenis in Argentine; and (v) pesc-denominated monetary assets and lizbilities. While conditions
are improving, mumerous uncertainties exist surrounding the ultimate resolution of Argentina's economic and political
stability and actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions utilized.

New accounting prorouncemernts. On Janvary 1, 2003, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of
Pinancial Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" ("SFAS 143"). SFAS 143
amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 19, "Financial Accounting and Reporting by Cil and Gas
Producing Companies" ("SFAS 19") to require that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be
recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. Under the provisions
of SFAS 143, asset retirement obligations are capitalized as part of the carrying value of the long-lived asset. Under the
provisions of SFAS 19, asset retirement obligations were recognized using a cost-accumulation approach. Prior to the
adopticn of SFAS 143, the Company recorded asset retirement obligations through the unit-of-production method, except
for such asset retirement obligations that were assumed in business combinations, which were recorded at their estimated
fair values.

The adoption of SFAS 143 resulted in a January 1, 2003 cumulative effect adjustment to record (i) 2 $13.8 million
increase in the carrying values of proved properties, (ii) 2 $26.3 million decrease in accumulated depreciation, depletion,
and amortization of property, plant and equipment, (iii) 2 $1.0 million increase in current abandonment liabilities, (iv)
a $22.4 million increase in noncurrent abandenment liabilities and (v) a $1.3 million increase in Argentine deferred
income tax liabilities. The net impact of items (i) through (v) was to record a gain of $15.4 million, net of tax, as a
cumulative effect adjustment of a change in accounting principle in the Company's Consolidated Statements of
Operations upon adoptien on January 1, 2003.

The following pro forma deta summarizes the Company's net income and net income per share for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 as if the Company had adopted the provisions of SFAS 143 on January 1, 2001,
including aggregate pro forma asset retirement cbligations on that date of $60.2 miflion:
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Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(im thousands, except per shere amounts)

Net income, asreporied ...................... $410,592 $ 26,713 $ 99,99
Pro forma adjustments to reflect retroactive

adoption of SFAS 143 ..................... {15.413) 4.743 1,672
Proformanetincome . ..., £395,179 $_31.456 $ 101,668

Net income per share:

Basic-asreported ..., $__ 350 $ 24 $ .01
Basic-proforma ..ot $_ 337 $ 28 $ (.03
Diluted -asreported ...................... $ 346 5 23 3 .00
Diluted -proforma .............. ... ... .. $_ 333 $ .28 $ .02

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
145, "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical
Corrections” ("SFAS 145"). Prior to SFAS 145, gains or iosses on the early extinguishment of debt were required to
be classified in a company's periodic consclidated staternents of operations as extracrdinary gains or losses, net of
associated income taxes, after the determination of income or loss from continuing operations. SFAS 145 requires,
except in the case of events or transactions of 2 highly unusual and infrequent nature, that gains or losses from the early
extinguishmentof debt be classified, on both a prospective and retrospective basis, as components of a company's income
or loss from continuing operations. The adoption of the provisions of SFAS 145 did not affect the Company's financial
position or liguidity. Under the provisions of SFAS 145, gains or losses from the early extinguishment of debt will be
recognized in the Company's Consclidated Statements of Operations as components of cther income or other expense
and will be included in the determination of the income (loss) from continuing operations of those periods. Accordingly,
extraordinary losses from the early extinguishment of debt of $22.3 million and $3.8 million recorded during the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, have been reclassified to other expense.

During January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation Ne. 46, "Consclidation of
Variable Interest Entities” ("FIN 46™), which requires the consolidation of certain entities that are determined to be
variable interest entities ("VIEs"). An entity is considered to be 2 VIE when either (i) the entity lacks sufficient equity
to carry on its principal operations, (ii) the equity owners of the entity cannot malke decisions about the entity's activities
or (iii) the entity's equity nieither absorbs losses or benefits from gains.

The Company has reviewed its financial arrangements and has not identified any materizl VIEs that should be
consolidated by the Company in accordance with FIN 46.

Cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and depository accounts held by banks.

Inventories - equipment. Lease and well equipment to be used in future production and drilling activities are
carried at the lower of cost or market, on a first-in, first-out basis. The Company has established lower of cost or market
allowances to reduce the carrying values of its equipment inventories in the amounts of $.6 million and $3.6 millicn as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Inventories - commodities. Commodities are carried at the lower of average cost or market. When sold from
inventory, commodities are removed on a first-in, first-out basis.

Oil and gas properties. The Company utilizes the successful efforts method of accounting for its oil and gas
properties. Under this method, all costs associated with productive wells and nonproductive development wells are
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capitalized while nonpreductive exploration costs and geological and geophysical expenditures are expensed. The
Company also expenses the costs associated with expleratory wells that find oil and gas reserves if a determination that
proved reserves have been found cannot be made within one year of the exploration well being drilled unless cther
drilling or exploration activities to evaluate the discovery are firmly planned. The Company capitalizes interest on
expenditures for significant development projects until such projects are ready for their intended use.

The Companty owns interests in 11 natural gas processing plants and five treating facilities. The Company
operates seven of the plants and all five treating facilities. The Company's ownership in the natural gas processing plants
and treating facilities is primerily to accommodate handling the Company's gas production and thus are considered a
component of the capital and operating costs of the respective fields that they service. To the extent that there is excess
capacity at a plant or treating facility, the Company attempis to process third party gas volumes for a fee to keep the plant
or ireating facility at capacity. All revenues and expenses derived from third party gas volumes processed tarough the
plants and treating facilities are reported as components of oil and gas production costs. The thizd party revenues
generated from the plant and weating facilities for the three years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $39.5
million, $28.4 million and $32.7 million, respectively. The third party expenses attributable to the plants and treating
facilities for the same respective periods were $11.3 million, $9.3 miilion and §9.7 millicn. The capitalized costs of the
plants and treating facilities are included in proved oil and gas properties and are depleted using the unit-of-production
method zlong with the other capitalized costs of the field that they service.

Capitalized costs relating to proved properties are depleted using the unit-of-production method based on proved
reserves. Costs of significant nonproducing properties, wells in the process of being drilled and development projects
are excluded from depletion until such time as the related project is completed and proved reserves are established or,
if unsuccessful, impaizment is determined.

Capitalized costs of individual properties sold or abandoned are charged to accumulated depletion, depreciation
and emortization with the proceeds from the szles of individual properties credited to property costs. No gain or loss
is recognized until the entire amortization base is sold. However, gain or loss is recognized from the sale of less than
an entire amoriization base if the disposition is significant encugh to materially impact the depletion rate of the remaining
properties in the amortization base.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets to be held and used, including proved oil and gas properties accounted
for under the successful efforts method of accounting, whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is indicated if the sum of the expected future cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of the assets. In this circumstance, the Company recognizes an impairment loss for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset.

Unproved oil and gas properties that are individually significant are periedically assessed for impairment by
comparing their cost to their estimated value on a project-by-project basis. The estimated value is affected by the results
of exploration activities, commodity price outlooks, planned future sales or expiration of all or a portion of such projects.
If the quantity of potential reserves determined by such evaluations is not sufficient to fully recover the cost invested
in each project, the Company will recognize an impairment loss at that time by recording an allowance. The remzining
unproved oil and gas properties, if any, are aggregated and an overal! impairment allowance is provided based on the
Company's historical experience.

Treasury stock. Treasury stock purchases are recorded at cost. Upon reissuance, the cost of trezsury shares held
is reduced by the average purchase price per share of the aggregate treasury shares held.

Environmental. The Company's environmental expenditures are expensed or capitalized devending on their
future economic benefit. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and that have no
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future economic benefits are expensed. Expenditures that extend the life of the related property or mitigate or prevent
future environmental contamination are capitalized. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessment and/or
remediation is probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are undiscounted unless the timing
of cash payments for the liability are fixed or reliably determinable.

Revenue recognition. The Company uses the entitiements method of accounting for oil, NGL and gas revenues.
Sales proceeds in excess of the Company's entitiement are included in other liabilities and the Company's share of sales
taken by others is included in other assets in the accompanying Consolidated Belance Sheets. The following table
presents the Company's entitlement assets and entitlement liabilities and their associated volumes as of December31,
2003 and 2002 (3 in millions):

December 31,
2003 2002
Amoumnt MMef Amoumnt MMl

Entitlement 8s5etS . . . ..ottt e e $ 105 3929 § 97 4,240
Entitlement liabilities ........... ... ... . . e $ 158 14,793 $ 15.1 14,302

Derivatives and hedging. InJune 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statemnent of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative [nstruments and Hedging Activities” ("SFAS 133") as
amended, the provisions of which the Company adopted effective January I, 2001.

SFAS 133 requires the accounting recognition of all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities at fair
value. Derivative instruments that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through net income (loss). Under the
provisions of SFAS 133, changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are fair value hedges are offset against
changes in the fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through net income (loss). Effective
changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are cash flow hedges are recognized in "accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) ("AOCI") - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax™ in the stockholders' equity section
of the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets until such time as the hedged items are recognized in net income (loss).
Ineffective portions of a derivative instrument's change in fair value are immediately recognized in net income (loss).

The adoption of SFAS 133 resulted in a January 1, 2001 transition adjustment to (i} reclassify $57.8 million of
deferred losses on terminated hedge positions from other assets (including $11.6 million of other current assets), (ii)
increase other current assets, other assets and other current liabilities by $7.0 million, $6.2 million and $146.6 million,
respectively, to record the fair vatue of open hedge derivatives, (1if) increase the carrying value of hedged long-term debt
by $6.2 million and (iv) reduce stockholders' equity by $197.4 million for the net impact of items (i) through (iii) above.
The $197.4 million reduction in steckholders' equity was reflected as a transition adjustment in other comprehensive
income (loss) on January 1, 2001.

Under the provisions of SFAS 133, the Company may designate a derivative instrument as hedging the exposure
to changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability or an identified portion thereof that is attributable to a particular risk
(a "fair value hedge") or as hedging the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows that are atiributable to 2
particular risk (a "cash flow hedge"). Both at the inception of a hedge and on an ongoing basis, a fair value hedge must
be expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk during the
periods that a hedge is designated. Similatly, a cash flow hedge must be expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting cash flows atiributable to the hedged risk during the term of the hedge. The expectation ofhedge effectiveness
must be supported by matching the essential terms of the hedged asset, liability or forecasted transaction to the derivative
hedge contract or by effectiveness assessments using statistical measurements. The Company's policy is to assess actual
hedge effectiveness at the end of each calendar quarter.
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See Note J for a description of the specific types of derivative transactions in which the Company participates.

Stock-based compensation. The Company has a long-term incentive plan (the "Long-Term Incentive Plan")
under which the Company grants stock-based compensation. The Long-Term Incentive Plan is described more fully in
Note G. The Company accounts for stock-based compensation granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan using the
intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Cpinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees" ("APB 25") and related interpretations. Stock-based compensation expenses associated with option grants
were not recognized in the Company's net income during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, as ail
options granted under ihe Long-Term Incentive Plan had exercise prices equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the dates of grant. Stock-based compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards is
deferred and amortized to earnings ratably over the vesting periods of the awards. The following table iilustrates the pro
forma effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” to stock-based
compensaticn during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share amounis)

Net income, asteported . ... it $ 410,592 $ 26,713 $ 99,996
Plus: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
included in net income for all awards, netoftax (@). ........... 3,447 1,884

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based

-

method for all awards, netoftax (@) . ....................... (11,429 (11,691 6,533
Proformanetineome .. ..o v oot ieeeeeeie $ 402,610 $_ 16,906 $_93.463

Net income per share:

Basic-asreported .. .... ...t $ 3,50 $ 24 $ 1.01
Basic-proforma ........ ... $ 344 $ 15 $ .95
Diluted -asreported ......... ..o $ 3.46 $ .23 $ 1.00
Diluted -proforma........ccoviirr i, $____3.40 $ 15 $ .94

(a) Total stock-based employee compensation expense included in net income is net of a tax benefit of $2.0 million during the year
ended December 31, 2003. Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the fair value based method
for the year ended December 31, 2003 is net of a $4.6 million tax benefit. No tax benefits were recognized for the pro forma
compensation expense amounts during the years ended December 31, 2002 or 2001. See Note P for additional information
regarding the Company's income taxes.

Foreign currency transiotion. The U.S. doflar is the functional currency for all of the Company's intermnational
operations except Canada. Accordingly, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign cusrency are
remeasuzed to U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the end of each reporting period; revenues and costs and
expenses dencminated in a foreign currency are remeasured at the average of the exchange rates that were in effect
during the period in which the revenues and costs and expenses were recognized. The resulting gains or losses from
remeasuring foreign currency denorninated balances into U.S. dollars are recorded in other income or other expense,
respectively. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are remeasured at the historic
exchange rates that were in effect when the assets or liabilities were acquired or incurred.
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The functional currency of the Company’s Canadian operations is the Canadian dollar. The financial staterments of
the Company's Canadian subsidiary entities are translated to U.S. dollars as follows: all assets and liabilities are
translated using the exchange rate in effect at the end of each reporting period; revenues and cosis and expenses are
translated using the average of the exchange rates that were in effect during the peried in which the revenues and costs
and expenses were recognized. The resulting gains or losses from translating non-U.S. dollar denominated balances are
recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the peried through accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

The following table presents the exchange rates used to translate the financial statements of the Company's Canadian
subsidiary in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001:

December 31,
2003 2002 2001
U.S. Doliar from Canadian Dollar - Balance Sheets ................... 7710 6362 6277
U.S. Dollar from Canadian Dollar - Statements of Operations ........... 7161 6371 6356

Reclassifications. Certain reclessifications have been made to the 2002 and 2001 amocunts in order to conform
with the 2003 presentation.

NOTE C. Disclosures About Fair Value of Finaneial Instrumemnts

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial
instruments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002:
2003 2002
Carrying Fafr - Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
(in thousands)

Derivative contract assets (liabilities):

Commodity price hedges ....................... $ (201,422) § (201,422) $ (108,837) $ (108,837)
Unrealized terminated commodity price hedges . . . ... $§ (1490) $ (1490 $ 512§ 512
Btuswap contracts ..............oieiiiiiiin.n $ (6,856) S (6,856) $ (13,363) § (13,363)
Foreign currency CONracts . ..................... 3 - $ - b 15 % 15
Financial assets:
Trading securities . ... ... $ 7,596 § 7,596 $ 5,144 § 5,144
5-1/2% note receivable due 2008 ... ........... ... 3 2,086 §$ 2,086 $ 2,247 % 2,283
Financial liabilities - long-term debit:
Lineofcredit .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiinnn.. $ (160,000) $§ (160,000) $ (260,000 $ (260,000)
8-7/8% seniornotes due 2005 . ... ... ... ..... ... $ (135,239) § (141,426) $ (146,704) $ (147,318)
8-1/4% senior notes due 2007 ................... $ (155,253) § (171,188) $ (161,130) § (164,925)
6-1/2% senior notes due 2008 . ... . .............. $ (354,497) § (378,725) $ (362,592) § (359,205)
9-5/8% senior notes due 2010 ................... § (350,558) § (424,385) $ (338,197) § (406,901)
7-1/2% senior notes due 2012 ................... $ (150,000) § (162,990) $ (150,000) §$ (160,635)
7-1/5% senior notes due 2028 ................... $ (249,914) § (270,312) § (249,913) $ (245,025)

Cask and cash equivalents, scconnts receivable, other current assets, accounds payable, interest payable and
other current liabilities. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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Commaodity price swap and coller conirects, interest rete swaps end foreign currency swap centracts. The fair
value of commedity price swap and collar contracts, interest rate swaps and foreign currency contracts are estimated
from quotes provided by the counterparties to these derivative contracts and represent the estimated amounts that the
Company would expect to receive or pay to settle the derivative contracts. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
the Company terminated all of its interest rate swap contracts and the foreign currency contracts matured. See Note J
for a description of each of these derivatives, including whether the derivative contract qualifies for hedge accounting
treatment or is considered a speculative derivative contract.

Financial assets. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had an investment in bonds that were classified as
trading securities and a note receivable. The Company divested the bonds during January 2003. The fair value of the
5-1/2 percent note receivable was determined based on underlying market rates of interest.

Long-term debs, The carrying amount of borrowings outstanding under the Company'’s corporate credit facility
approximates fair value because these instrurnents bear interest at variable market rates. The fair values of each of the
senior note issuances were determined based on quoted market prices for each of the issues. See Note E for additional
information regerding the Company's long-term debt.

NOTED.  Acguisitions

Falcon acguisitions. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company purchased, through two
transactions, an additional 30 percent working interest in the Falcon field development and 2 25 percent working interest
in associated acreage in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico for a combined purchase price of $61.1 million. As a result of
these transactions, the Company owned a 75 percent working interest in and operated the Falcon field development and
related exploration blocks at Decerriber 31, 2002, OnMarch 28, 2003, the Company purchased the remaining 25 percent
working interest that it did not already own in the Falcon field, the Harrier field and surrounding satellite prospects in
the deepwater Gulf of Mexico for $120.4 million, including $114.1 million of cash, $1.7 million of asset retirement
obligations assurned and $4.6 million of closing adjustments.

West Penhandle acguisitiorns. During July 2002, the Company completed the purchase of the remaining 23
percent of the rights that the Company did not already own in its core area West Panhandle gas field, 100 percent of the
West Panhandle reserves atiributable to field fuel, 100 percent of the related West Panhandle {ield gathering system and
ten blocks surrounding the Company's deepwater Gulf of Mexico Falcon discovery. In commection with these
transactions, the Company recorded $100.4 million to proved oil and gas properties, $3.8 million to unproved oil and
gas properties and $1.9 million to assets held for resale; retired a capital cost obligation for $60.8 million; settled a $§20.9
million gas balancing receivable; assumed trade and environmental obligations amounting to $5.8 million in the
aggregate; and paid $140.2 million of cash. The capital cost obligation retired by the Company for $60.8 million
represented an obligation for West Panhandle gas field capital additions that was not able to be prepaid and bore interest
at an annual rate of 20 percent. The portion of the purchase price allocated to the retirement of the capital cost obligation
was based on a discounted cash flow analysis using a market discount rate for obligations with similar terms. The capital
cost obligation had a carrying value of $45.2 million, resulting in a loss of $15.6 million from the early extinguishment
of this obligation.

Affiligted parinership mergers. During 2001, the limited pariners of 42 of the Company's affiliated partnerships
approved an agreement and plan of merger ("Plan of Merger") among the Company, Pioneer Natural Rescurces USA,
Inc. ("Pioneer USA"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the parmerships. The Plan of Merger was
accounted for as a purchase business combination. In consideration for the parinerships' net assets, the limited sartmers
received 5.7 million shares of the Company's commen stock valued at $18.35 per share. In connection with this
transaction, the Company recorded $92.9 million (o proved oil and gas properties, $13.6 million to cash and $.3 million
to other net assets. The cash acquired from the partnerships, net of $2.5 million of cash transacticn costs, is included
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in "cash acquired in acquisitions, net of fees paid” in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended December 31, 2001. Except for the cash acquired, this transaction represents a noncash investing activity
of the Company that was funded by the issuance of common stock.

Other scquisitions. During 2003, in addition to the incremental 25 percent working interest acquired in the
Falcon area, the Company spent $30.6 million to acquire producing properties in the Spraberry field and unproved
properties in Alaska, the Guif of Mexico, Argentina, Canada and Tunisia. During 2002, in addition to the Falcon and
West Panhandle acquisitions referred to above, the Company spent $25.5 million to acquire additional unproved acreage
in the United States, including 34 Gulf of Mexico shelf blecks, six deepwater Gulf of Mexico blocks, a 70 percent
working interest in ten state leases on Alaska's North Slope and property interests in other areas of the United States.
Also during 2002, the Company acquired unproved and proved oil and gas property interests in Canada for $2.3 million
and $.5 million, respectively, and $1.8 million of additional unproved property interests in Tunisia. During 2001, the
Company spent $77.9 million to acquire additional working interests in the Gulf of Mexice Aconcagua discovery, the
related Canyon Express gathering system and the Devils Tower project; 21 deepwater Gulf of Mexico biocks; 250,000
acres in the Anticlinal Campamento, Dos Hermanas and La Calera areas of the Neuguen Basin in Argentiua; and a 30
percent interest in the Anaguid permit in the Ghadames basin onshore Southern Tunisia.

NOTE E. Long-term Delbt

Long-term debst, including the effects of fair value hedges and discounts, consisted of the following cormponents
at December 31, 2003 and 2002:
December 31,
2003 2002
(in thousands)

Lines Of CTEdit. . . . oot e et $ 160,000 $ 260,000
8-7/8% senior notes due 2005 .. ... e 135,239 146,704
8-1/4% senior notes due 2007 . ... ... e 155,253 161,130
6-112% seniornotes due 2008 . . ... .. s 354,497 362,592
9-5/8% seniornotes due 2010 . ... .. ... e 350,558 338,197
T-172% seniornotes due 2012 ... .o it e 150,000 150,000
7-1/5% senior notes due 2028 . .. ... e e 249914 249913

Total long-termdebt .. ... $_1,555.461 $ 1,668,536

Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 L e $ -
2005 e $ 135239
2006 . $ -
2007 e e $ 155,253
2008 L 3 514,497
Thereafler . . o o e $ 750,472

Lines of credit. During December 2003, the Company entered into  new five-year unsecured revolving credit
agreement (the "New Credit Facility") that matures in December 2008. The New Credit Facility replaced the Company's
$575 million revolving credit facility (the "Prior Credit Facility") that had a scheduled maturity in March 2005. The
terms of the New Credit Facility provide for initial aggregate lcan cormmitments of $700 millior from a syndication of
participating banks (the "Lenders"). Aggregate loan commitments under the New Credit Facility may be increased to
a maximum aggregate amount of $1 billion if the Lenders increase their loan commitments or loan commitments of new
financial institutions are added to the New Credit Facility.
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Borrowings under the New Credit Facility may be in the form of revolving loans or swing line Ioans. Aggregate
ouistanding swing line loans may not exceed $80 million. Revolving loans issued under the New Credit Facility bear
interest, at the option of the Company, based on (a) a rate per annum egual to the higher of the prime rate announced
from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank (4.0 percent per annum at December 31, 2003) or the weighted average of
the rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System during the last preceding
business day plus 50 basis point (1.5 percent per anmum at December 31, 2003) or (b) a base Eurodollar rate,
substantially equal to LIBOR (1.2 percent per annum at December 31, 2003), plus & margin that is based on a grid of
the Company's debt rating (125 basis points per annum at December 31, 2003). Swing line loans bear interest at a rate
per annum equal to the ASK rate for Federal funds periodically published by the Dow Jones Market Service. As of
December 31, 2003, the Company had $ 160 million of Eurodollar rate revolving loans cutstanding under the New Credit
Facility.

Advances under the Prior Credit Facility bore interest, at the opticn of the Company, based on (a) a base rate equal
to the higher of the Bank of America, N.A. prime rate or a rate per annum based on the weighted average of the rates
on overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System, plus 50 basis points; plus a
eurodollar margin less 125 basis peints, (b) a Eurodollar rate, substantially equal to LIBOR, plus a eurcdollar margin,
or {c) a fixed rate (for aggregate advances not exceeding $50 million) as quoted by the banks pursuant to a request by
the Company.

The New Credit Facility imposes certain restrictive covenants on the Company, including the mzintenance of a
ratic of the Company's earnings before gain or loss on the disposition of assets, interest expense, income taxes,
depreciation, depletion and amortization expense, exploration and abandonments expense and other noncash charges
and expenses to consclidated interest expense of at least 3.5 to 1.0; maintenance of a ratio of total debt to book
capitalization less intangible assets (other than intangible ¢il and gas assets), accumulated other comprehensive income
and certain noncash asset write-downs not to exceed .60 to 1.0; and, maintenance of an annual ratio of the net present
value of the Company's oil and gas properties to total debt of at least 1.25 to 1.00 until the Company has an investmernt
grade rating. The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants as of December 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had $47.6 million and $45.4 million of undrawn letters of
credit, respectively, of which $28.8 million cn December 31, 2003 and $27.2 million on December 31, 2002 were
undrawn commitments under the New Credit Facility and Prior Credit Facility, respectively. As of December 31, 2003
and 2002, the Company had unused borrowing capacity of $511.2 miilion and $287.8 milliocn under the New Credit
Facility and Prior Credit Facility, respectively.

Senior notes. The Company's senior notes are general unsecured cbligations ranking equally in right of payment
with all other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Company and are senior in right of payment to all existing and future
subordinated indebtedness of the Company. The Company is a holding company that conducts all of its operations
through subsidiaries; consequently, the senior notes are structuraily suberdinated to ail obligations of its subsidiaries.
Interest on the Company's senior notes is payable semi-annually. Pioneer USA has fuily and unconditionally guaranteed
the senior note issuances. See Note S for a discussion of Pioneer USA debt guarantees and Consolidating Financial
Statements.

During April 2002, the Company issued $150.0 million of 7-1/2 percent senior notes due April 15, 2012 (the
"7-1/2 percent senior notes"). The 7-1/2 percent senior notes were issued at a price equal to 100 percent of their principal
amount and resulted in net proceeds to the Company, after underwriting discounts, commissions and costs of issuance,
of $146.7 million. The net proceeds from the issuance of the 7-1/2 percent senior notes were used to reduce outstanding
borrowings under the Prior Credit Facility. The 7-1/2 percent senior notes and 9-5/8 percent senior notes contain various
restrictive covenants, including restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness and certain payments defined
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within the associated indenture. The Company was in compliance with all of its senior note covenants as of December
31,2003.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the aggregate carrying value of the Company's 8-7/8, 8-1/4, 6-1/2 and 9-5/8
percent senior notes included $27.4 million and $35.7 million, respectively, of incremental carrying value atiributable
to the unamortized net deferred hedge gains realized from terminated fair value hedge interest rate swap contracts. See
Note J for additional information regarding terminated fair value hedge interest rate swap contracts.

Early extinguishment of debt and copital cost obligation. During 2003, the Company repurchased $5.1 miltion
of its 8-7/8 percent senior notes and repaid the Prior Credit Facility prior to its scheduled maturity. The Company
recognized $1.5 million of charges to other expense associated with the aforementioned debt extinguishments.

During 2002, the Company repurchased $47.1 million of the 9-5/8 percent senior notes, $13.9 million of the 8-7/8
percent senior notes and repaid a $45.2 million capital cost obiigation. The Company recognized a charge to other
expense of $22.3 million associated with these debt extinguishments.

During 2001, the Company redeemed the remaining $22.5 millicn of 11-5/8 percent senior subordinated discount
notes and $6.8 million of 10-5/8 percent senior subordinated notes. Additionally, the Company repurchased $38.7
million of the 9-5/8 percent senior notes. Associated with these debt extinguishments, the Company recognized a charge
to other expense of $3.8 million.

See Note B for a discussion of tite classification of gains and losses on the early extinguishment of debt after the
adoption of SFAS 145 on January 1, 2003.

Interest expense. The following amounts have been incurred and charged to interest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Cash payments forinterest ................ ... ... ... .. ... $ 117,870 $ 113,827 $ 129,992

Accretion/amortization of discounts or premiums on loans ........ 2,873 5,488 7,937
Amortization of deferred hedge gains (seeNote J} .. ............. (26,114) (14,108) 2,750)

Amortization of capitalized loanfees .......... ... ... ... ... .. 2,528 2,436 2,252

Kansas ad valoremtax (seeNoteI) ........... .. ............ 103 375 1,250
Netchangeinaccruals .............. .. ... ... ... ......... _ (424 48 (132}

Interestincurred . ... e 96,836 108,066 137,949
Less interest capitalized ......... .. ... ... . (5.448) (12.251) (5.991)

Total interest eXPense . .. .o vttt i i, $_91.388 §_95.815 $ 131,958

NOQTE F, Related Party Transactions

Activities with affiliated partnerships. Prior to 1992, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
sponsored 44 drilling parmerships and three public income partnerships, all of which were formed primarily for the
purpose of drilling and completing wells or acquiring producing properties. During 2001, the Company completed the
merger 0f 42 of the limited partnerships into Pioneer USA. See Note D for additional information regarding the mergers.

The Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, serves as operator of properties in which it and its affiliated
partnerships have an interest. Accordingly, the Company receives producing well overhead, drilling well overhead and
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oiher fees related to the operation of the properties. The affiliated partmerships also reimburse the Company for their
allocated share of general and administrative charges.

The activities with affiliated partnerships are summarized for the following related party transactions for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:
2003 2002 2091
(in thousznds)

Receipt of lease operating and supervision charges in accordance with
standard industry operating agreements $1,473 $ 1,495 $9,281
Reimbursement of general and administrative expenses § 148 $ 127 $1,265

NOTE G. Incentive Plans
Retirement Plans

Deferred compensation retiremernt plon. [n August 1997, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
approved a deferred compensation retirement plan for the officers and certain key employees of the Company. Each
officer and key employee is allowed fo contribute up to 25 percent of their base salary and 100 percent of their annual
bonus. The Compezny will provide 2 matching contribution of 100 percent of the officer's and key employee's
contribution limited to the first 10 percent of the officer's base salary and eight percent of the key employee's base salary.
The Company's matching contribution vests immediately. A tust fund has been established by the Company to
accumulate the contributions made under this retirement plan. The Company's matching contributions were $851
thousand, $805 thousand and $652 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

481¢k) plan. The Pioneer Natural Resources USA, Inc. 401(k) and Matching Plan (the "401(k) Plan") is a defined
contribution pian established under the Internzl Revenue Code Section 401. The 401(k) Plan was formed by the merger
of the Pioneer Naturzl Resources USA, Inc. 401(k) Plan and the Pioneer Natural Resources USA, Inc. Matching Plan
on January i, 2002. All regular full-time and part-time employees of Pioneer USA are eligible (o participate in the
401(k) Plan on the first day of the month following their date of hire. Participants may contribute an ameunt of not less
than two percent nor more than 30 percent of their annual salary into the 401(k) Plan. Matching contributions are made
to the 401(k) Plan in cash by Pioneer USA in amounts equal to 200 percent of 2 participant's contributions to the 401(k)
Plan that are not in excess of five percent of the participant's basic compensation (the "Matching Contribution"). Each
participant's account is credited with the participant's contributions, their Matching Contributions and allocations of the
401(k) Pian's earnings. Participants are fully vested in their account balances except for Matching Contributions and
their proportionate share of 401(k) Plan eamings attributable to Matching Contributions, which proportionately vest over
a four year period that begins with the participant's date of hire. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, the Company recognized compensation expense of $4.5 million, $4.1 million and $3.4 million, respectively, as
a result of Matching Contributions.

Long-Term [ncentive Plan

In August 1997, the Company's stockholders approved a Long-Term Incentive Plan which provides for the
granting of incentive awards in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, performarce units and restricted
stock to directors, officers and employees of the Company. The Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for the issuance
of a maximwm number of shares of common steck equal to 10 percent of the total number of shares of common stock
equivalents cutstanding less the total number of shares of common stock subject to cutstanding awards under any stock-
based plan for the directors, officers or employees of the Company.
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The following tabie caiculates the number of shares or options available for grant under the Company's Long-
Term Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2003 and 2002:

December 31,
2003 2002

Shares outstanding . ... . ... .. 119,287,772 117,252,538

Outstanding options exercisable or exercisable within 60days ................ 3.279.024 5,024,173

122,566,796 122,276,711

Maximum shares/options allowed under the Long-Term Incentive Plan ......... 12,256,680 12,227,671
Less: QOutstanding awards under the Long-Term Incentive Plan .............. (5,534,037) (7,432,414)
QOutstanding options under predecessor incentiveplans ................ (417.052) (488.671)

Shares/options available for future grant . . ... ...... ... .o ol 6,305,591 4,306.586

Stock option awerds. The Company has a program of awarding semi-annual stock options to its officers and
employees and gives its non-employee directors a choice to receive (i) 100 percentrestricted stock, (it) 100 percent stock
options, (iii) 100 percent cash, or (iv) a combination of 50/50 of any two, as their annual compensation. This program
provides for stock option awards at an exercise price based upon the closing sales price of the Company's common stock
on the day prior to the date of grant. Employee stock option awards vest over an 18 month or three-year schedule and
provide a five-year exercise period from each vesting date. Non-employee directors’ stock options vest quarterly and
provide for a five-year exercise periocd from each vesting date. The Company granted 1,353,988, 1,643,212 and
1,627,071 options under the Long-Term Incentive Plan during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Restricted stock awards. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company issued 77,625 restricted shares
of the Company's common stock. The restricted share awards were issued as compensation to directors, officers and
key employees of the Company. The restricted share awards included 4,425 shares that were granted to directors of the
Company on May 14, 2003. Director awards vest on a quarterly prorata basis during the year ended May 14, 2004.
The remaining 73,200 restricted shares were awarded to officers and key employees of the Company. Of the shares
awarded, 9,500 shares vest on January 26, 2006 and the remaining 63,700 shares vest on September 30, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company issued 654,445 restricted shares of the Company's
common stock. The restricted share awards were issued as compensation to directors, officers and key employees of
the Company. The restricted share awards included 18,545 shares that were granted to directors of the Company on May
13, 2002. Director awards for 3,302 shares vested on a quarterly prorata basis during the year ended May 13, 2003 and
director awards for 15,243 shares vest on May 13, 2005. The remaining 635,900 restricted shares were awarded to
officers and key employees of the Company on August 12, 2002 and vest on August 12, 2005.

The Company recorded $1.1 million and $16.2 million of deferred compensation associated with restricted stock
awards in the stockholders' equity section of the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets during the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Such amounts will be amortized to compensation expense over the vesting
periods of the awards. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, amortization of the restricted stock awards
increased the Company's compensation expense by $5.4 million and $1.9 million, respectively.
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The following table reflects the outstanding restricted stock awards and activity related thereto as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Welghted Weighted

Number Average Number Average

of Shares Price of Shares Price

Restricted Stock Awards:

Restricted shares outstanding at beginning of year . . . 652,793 $ 2472 - $ -
Sharesgranted ............. .. ..., 77,625 $ 2539 654,445 $ 2472

Shares forfeited . . .......... ... ... ... ... (36,500) § 2472 - $ -
Lapse of restrictions .. .............. ... ...... (16.945y § 25.59 (1.652) $ 24,60
Restricted shares outstanding at end of year ... ..... 676.973 $ 2479 652,793 $ 2472

There were no restricted stock awards to directors or employees during the year ended December 31, 2001.

Other stoclk based plans. Prior to the formation of the Company in 1997, the Company's predecessor cormpanies
had long-term incentive plans in place that allowed the predecessor companies to grant incentive awards similar o the
provisions of the Long-Term Incentive Plan. Upon formation of the Company, all awards under these plans were
assumed by the Company with the provision that no additional awards be granted under the predecessor plans,

SFAS 123 disclosures. The Company applies APB 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock
option awards. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for its stock option awards. If compensation
expense for the stock option awards had been determined consistent with SFAS 123, the Company's net income and net
income per share would have been less than the reported amounts. See Note B for a comparison of net income and net
income per share as reported and as adjusted for the pro forma effects of determining compensation expense in
accordance with SFAS 123.

Under SFAS 123, the fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants during the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ended December 31,
2093 2002 2001
Risk-free interestrate . ................... 3.06% 2.80% 4.13%
Expectedlife ............... ... ........ 5 years 5 years 5 years
Expected volatility ...................... 36% 45% 49%

Expected dividend yield. . ............. ... - - -
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the years then ended, are presented below:

Yezar Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Averzage Number Average
of Shares Price of Shargs Price of Shares Price
Non-statutory stock options:

Outstanding, beginning of year ... 7,268,292 $ 19.60 6,926,071 $ 18.16 6,510,559 $ 18.10
Options granted . ............ 1,353,988 § 24.84 1,643,212 3§ 21.14 1,627,071 $ 18.29
Options forfeited .. ........... (1,286,370) $ 29.22 154,717y $ 26.27 (566,189) $§ 25.83
Options exercised ............ (2061.794) $ 1568  (1,146274) $ 12.19 (645.370) $ 11.14

Qutstanding, end of year. .. ... ... 5274116 $ 20.13 7268292 $ 19.60 6926071 & 18.16

Exercisable at end of year.. .. .. .. 2,581,256 $ 17.56 4269659 § 20.15 4005762 § 2082

Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year .. ........ $ 8.95 $ 8.87 $ 8.65

The following table summarizes information about the Company's stock options outstanding and options
exercisable at December 31, 2003:

Options Cutstending Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Outstanding at Remaining Average Number Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices December 31, 2003  Contractual Life  Exercise Price  at December 31, 2003  Exercise Price
$ 51t 432,765 2.8 years $ 870 432,765 $ 870
$ 12-18 2,343,782 4.3 years $ 17.10 1,431,111 $ 1634
$ 19-26 2,327,499 5.4 years $ 2455 547,310 $ 2372
$ 27-30 139,358 1.6 years $ 2844 139,358 $ 2844
$ 3143 30,712 3.1 years $ 40.06 30.712 $ 40.06
5274,116 2,581,256

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP") that allows eligible employees to annually
purchase the Company's common stock at a discounted price. Cfficers of the Company are not eligible to participate
in the ESPP. Contributions to the ESPP are limited to 15 percent of an employee's pay (subject to certain ESPP limits)
during the nine month offering period. Participanis in the ESPP purchase the Company's common stock at a price that
is 15 percent below the closing sales price of the Company's common stock on either the first day or the last day of each
offering period, whichever closing sales price is lower.

Postretirement Benefit Obligations

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had recorded $15.6 million and $19.7 million, respectively,
of unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligations in the Company's accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets. These obligations are comprised of five plans of which four relate to predecessor entities that the Company
acquired in prior years. These plans had no assets as of December 31, 2003 or 2002. Other than the Company's
retirement plan, the participants of these plans are not current employees of the Company.
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The accumulated postretirement benefit obligations pertaining to these plans were determined by independent
actuaries for four plans representing $11.2 million of unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligations as of
December 31, 2003 and by the Company for one plan representing $4.4 million of unfunded accumulated postretirement
benefit obligations as of December 31, 2003. Interest costs at an annual rate of six percent of the periodic undiscounted
accumulated postretirement benefit obligations were employed in the valuations of the benefit obligations. Certain of
the aforementioned plans provide for medical and dental cost subsidies for plan participants. Annual medical cost
escalation trends of 12 percent in 2004, declining to five percentin 2011 and thereafter, and annual dentzl cost escalation
trends of 7.5 percent in 2004, declining to five percent in 2009 and thereafter, were employed to estirrate the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligations associated with the medical and dental cost subsidies.

The following table reconciles changes in the Company's unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligations
during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ended December 31,

2063 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Beginning accumulated postretirement benefit obligations ........ $ 19,743 $ 19,750 $ 20,064
Benefitpayments ... ..ottt (1,472) (1,702} (2,0609)
SErVICE COSES . v o vt vttt e 205 205 205
Net actuarial ains ...... ... i (4,410} - -
Accretion of diSCouUnts .. ... 1,490 1,490 1,490

Ending accumulated postretirement benefit obligations . . ......... $_15.556 $_19.743 $_198,750

Estimated benefit payments and service costs associated with the plans for the year ended December 31, 2004 are
$1.4 million and $.3 million, respectively.

NOTE H. Issuance of Commen Stock

During Apri! 2002, the Company completed a public offering 6 11.5 million shares of its common stock at $21.50
per share. Associated therewith, the Company received $236.0 million of net proceeds after the payment of issuance
costs. The Company used the net proceeds from the public offering to fund the 2002 acquisition of Falcon assets and
associated acreage in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and the West Panhandle gas field acquisitions. See Note D for
information regarding these acquisitions.

NOTE L. Commitments and Contingencles

Severance agreements. The Company has entered into severance agreements with its officers, subsidiary
company officers and certzin key employees. Salaries and bonuses for the Company's officers are set by the Company's
board of directors for the parent company officers and by the Company'smanagementcommiitee for subsidiary company
officers and key employees. The Company's board of directors and management committee can grant increases or
reductions to base salary at their discretion. The cwrrent annual salaries for the parent company officers, the subsidiary
company officers and key employees covered under such agreements total approximately $19.9 million.

Indemnifications. The Company has indemnified its directors and certain of its officers, employees and agents
with respect to clzims and damages arising from acts or omissions taken in such capacity, as well as with respect to
certain litigation.

Legal actions. The Company is party to various legal actions incidental to its business, including, but not limited
to, the proceedings described below. The majority of these lawsuits primarily involve claims for damages arising from
oil and gas leases and ownership interest disputes. The Company believes that the ultimate disposition of these legal
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actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, liquidity, capital
resources or future results of operations. The Company will continue to evaluate its litigation matiers on a quarter-by-
quarter basis and will adjust its litigation reserves as appropriate to reflect the then current status of litigation.

Alford. The Company is party to a 1993 class action lawsuit filed in the 26th Judicial District Court of Stevens
County, Kansas by two classes of royalty owners, one for each of the Company's gathering systems connected to the
Company's Satanta gas plant. The case was relatively inactive for several years. In early 2000, the plaintiffs amended
their pleadings and it now contains two material claims. First, the plaintiffs assert that they were improperly charged
expenses (primarily field compression), which are a "cost of production”, and for which the plaintiffs, as royalty owners,
are not responsible. Second, the plaintiffs claim they are entitled to 100 percent of the value of the helium extracted at
the Company's Satanta gas plant. If the plaintiffs were to prevail on the above two claims in their entirety, it is possible
that the Company's liability (both for periods covered by the lawsuit and from the last date covered by the lawsuit to the
present - because the deductions continue to be taken and the plaintiffs continue to be paid for a royalty share of the
helium) could reach $65.0 million, plus prejudgment interest. However, the Company believes it has valid defenses to
the plaintiffs’ claims, has paid the plaintiffs properly under their respective oil and gas leases and other agreements, and
intends to vigorously defend itself.

The Company does not believe the costs it has deducted are a "cost of production”. The costs being deducted are
post production costs incurred to transport the gas to the Company's Satanta gas plant for processing, where the valuable
hydrocarbon liquids and helium are extracted from the gas. The plaintiffs benefit from such extractions and the
Company believes that charging the plaintiffs with their proportionate share of such transportation and processing
expenses is consistent with Kansas law and with the parties' agreements.

The Company has also vigorously defended against plaintiffs' claims to 100 percent of the value of the helium
extracted, and believes that in accordance with applicable law, it has properly accounted to the plaintiffs for their
fractional royalty share of the helium under the specified royalty clauses of the respective oil and gas leases.

The factual evidence in the case was presented to the 26th Judicial District Court without a jury in December
2001. Oral arguments were heard by the court in April 2002, and although the court has not yet entered a judgment or
findings, it could do so at any time. The Company strongly denies the existence of any material underpayment to the
plaintiffs and believes it presented strong evidence at trial to support its positions. Although the amount of any resulting
liability could have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations for the quarterly reporting period
in which such liability is recorded, the Company does not expect that any such liability will have a material adverse
effect on its consclidated financial position as a whole or on its liquidity, capital resources or future annual resuits of
operations.

Kansas ad valorem tax. The Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 ("NGPA") allows a "severance, production or
similar" tax to be included as an add-on, over and above the maximum lawful price for gas. Based on a Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission ("FERC") ruling that Kansas ad valorem tax was such a tax, one of the Company's predecessor
entities collected the Kansas ad valorem tax in addition to the otherwise maximum lawful price. The FERC's ruling was
appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia ("D.C. Circuit"), which held in June 1988
that the FERC failed to provide a reasonable basis for its findings and remanded the case to the FERC for further
consideration.

On December 1, 1993, the FERC issued an order reversing its prior ruling, but limited the effect of its decision
to Kansas ad valorem taxes for sales made on or after June 28, 1988. The FERC clarified the effective date of its
decision by an order dated May 18, 1994. The order clarified that the effective date applies to tax bills rendered after
June 28, 1988, not sales made on or after that date. Numerous parties filed appeals on the FERC's action in the D.C.
Circuit. Various gas producers challenged the FERC's orders on two grounds: (1) that the Kansas ad valorem tax,
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properly understood, does qualify for reimbursement under the NGPA,; and (2) the FERC's ruling should, in any event,
have been applied prospectively. Other parties challenged the FERC's orders on the grounds that the FERC's ruling
should have been applied retroactively io December 1, 1978, the date of the enactment of the NGPA and producers
should have been required to pay refunds accordingly.

The D.C. Circuit issued its decision on August 2, 1996, which holds that producers must make refunds of all
Kansas ad valorem tax collected with respect to production since October 4, 1983, as opposed to June 28, 1988,
Petitions for rehearing were denied on November 6, 1996. Various gas producers subsequently filed a petition for writ
of certiori with the United States Supreme Court seeking to limit the scope of the potential refunds to tax bills rendered
on or after June 28, 1988 (the effective date originally selected by the FERC). Williams Natural Gas Company filed a
cross-petition for certiori seeking to impose refund liability back to December 1, 1978. Both petitions were denied cn
May 12, 1997.

The Company and other producers filed petitions for adjustment with the FERC on June 24, 1897. The Company
was seeking a waiver or set-off from the FERC with respect to that portion of the refund associated with (i)
nonrecoupeble royalties, (ii) nonrecoupable Kansas property taxes based, in part, upon the higher prices collected and
(iit) interest for all periods. On September 10, 1997, FERC denied this request, and on October 10, 1997, the Company
and other producers filed a request for rehearing. Pipelines were given until November 10, 1997 to file claims on refunds
sought from producers and refund claims totaling approximately $30.2 million were made against the Company.
Through December 31, 2003, the Company has settled $21.6 million of the criginal claim amounts. As of December
31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had on deposit $10.7 million and $10.6 million, respectively, including accrued
interest, in an escrow account and had corresponding obligations for the remaining claim recorded in other current
liabilities in the accompanying Consclidated Balance Sheets. On Decerber 1, 2003, an administrative law judge issued
a Partial Initial Decision denying the Company's request to allow any waiver or set-off from the refunds and stating ¢that
the Company must pay the FERC interest rate on the refund claims instead of the escrow interest rate. The Company
has accrued an additional $1.5 million obligation for the difference between the escrow interest rate and the FERC
interest rate, although the Company intends to vigorously appeal the decision. The Company believes that the accrued
obligations will be sufficient ¢o resolve the remaining claims.

Legse agreements. The Company leases offshore production facilities, equipment and office facilities urder
noncancellable operating Ieases. Rental expenses associated with these operating leases for the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were approximately $15.5 million, $6.7 million and $6.6 million, respectively. Future
minimum lease commitments under noncancellable operating leases at December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousznds):

2004 o $ 35,515
2005 . $ 43442
2006 e e $ 38,227
2007 e $ 27,612
2008 L e $ 17,338
Thereafter . ... o e $ 24,174

Drilling commivments. The Company periodically enters into contractual arrangements under which tae
Company is committed to expend funds to drill wells in the future. The Company also enters into agreements (o sectire
drilling rig services which require the Company to make future minimumpayments to the rig operators. The Company
records drilling commitments in the periods in which well capital is expended or rig services are provided.

Transporiation agreements. The Company's wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary is a party to pipeline
transportation service agreements, with remaining terms of approximately 12 years, whereby it has committed to
transport a2 specified volume of gas each year from Canada to a point in Chicago. Such gas volumes are comprised of
a significant portion of the Company's Canadian net production, augmented withcertain volumes purchased at market
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prices in Canada. The committed volumes to be transported under the pipeline transportation service agreements are
approximately 78 MMcf of gas per day during 2004 and declineto approximately 75 MVicf of gas per day by the end
of the comunitmentterm. The net gas marketing gains or losses resulting from purchasing third party gas in Canada and
selling it in Chicago are recorded as other income or other expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Associated with these agreements, the Company recognized $922 thousznd, $2.6 million and $9.9 million
of gas marketing losses in other expenses during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE J. Derivative Financial Instrumemnts
Hedge Derivaives

The Company utilizes derivative instruments tc menage commodity price, interest rate and foreign exchange rate
risks.

Fair value hedges. The Company monitors the debt capital markets and interest rate trends to identify
opportunities to enter into and terminate interest rate swap contracts with the ¢bjective of minimizing costs of capital.
During the three-year period ending December 31, 2003, the Company, from time to time, entered into interest rate swap
coniracts to hedge a portion of the fair value of its senior notes. The terms of the interest rate swap contracts were for
notional amounts that matched the scheduled maturity of the bonds, required the counterparties topay the Company a
fixed annual interest rate equal to the stated bond coupon rates on the notional amounts and required the Company to
pay the counterparties variable annual interest raies on the notional amounts equal to the periodic six-month LIBOR plus
a weighted average margin.

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized interest savings associated
with its interest rate swap contracts of $29.3 million, $25.3 millicn and $7.3 million, respectively. During the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company terminated interest rate swap contracts for cash proceeds,
including accrued interest, of $21.5 million, $36.3 million and $23.3 million, respectively. The proceeds attributable
to the fair value of the remeining terms of the terminated contracts amounted to $18.3 million, $32.0 million and $21.2
million and are included in "Proceeds from dispeosition of assets” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
the Company was not a party to any fair value hedges.

As of December 31, 2003, the carrying value of the Company's long-term debt in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets included $27.4 million of incremental carrying value attributable to the unamortized net deferred hedge
gains realized from terminated fair value hedge interest rate swap contracts. The amortization of these net deferred hedge
gains reduced the Company's reported interest expense by $26.1 million, $14.1 million and $2.8 million during the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following table sets forth the scheduled amortization of net deferred hedge gains and losses on terminated
fair value hedges as of December 31, 2003 that will be recognized as increases in the case of losses, or decreases in the
case of gains, to the Company's future interest expense:

First Second Third Fourth Yezrly
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Taotal
(in thousands)
2004 net hedge gain amortization . . . $ 7,308 $ 6,116 $ 5,489 $ 4,555 $ 23,468
2005 net hedge gain amortization . . . $ 4264 $ 2816 $ 2313 $ 1,575 10,968
Remaining net losses to be amortized
through 2010 ................ (7,062)

$_27.374
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The terms of the fair value hedges described above perfectly matched the terms of the underlying senior notes. The
Company did not exclude any component of the derivatives' gains or losses from the measurementof hedge effectiveness.

Cash flow hedges. The Company utilizes commodity swap end coller contracts to () reduce the effect of price
volatility on the cormmedities the Company produces and sells, (ii) support the Company's annual capital budgeting z2nd
expenditure plans and (iii) reduce commedity price risk associated with certain capita! projects. The Company has also
utilized interest rate swap contracts to reduce the effect of interest rate volatility on the Company’s variable rate line of
credit indebtedness and forward currency exchenge contracts to reduce the effect of U.S. dollar to Canadian doliar
exchange rate volatility.

Cil prices. All material sales coniracts governing the Company's oil production have been tied directly or
indirectly to NYMEX prices. The following teble sets forth the Company’s cutstanding oil hedge contracts and the
weighted average NYMEX prices for those contracts as of December 31, 2003:

Yearly
First Second Third Fourth Cutstanding
Ouarter Cruarter Quarter Quarter AVETrape
Daily oil production:
2004 - Swap Contracts
Volume(BbY) ................ 24,000 24,000 14,000 14,000 18,973
PriceperBbl........ .. ... ... $ 2659 $ 26.51 $ 24.65 $ 24.65 § 2584

2005 - Swep Contracts
Volume (Bbl) ................ 17,600 17,000 17,000 17,600 17,000
PriceperBbl................. § 2493 § 2493 $ 2493 $ 2493 $ 2493

2006 - Swap Contracts
Volume (BbI) ................ 5,600 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
PriceperBbl................. $ 26.19 § 2619 $ 26.19 $ 2619 $ 2619

2007 - Swap Contracts
Volume (Bbl) ................ 1,000 1,600 1,000 1,000 1,000
PriceperBbl................. $ 26.00 $ 26.00 $ 26.00 $ 26.00 $ 26.00

2008 - Swap Contracts _
Volume (Bbl) ................ 5,000 5,600 5,000 5,000 5,000
PriceperBbl ................. $ 26.09 $ 26.09 $ 26.09 $ 26.09 $ 26.09

The Company reports average cil prices per Bbl including the effects of oil quality adjustments and the net effect
of oil hedges. The following tzble sets forth the Company's oil prices, both reported (including hedge resulis) and
realized (excluding hedge results), and the net effect of settlements of oil price hedges on oil revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ernded December 31,

2803 2002 2801
Average pricereported per Bol. . ... ool $§ 2559 $ 2289 $ 24.12
Average pricerealizedper Bbl .. ... ... ... . L. $ 28.80 $ 2295 $ 23.88
Addition (reduction) to oil revenue (inmillions) ................ $ (41.3) $ (.8) $ 30
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Natural gas liquids prices. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company did not
enter into any NGL hedge contracts. There were no outstanding NGL hedge contracts at December 31, 2003.

Gas prices. The Company employs a policy of hedging a portion of its gas production based on the index price
upon which the gas is actually sold, or based on NYMEX prices if NYMEX prices are highly correlated with the index
price, in order to mitigate the basis risk between NYMEX prices and actual index prices. The following table sets forth
the Company's cutstanding gas hedge contracts and the weighted average index prices for those contracts as of December
31, 2003:

Yearly
First Second Third Fourth Ouistznding
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Average
Daily gas production:
2004 - Swap Contracts
Volume (Mcf) ............ ... ..... 295,934 280,000 280,000 280,000 283,962
Index priceper MMBtu .. ............ $ 427 § 4.11 3 411 % 411 % 4.16
2005 - Swap Contracts
Volume (Mcf) .................. ... 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Index priceper MMBtu . ............. $ 424  § 4.24 3 424 8§ 424 % 4.24
2006 - Swap Contracts
Volume (Mcf) ..................... 70,000 79,000 70,000 70,000 70,000
Index priceper MMBtu . ............. 3 416 % 4.16 $ 416 3 416 % 4.16
2007 - Swap Contracts
Volume (Mecf) ..................... 20,000 20,600 20,000 20,000 20,000
Index priceper MMBtu . ............. $ 3.51 3 3.51 $ 351§ 351 8% 3.51

The Company reports average gas prices per Mcf including the effects of Btu content, gas processing and
shrinkage adjustments and the net effect of gas hedges. The following table sets forth theCompany's gas prices, both
reported (including hedge results) and realized (excluding hedge results), and the net effect of settlements of gas price
hedges on gas revenue:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Average pricereported per Mef ... ... oL $ 3.81 $ 249 $ 323
Average pricerealized per Mef ... .. ... .. .. .o o $ 417 $ 2.38 $ 3.20
Addition (reduction) to gas revenue (in millions) ............... $ (76.1) $ 136 $ 30

Hedge ineffectiveness and excluded items. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
Company recognized other expense of $2.8 million, $1.7 million and $9.1 million, respectively, related to the ineffective
portions of its cash flow hedging instruments. Additionally, based on SFAS 133 interpretive guidance that was in effect
prior to April 2001, the Company excluded from the measurement of hedge effectiveness changes in the time and
volatility value components of collar contracts designated as cash flow hedges. Associated therewith, the Company
recorded other expense of $2.4 million during the three month period ended March 31, 2001. In April 2001, the
Company discontinued the exclusion of time value and volatility from the measurement of hedge effectiveness.

Aceumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tux. As of December
31,2003 and 2002, AOCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax represented net deferred losses of $104. 1 million
and net deferred gains of $9.6 million, respectively. The AOCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax balance
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as of December 31, 2003 was comprised of $200.6 million of net deferred hedge losses on the effective portions of open
commodity cash flow hedges, $45.1 million of net deferred gains on terminated cash flow hedges and $51.4 million of
associated net deferred tax benefits. The AOCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax balance as of December
31, 2002 was comprised of $108.1 million of net deferred hedge losses on the effective portions of open cominodity
cash flow hedges, $117.4 million of net deferred gains on terminated cash flow hedges and $.3 million of associated
net deferred tax benefits. The decrease in AOQCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax during the year ended
December 31, 2003 was primarily attributable to increases in future commedity prices relative to the commodity prices
stipulated in the hedge agreements and the reclassification of net deferred hedge gains to net income as derivatives
matured by their terms, partially offset by a $51.1 million increase in asscciated deferred income tax benefits (see Note
P for information regarding the Company's United States deferred tax valuation allowance). The net deferred hedge
gains and losses associated with open cash flow hedges remain subject to market price fluctuations until the positions

are either settled under the terms of the hedge contracts or terminated prior to settlement. The net deferred gains and
losses on terminated cash flow hedges are fixed.

During the twelve month period ending December 31, 2004, the Company expects to reclassify $151.9 million of
net deferred losses associated with open cash flow hedges and $43.9 million of net deferred gains on terminated cash
flow hedges from AOCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax ¢o cil and gas revenue. The Company also
expects to reclassify approximately $39.6 million of deferred income tax benefits during the twelve months ending
December 31, 2004 from AOCI - net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax to income tax benefit (provision).

The following table sets forth the scheduled reclassifications of net deferred hedge gains on terminated cash flow
hedges as of December 31, 2003, that wiil be recognized in the Company's future oil and gas revenues:

First Second Third Fourth Yearly
Ouarer Ouarter Quarler Quarier Tolal
(im thousamnds)
2004 net deferred hedge gains ... .. $ 10,978 $ 10,932 $ 11,001 $ 10,954 $ 43,865
2005 net deferred hedge gains .. ... $ 307 $ 310 $ 315 $ 317 1,249
$_45.114

Non-hedge Derlvatives

Bty swap contracts. The Company is a party to Btu swap coniracts that mature at the end of 2004. The Biu swap
contracts do not gualify for hedge accounting treatment. The Company recorded mark-to-market adjustmenis to
decrease the carrying value of the Btu swap liability by $.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2001. During -
the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company entered into offsetting Btu swap contracts that fixed the Company's
remaining obligations associated with the Btu swap contracts. The remaining undiscounted future settlement obligations
of the Company under the Btu swap contracts are $7.2 million for 2004.

NOTE K. Major Customers and Derivative Counterparties

Sales to major customers. The Company's share of oil and gas production is sold to various purchasers who
must be prequalified under the Company's credit risk policies and procedures. The Company is of the opinion that the

loss of any one purchaser would not have an adverse effect on the ability of the Company to sell its oil and gas
production.

The following customers individually accounted for 10 percent or more of the consolidated oil, NGL and gas
revenues of the Company during one or more of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:
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Percentage of Consolidated
Oil, NGL and Gas Revenues

2003 2002 2001
Williams Energy Services ..........oviineiiiineenen... 16 7 It
Anadarko Petroleum Corporation ......................... 4 7 10

At December 31, 2003, the amount receivable from Anadarko Petroleum Corporation was $1.5 million which
is included in the caption "Accounts receivable - rade, net" in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
Company had no accounts receivable - trade, net from Williems Energy Services at December 31, 2003,

Derivative counterperiies. The Company uses credit and other financial criteria to evaluate the credit standing
of, and to select, counterparties to its derivative instruments. Although the Company does not obtain collateral or
otherwise secure the fair value of its derivative instruments, associated credit risk is mitigated by the Company's credit
risk policies and procedures. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had $7.6 millionof derivative assets
for which Enron North America Corp was the Company's counterparty. Associated therewith, the Company recognized
bad debt expense of $.4 million and 36.0 million as components of other expense in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NQTE L. Asset Retirement Obligations

As referred to in Note B, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 143 on January 1, 2003. The Company's
asset retirement obligations primarily relate to the future plugging and abandonment of proved properties and related
facilities. The Company does not provide for a market risk premium associated with asset retirement obligations because
a reliable estimate cannot be determined. The Company has no assets that are legally restricted for purposes of settling
asset retirtement obligations. The following table summarizes the Company's asset retivement obligation transactions
recorded in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 143 during the year ended December 31, 2003 and in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 19 during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
{im thousamds)

Beginning asset retirement obligations . ....................... $ 34,692 $ 39461 $ 41,983
Cumulative effect adjustment .. ............ ... ... ... ... 23,393 - -
New wells placed on production and

changes in estimates .................c.vveuurinnnnnn. 46,664 293 -
Acquisition liabilities assumed . ............. ... oL 1,791 - 981
Liabilities settled ........... ... .. ... . ... il (8,069) (6,832) (3,287)
ACCTEHION EXPENSE . . . o ittt it et 5,040 2,562 2,590
Currency translation ................... ... o il 1.525 (792} (2,806)

Ending asset retirement obligations .......................... $ 105,036 $_34,692 $_3946!1
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NGTE M. Interest and Other Imcome

The following table provides the components of the Company's interest and other income during the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2502 2631
(in thousands)

Kansas ad valorem escrow adjustments (see Note I) ............. $ - $ 3,500 $ 1,100
Retirement obligation revaluations . ... .......... ... ... .. ..., 4,410 - -
EXCISE AKX INCOIMIE + v v o v vttt s et ettt e 2,369 2,398 4,126
Production payment income .. ...t - - 5,552
INtEreSt INCOMIE . . o o vttt et e e et e 981 642 2,128
Seismicdatasales .......ov it 424 87 1,841
Foreign exchange gains ............ ... .o, 657 142 223
OHHer INCOME . vt vttt et ettt ettt 3451 4,453 6,808

Total interest and otherincome .. ..............coivee... $_12.292 $_11.222 $_21,778

NOTE N. Asset Divestitures

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company completed asset divestimares for net
proceeds of $35.7 million, $118.9 million and §113.5 million, respectively. Associated therewith, the Company recorded
geins on disposition of assets of $1.3 million, $4.4 million and $7.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Hedge derivasive divestitures. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company
terminated, prior to their scheduled maturity, hedge derivatives for cash sales proceeds of $18.3 million, $91.3 million
and §85.4 million, respectively. Net gains from these divestifures were deferred and are being amortized over the
original contract lives of the terminated derivatives as reductions to interest expense or increases to ¢il and gas revenues.
See Note J for more information regarding deferred gains on terminated hedge derivatives.

Available for sale securities divestitures. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company sold its
remaining 613,250 shares of common stock of an unaffiliated entity for $12.7 million of cash proceeds and recognized
an associated gain on disposition of assets of $8.1 million.

Oeher United States divestirures. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company received $15.2
million of cash proceeds from the sale of unproved property interests and $.9 million of cash proceeds from the sale of
other U.S. corporate assets. Associated with these divestitures, the Company recorded $1.5 million of net gains. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company received $20.9 million of proceeds from the cash setilement of 2 gas
balancing receivable, $4.7 million from the sale of certain gas properties located in Oklahoma and $1.8 million from the
sale of other corporate assets. Associated with these divestitures, the Company recorded net gains of $4.2 million.

Other internatione divestitures.During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company received $12.0 million
of proceeds from the sale of certain oil properties in Canada and $.4 million of proceeds from the sale of other
international assets. Asscciated with these transactions, the Company recognized a net loss of $.8 miilion.
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NOTE ¢.  Other Expense

The following table provides the components of the Company's other expense during the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Derivative ineffectiveness and mark-to-market

provisions (seeNote J) ... i $ 2,831 $ 1,664 $ 11,458
Gas marketing losses (see Note I) . ... ...................o.... 922 2,556 9,850
Foreign currency remeasurement and exchange losses (8} ......... 2,672 7,623 8,474
Bad debtexpense (seeNote K} ............ ... 354 129 6,152
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (see Note E) ........... ... 1,457 22,346 3,753
Kansas ad valorem escrow adjustments (see Note I} ............. - L776 - -
Argentine personal assef taX ... ... ... i 1,996 -
Othercharges ... ..o i 9,312 5,284 3,654

Total Other EXPenSe .. .. vun vttt i $ 21,320 $_39.602 $_43.341

(a) The Company's operations in Argentina, Canada and Africa pericdically recognize monetary assets and liabilities in currencies
other than their functional currencies (see Note B {or information regarding the functional currencies of subsidiary entities).
Associated therewith, the Company realizes foreign currency remeasurement and transaction gains and losses.

NOTE P. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS 109"). The Company and its eligible subsidiaries file a
consolidated United States federal income tax return. Certain subsidiaries are not eligible to be included in the
consolidated United States federal income tax return and separate provisions for income taxes have been determined for
these entities or groups of entities. The tax returns and the amount of taxable income or loss are subject to examination
by United States federal, state and foreign taxing authorities. Current and estimated tax payments of $5.3 million, $2.3
million and $11.7 million were made during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

From 1998 until 2003, the Company maintained a valuation allowance against a portion of its deferred tax zsset
position in the United States. SFAS 109 requires that the Company continually assess both positive and negative
evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets can be realized prior to their expiration.
In the third quarter of 2003 and as of December 31, 2003, the Company has concluded that it is more likely than not that
it will realize its gross deferred tax asset position in the United States after giving consideration to the following specific
facts:

° Over the past several years, the Company has been steadily improving its portfolio of assets, including
significant proved reserve discoveries and follow-up development projects that have recently started to
produce. Specifically, Pioneer completed developmentactivities and began production cperations on its
Canyon Express gas project in September 2002 and on its Company-operated Falcon field gas project in
March 2003. The production performance to-date and the reservoir data that has been accumulated on
these projects provide assurance that these projects will recover the reserves as predicted.

° During 2003, the Company announced additional Falcon area discoveries in the Harrier, Tomahawk and
Raptor fields and during January 2004, the Harrier development project was completed and began
production operations. The Company expects first production from the Tomahawk and Raptor fields in
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mid-2004. The Company also expects to complete its other significant Guif of Mexico development
project, Devils Tower, in mid-2004.

° Commodity market supply and demand fundamentals continued to stabilize during the third and fourth
quarters of 2003 as evidenced by quoted futures prices that suggest that North American gzs prices will
remain relatively flat over the next five years and that woridwide oil prices may decline modestly over that
time span compared to relatively high current levels for each commodity.

° The Company's future revenues are further protected against price declines through its significant hedging
program. The Company has hedged portions of its il price risk through 2008 and porticns of its gas price
risk through 2007. See Note J for information regarding the Company's hedge positions.

° The Company generated record pretax income for the third quarter of 2003 and net incorne in each of the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000. The Company also generated taxable income
during 2003, including the deduction of 100 percent of its intangible drilling costs. The Company believes
that these trends will continue for the foreseeable future.

° The Company performed various economic evaluations in the third guarter of 2003 to determine if the
Company would be able o realize all of its deferred tax assets, including iis net operating loss
carryforwards, prior to any expiration. These evaluations were based on the Company's reserve projections
of existing producing properties and recent discoveries being developed. These evaluations employed
varying price assumptions, some of which included a significant reduction in commodity prices, and
factored in limitations on the use of the Company's net operating loss carryforwards. The evaluations did
not include assumptions of increases in proved reserves through future exploration or acquisitions. The
evaluations indicated that the deferred tax assets are realizable in the future.

Accordingly, during the third quarter of 2003, the Company reversed its remaining valuation allowance in the
United States, resulting in the recognition of a deferred tax benefit of $104.7 million. For 20803 in total, the Company
reversed $197.7 million of United States valuation allowances resulting in a net deferred tax benefit for the year. Further,
the third quarter reversal of the allowance increased stockholders' equity by $32.6 million as the Company recognized
the tax effects of previous stock option exercises and deferred hedging gains and losses in other comprehensive income.

Pioneer will continue to monitor Company-specific, oil and gas industry and worldwide economic factors and will
reassess the likelihood that the Company's net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax attributes will be
utilized prior to their expiration. There can be no assurances that facts and circumstances will not materially change and
require the Company to reestablish a United States deferred tax asset valuation allowance in a future pericd, As of
December 31, 2003, the Company does not believe there is sufficient positive evidence to reverse its valuation
aliowances related to foreign tax jurisdictions.
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During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2802 and 2001, the Company's income tax provision {(benefit) and
amounts separately allocated were atiributable to the following items:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Income before cumulative effect of change in

accounting Prnciple . .. ...l $ (64,403) $ 5,083 $ 4016
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............. 1,312 - -
Changes in stockholders' equity:

Net deferred hedge gainsand losses. ....................... (51,064) (2,561) 2,293

Tax benefits related to stock-based compensation ............. (14,666) - -

Translation adjustment . . ... ... i (324) {20) {(121)

$_(129,145) §___ 2482 $___6,188

Income tax provision (benefit) atiributable to income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 * 2002 2001
(in thousznds)
Current:
US.federal ... i e s $ 100 $ - $ -
US.stateandlocal ........ ... .. .. oot - 209 1,080
FOTBIgN . oo et 11,085 2.066 10,585
11,185 2275 11,665
Deferred:
US.federal ... ... (69,020) - -
US.stateandlocal ........ ... .. i (7,291) - -
FOTEIgN . . oo oot 723 2.788 (7.649)
(75.588) 2,788 (7.649)

$_(64,403) $___5.063 §__ 4016

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change inaccounting principle consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(im thowsands)

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle:

US.federal ..... ... . ©§ 335,170 $ 36475 $ 136,292
Foreign........................ e e (4.394) (4.699) (32.280)

§_330.776 $__31.776 $_104.012
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Recenciliations of the United States federal statutory tax rate to the Company'seffective tax rate for income before
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle are as follows:

2063 2002 2087

U.S. federal statutory tax rate . 35.0 35.0
U.S. valuation allowance reversal . (44.1) (38.5)
Foreign valuation allowances (a) . 28.2 i1.2
Rate differential on foreign operations . 5 (3.3
Argentine inflation adjustment (a)

2.0 {6)
Consolidated effective tax rate . i5.9 3.8

The Company has applied an inflation adjustment to its 2002 Argentine income tax return based on developing case law. The
Company believes that it is more likely than not that the adjustment will be denied by the Argentine taxing authorities and has
provided a $40.8 miliion valuation allowance against this tax benefit.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
December 31,
2003 2002
{in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 300,296 $ 299,495
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards 1,457 1,565
Net deferred hedge gains and losses 56,842 41,544
Asset retirement obligations 29,040 12,402
92,561 82.948
Total deferred tax assets 480,196 444,954
Valuation allowances {94910y (277.217)
Net deferred tax assets 385,286 167,737

Deferred tax liabilities:
Oil and gas properties, principally due to differences in basis,
depletion and the deduction of intangible drilling costs for tax purposes 161,532 80,364

3.017 5,393
Total deferred tax liabilities 164,549 85,757

Net deferred tax asset $ 220,737 $_ 81,980

AtDecember 31, 2003, the Company had NOLs for United States, Argentine, Canadian, Gabornese, South African
and Tunisizn income tax purposes of $746.6 million, $3.9 million, $26.3 millicn, $17.0 million, $47.7 million and $9.0
million, respectively, which are available to offset future regular taxable income in each respective tax jurisdiction, if
any. Additionally, at December 31, 2003, the Commany has alternative minimum tax net operating loss carryforwerds
("AMT NCLs") in the United States of $653.0 million, which are available to reduce future alternative minimum taxable
income, if any. These carryforwards expire as follows:
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U.S. Argentina  Camada Gabon South Africa  Tunisiz
Expiration Date NOL, AMT NOL NOL NOL NOL NOL NOL,
(in thousands)
December 31,2005 . § - 3 - $ - $ 19,288 S - $ - $ -
December 31, 2006 . 33,011 27,133 - 7,048 - - -
December 31, 2007 . 181,049 156,447 3,928 - - - -
December 31, 2008 . 102,271 106,558 - - - - -
December 31, 2009 . 37,974 21,551 - - - - -
December 31, 2010 . 25,144 15,253 - - - - -
December 31, 2012 . 68,334 58,723 - - - - -
December 31, 2018 . 127,970 08,604 - - - - -
December 31, 2019 . 142,518 141,355 - - - - -
December 31, 2020 . 14,387 13,449 - - - - -
December 31, 2021 . 13,895 13,895 - - - - -
Indefinite ......... - - - - 17.036 47,704 8,980
$_ 746,553 $_652.968 $_ 3928 $_26336 $_ 17,036 $_47.704 $_8.980

The Company believes $140.0 million of the U.S. NOLs and AMT NOLs are subject to Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code and are limited in each taxable year to approximately $20.0 million.

NOTE Q. Income Per Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

Basic income per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle is computed by dividing
income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle by the weighted average number of common shares
cutstanding for the period. The computation of diluted income per share before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock
that are dilutive to income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle were exercised or converted into
common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would then share in the earnings of the Company.

The following table is a reconciliation of the basic and diluted weighted average cormumon shares outstanding for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(im thousands)

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

BaSIC ot 117,185 112,542 98,529
Dilutive common stock options (&) .................. ... .... 1,112 1,725 1,185
Restricted stockawards . ........ ... e 216 21 -

DHUted .o 118,513 114,288 99.714

(a) Common stock options to purchase 976,506 shares, 1,925,743 shares and 3,595,880 shares of common stock were outstanding
but not included in the computations of diluted income per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, because the exercise prices of the options were greater than
the average market price of the common shares and would be anti-dilutive to the computations.
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NOTE R, Geographic Operating Segment Information

The Company has operations in only one industry segment, that being the oil and gas exploration and procuction
industry; however, the Company is organizationally structured along gecgraphic operating segments, or regions. The
Company has reportable operations in the United States, Argentina and Canada. Other foreign is primarily comprised
of operations in Gabon, Scuth Africa and Tunisia.

The following table provides the geographic operating segment data required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 131, "Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, as well as resulis
of operations of oil and gas producing activities required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 69,
"Disclosures about Oil and Gas Producing Activities" as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
Geographic operating segment income tax benefits {provisions) have been determined based on statutory retes existing
in the various tax jurisdictions where the Company has oil and gas producing activities. The "Headquarters and Cther”
table column includes revenues, expenses, additions to properties, plant and equipment and assets that are not routinely
included in the earnings measures or attributes internally reported to management on a geographic operating segmexnt
basis.
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Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Oiland gasrevenues . ................
interestandother ...................
Gain (loss) on dispositien of assets, net . .

Oil and gas production ...............
Depletion, depreciation and amortization .
Exploration and abandonments
General and administrative ... .........
Accretion of discount on asset

retirement obligations . ... ...........
Interest ....... ... .. ... . L.
Other . ... v e

Income (loss) before income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ................

Income tax benefit (provision) .........

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle ... .. ...

Cost incurred for long-lived assets . . . . ..

Segment assets {(as of December 31, 2003)

Yezr Ended December 31, 2002:

Oiland gasrevenues . ... .............
Interestand other ...................
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net . .

Oil and gas production . ..............
Depletion, depreciation and amortization .
Exploration and abandonments
Ceneral and administrative . . ..........
Imterest ......... ... . .,
Other.....c.oovviiiiiiiii i

Income (loss) before income taxes ... ...
Income tax benefit (provision) .........
Netincome (loss) ...................
Cost incurred for long-lived assets . .. . ..

Segment assets (as of December 31, 2002)

Year Ended December 31, 2001:

Oilandgasrevenues.................
Interestandother ...................
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net . .

Oil and gas production ...............
Depletion, depreciation and amortization .
Exploration and abandonments
General and administrative . .. .........
Interest . ...... ... .. ... ...
Other........... ... .. ... ... . ...

Income (loss) before income taxes ... ...
Income tax benefit (provision) .........
Netincomeloss) ...................
Cost incurred for long-lived assets . . . .. .

Segment assets (as of December 31, 2001)

United Cther Headguarters Cousolidzted
States Argenting Cangdg Forelgn and Other Total
(in thousands)
$ 1,097,365 $ 111,315 $ 68,624 § 21,343 3 - $ 1,298,647
- - - - 12,292 12,292
1,458 - 1 - (203) 1,256
1,098.823 111,315 68.623 21,343 12.089 1,312,195
237,484 26,110 13,045 2,887 - 279,526
298,005 46,518 28,991 7,729 9,597 390,840
72,732 18,076 17,691 24,261 - 132,760
- - - - 60,545 60,545
- - - - 5,040 5,040
- - - - 91,388 91,388
- - - - 21,320 21,320
608.221 90,704 59,727 34.877 187.890 981.419
490,602 20,611 8,898 (13,534) (175,801) 330,776
(179.070) (7218 (3,426) 4,738 249.375 64.403
$_ 311,532 $_ 13397 § 5472  $__(8.796) $_ 73574 $_ 395,179
$2631.240 5_0689.781 5_224.925 $_159.747  5_245.879  $3.951.572
$ 573,289 $ 77615 $ 50876 § - $ - $ 701,780
- - - - 11,222 11,222
3,248 3) 995 - 192 4,432
576,537 77612 51.871 - 11.414 717.434
174,929 13,870 10,771 - - 199,570
140,107 39,659 27,857 - 8,752 216,375
62,955 10,306 5,841 6,792 - 85,894
- - - - 48,402 48,402
- - - - 95,815 95,815
- - - - 39,602 39.602
377,991 63,835 44,469 6.792 192,571 585,658
198,546 13,777 7,402 (6,792) (181,157) 31,776
(69.491) _ (4,822} (3,118) 2377 69,991 (5.063)
$__129.055 $ 8,955 $ 4284 $_ (4415 $_(111.166) $_ 26713
$_533560 $__35J0T $__33.506 $__70268 $ - $_6/2.455
$.2.375.505 $__ 680,063 $ 176,110 $ 118,070 $__105.368 $3.455.116
§ 649,635 $ 130,241 $ 67,146 § - $ - $ 847,022
- - - - 21,778 21,778
224 - (1,339 - 8,796 7.681
649,859 130.241 65,807 - 30,574 876,481
170,578 26,614 12,472 - - 209,664
128,477 51,391 28,868 - 13,896 222,632
70,049 23,857 9,882 24,118 - 127,906
- - - - 36,968 36,968
- - - - 131,958 131,958
- - - - 43,341 43,341
369,104 101,862 51,222 24,118 226,163 772,469
280,755 28,379 14,585 (24,118) (195,589) 104,012
. 98.264) s {9.933) (6.216) s 8.441 ; 101,956 s (4,016)
182,491 18446 §_ 8369 {15,677) {93.633) 99.996
$;"521'279, $__98 311 $__36048 $_57972 s - $__ 646,560
$2.212.540 $_710702 $_187.841 $_ 53314 $_ 106,656 $3.271.053
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NOTE 8. Pioneer USA

Pioneer USA is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that has fully and unconditionally guaranteed certain
debt securities of the Company (see Note E above). In accordance with practices accepted by the SEC, the Company
has prepared Consclidating Condensed Financial Statements in order to quantify the assets and results of operations of
Pioneer USA as a subsidiary guarantor. The following Consoclidating Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and Consclidating Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Consolidating
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 present financial
information for Picneer Natural Resources Company as the Parent on a stand-alone basis (carrying any investments in
subsidiaries under the equity method), financial information for Pioneer USA on a stand-alone basis (carrying any
investment in non-guarantor subsidiaries under the equity method), financial information for the non-guarantor
subsidiaries of the Company on a consolidated basis, the consolidation and elimination entries necessary to arrive at the
information for the Company on 2 consolidated basis, and the financial information for the Company on a consolidated
basis. Pioneer USA is not restricted from making distributions to the Company.
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2003
(in thousands)

Non-
Pioneer Guarantor Consolidated
Parent USA Subsidieries Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
8a§h and cash equivalents ............. $ 654 ggg 5 . 352,%% 3 H%ﬁ,g%g $ - $ 1é?’§?2
ther current assets,net .. ............. ‘ g 354, ; (114, g - X
Total currentassets .. ............. 1,654,944 350,031 79 - 205,115
Pro%nerty, plant and equipment, at cost:
Oil and gas properties, using the successful
efforts method of accounting;
Proved properties .................. - 3,508,365 1,475,193 - 4,983,558
Unproved properties ................ - 25,460 154,365 - 179,825
Accumulated depletion, depreciation and 1 208,700 167.436) | 676,136
amortization ..........c...coneriennnn - {1.208.700) 4 - (1, )
Total property, plant and equipment . . - 2.325.12 1,162,122 - 3.487.24
Deferred income taxes . ..........c...... 190,492 - 1,852 - 192,344
Other property and equipment, net ... ... .. - 23,890 4,190 - 28,080
Other asSeis, Nt ...\ o vvvvneenenenneen 14,836 17,076 6,874 - 38,786
Investment in subsidiaries .............. 1,604,534 67,515 - (1,772.049) -

$3.464.806 $ 1183575 STOBZ0 S L7H040) $ 3951572
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current labilities ... .................. $ 29978 § 347,720 $ 52,054 § - $ 429,752
Long-termdebt ............. ... ... ... 1,555,461 - - - 1,555,461
Other liabilities .. ..................... - 226,055 (31,589) - 194,466
Deferred income taxes ................. - - 12,121 - 12,121
Stockholders' equity ........ ...l 1,879,367 609,800 1,042,654 (1,772,049) 1,759,772

Commitments and contingencies .........

$ 3464806 $_ 1183575 S$SLU75.240 $_(1.772049) $_3.951.372

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2002
(in tﬂn@usamdsﬁ

Nomn-
Pioneer Guarantor Consolidated
Parent USA Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
8aﬁh and cash equivalents ............. $ L 822 $ | 48(1)’223 $ wg,zg% $ - 3 32,28?
ther current assets,net . .............. { 480, ; % N ; - 1
Total currentassets .. ............... 127,834 478, 01, - 147.093
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Oil and gas Ero erties, using the successful
efforts method of accounting:
Proved properties .................. - 3,024,845 1,228,052 - 4,252,897
Unproved properties ................ - 43,969 175,104 - 219,073

Accumulated depletion, depreciation and

amortization ............... .00 - (947.091) 356,450
Total property, plant and equipment . . - 121,723 T%Z%JWK)

(13035413
~76,820

Deferred income taxes ................. 75,311 - 1,529 - ,
Other property and equipment, net .. ...... - 19,000 3,784 - 22,784
?ther assets, netb. FRIT LRI . 2:%.2’82% lég,%gé 9,672 383 26 39,970
nvestment in subsidiaries .............. - 1 -
$.3.066254 $__8127239 $_95582 $ $_3.455116
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities ..................... $ 30,785 $§ 216,065 $ 27,742 § - $ 274,592
Long-termdebt ....................... 1,668,536 - - - 1,668,536
Other liabilities . ...................... - 147,970 (19,639) - 128,331
Deferred income taxes ................. - - 8,760 - 8,760
Stockholders' equity ............ ... ..., 1,366,933 448,204 942,961 (1,383,201) 1,374,897

Commitments and contingencies .........

$ 3066254 $ 812239 $ 959.824 $_(1.38372001) $_3.455.116
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands)

Non- Consolidated
Plomeer Guaranter Income Tax Comssiidated
Parent USA Subsidiaries Provision Eliminations Totzl
Revenues and other income:
Oilandgas .............covivinit. $ - 51,008,668 $ 289,979 $ - $ - $1,298,647
Interestand other ................... - 7,303 4,989 - - 12,292
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net . . - 1.403 (147 - - 1.256
- 1.017.374 294.821 - - 1,312,195
Costs and expenses:
Oil and gas preduction . .............. - 215,886 63,640 - - 279,526
Depletion, depreciation and amortization . - 293,665 97,175 - - 390,840
Exploration and abandonments ........ - 71,391 61,369 - - 132,760
General and administrative . . ... ..... .. 971 47,763 11,811 - - 60,545
Accretion of discount on asset
retirement obligations . . . ........... - 3,804 1,236 - - 5,040
Interest ........covviiiiiienenn... 23,964 66,012 1,412 - - 01,388
Equity (income) loss from subsidiary . . .. (362,094) 17,024 - - 345,070 -
Other . ..., 1,465 7.387 12,468 - - 21,320
(335.694) 722.932 249,111 - 345,070 981,419
Income before income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . ................ 335,694 294,442 45710 - (345,070) 330,776
Income tax benefit (provision) . ......... - - (10,495) 74,898 - 64,403
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle .. ... .. .. 335,694 294,442 35,215 74,898 (345,070) 395,179
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, netof tax ........ 11,859 3,554 15,413

Netincome ......................... 335,694 306,301 38,769 74,898 (345,070) 410,592
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net deferred hedge gains (losses), net of tax:

Net deferred hedge losses . .. ........ - (265,142) (17,023) - - (282,165)
Tax benefits related to net deferred
hedgelosses.................... - - 249 50,815 - 51,064
Net hedge losses included in net
COME « o oo et eanas - 109,223 8,193 - - 117,416
Translation adjustment . .............. - - 36,938 - - 36,938
Comprehensive income (loss) .......... $_335694 $_150382 $_67.i26 $_125.713 $(345.070) $_333.845
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CONSCLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(in thousands)

Nomn- Consolidated
Pioneer Guarantor Income Tax Consolidated
Paremt USA Subsidiaries Provisiom Elimimations Totel
Revenues and other income:
Cilandgas ..............ccoviunn.. b - $ 527,189 $ 174,591 $ - $ - $ 701,780
Interestand other ................... - 8,214 3,008 - - 11,222
Gain on disposition of assets, net . ...... - 3,230 1,202 - - 4,432
- 538,633 178,801 - - 717.434
Costs and expenses:
Oil and gas production ............... - 165,669 33,901 - - 199,570
Depletion, depreciation and amortization . - 139,822 76,553 - - 216,375
Exploration and abandonments ........ - 62,982 22912 - - 85,894
General and administrative .. .......... 1,323 37,723 9,356 - - 48,402
Interest ....... ... i 17,451 76,820 1,544 - - 95,815
Equity {income) loss from subsidiary . . . . (52,580) 8,374 - - 44,206 -
Other .. ... 7.093 4.879 27.630 - - 39,602
(26.713) 496,269 171.896 - 44.206 685.658
Income before income taxes .. .......... 26,713 42,364 6,905 - (44,206) 31,776
Income tax provision ................. - - (5,063} - - (5.063)
Netincome ......oovvviieneneennnen 26,713 42,364 1,842 - (44,206) 26,713
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net deferred hedge gains (losses):
Net deferred hedge losses . .......... @) (156,396) (25,228) - - (181,628)
Tax benefits related to net deferred
hedgelosses .................... - - 2,561 - - 2,561
Net hedge (gains) losses included in
netincome ..................... 447 (10,352) (2,519) - - (12,424)
Translation adjustment .. ............. - - 2,188 - - 2,188
Comprehensive income (loss) .......... $ 27156 $(124384) $_(21.156) k3 - $(44206)  $(162,590)
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CONSCLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATICNS
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L.OSS)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

(in thousands)
Nen- Consolidated
Pioneer Cuarantor Imcome Tax Consolidated
Parent USA Subsidiaries Provision Eliminations Total
Revenues and other income:
Oilandgas .............ccovinn. $ - § 626,964 $ 220,058 $ - 3 - $ 847,022
Interestandother ................... 368 14,415 6,995 - - 21,778
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net . . - 8,524 (843) - - 7,681
368 649,903 226,210 - - 876,481
Costs and expenses:
Qil and gas production . .............. - 168,287 41,377 - - 209,664
Depletion, depreciation and amortization . - 135,838 86,794 - - 222,632
Exploration and abandonments ........ - 73,649 54,257 - - 127,906
Genera! and administrative .. .......... 804 25,476 10,688 - - 36,968
Intevest ........ovvivviniiien. 31,261 83,473 17,224 - - 131,958
Equity (income) loss from subsidiary . . . . (135,459) 5,588 - - 129,871 -
Other........... ..ot 3,753 9,247 30,341 - - 43341
(99.641) 501,558 240,681 - 129,871 772,469
Income (loss) before income taxes . ...... 100,009 148,345 (14,471) - (129,871) 104,012
Income tax provision ................. - (783> (3,220) (13 - {4,016}
Net income (loss) .......c.ovivenn.... 100,009 147,562 (17,691) (13) (129,871) 99,996
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net deferred hedge gains (losses):
Transition adjustment . ............. - (172,007) (25,437) - - (197,444)
Net deferred hedge gains (losses) ... .. (578) 364,051 31,824 - - 305,297
Tax provisions related to net deferred
hedgegains . .............c.ont. - - (2,293) - - (2,293)

Net hedge (gains) losses included in
net income available for sale
securities ... ... .., 135 (8,595) 13,946 - - 5,486
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available
for sale securities:
Net unrealized available for sale

securities holding losses . .......... - (45) - - - (45)
Net available for sale securities gains
included in net income . ........... - (8,109) - - - (8,109)
Translation adjustment ............... - - (11,173 - - (11,173}
Comprehensive income (loss) .......... $_ 99.566 $_322857 $_(10.824) $ (13 $(129.871) §$_281.715
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands)

Nomn-
Pioneer Guarantor Consolideted
Parent USA Subsidiaries Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities................... $ 59761 $_491.890 $_212028 $_ 763,679
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposition of assets ....................... 18,267 16,749 682 35,698
Additions to oil and gas properties . . ... - (478,280) (209,853) (688,133)
Other property (additions) dispositions, net .. ............... - (14.748) 4,883 (9.865)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . .. . 18,267 (476,279 (204,288 (662.300)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under long-termdebt. . ........... ..o oL 264,725 - - 264,725
Principal payments on fong-termdebt ..................... (370,262) - - (370,262)
Payment of other liabilities . . . .............. ... i L - (13,169) (886) (14,055)
Deferredloanfees. ..ot (2,799) - - (2,799)
Purchase of treasury stock ........ .. .. .. i il (2,349) - - {2,349)
Stock options exercised and employee stock purchases ........ 33,020 - - 33,020
Net cash used in financing activities .. .............. {77.665) (i3.169) (886) (91,720}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ................... 363 2,442 6,854 9,659
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents. . . . - - 1,150 1,150
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . .............. 6 1,783 6,701 8.490
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pertod .. .. ................ $ 369 §_ 47225 $__14705 $ 19,299
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(im thousands)
Non-
Ploneer Guarantor Consolidated
Parent USA Subsidiaries Taotal
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........... $_(327.185) $_406939 $_252.491 $_332.245
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposition of assets ....................... 31,994 86,703 153 118,850
Additions to oil and gas properties . .. ......... ... ... - (365,981) (248,717) (614,698)
Other property {(additions) dispositions, net . . ............... - (13.171 888 (12,283)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ....... 31,994 (292.449) (247.676) (508.13D)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under long-termdebt. ........ ... oL 529,805 - - 529,805
Principal payments on long-termdebt . .................... (481,783) - - (481,783)
Common stock issuance proceeds, net of issuance cosis ....... 236,000 - - 236,000
Payment of other liabilities . .. ........... .. ... .. ... .. - (123,607) (638) (124,245)
Deferred loan fees/issuance costs .. ....................... (3,293) - - (3,293)
Stock options exercised and employee stock purchases ... .. ... 14,389 - - 14,389
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ...... 205,118 (123.607) (638 170,873
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ......... (73) 3,117 4,177 (5,013)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents ............ .. i - - 831 (831)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of peried . .............. 79 10.900 3355 14,334
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .. . ................. $ 6 $ 1.783 $ 6.701 $ 8.490
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Other property additions, net .......... ... .ooviiineian.

Borrowing under {payment of) other liabilities ..............
Purchase of treasury stock

PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(im thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash acquired in acquisition, net of feespaid ...............

Cash flows from financing activities:

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

Nomn-
Ploneer Guarantor Conselidated
Parent USA Subsidiaries Tetal

Net cash provided by {(used in) operating activities ........... $__(10.503) $_307.776 $_ 178327 $_ 475,600

- 11,119 - 11,119

Proceeds from dispositicn of assets .................... ... 21,170 75,816 16,467 113,453
Additions to oil and gas properties . . ........... ... ... - (336,753) (192,970) (529,723)
- (10717 (6.873) (17.590)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ....... 21.170 (260.535) (183.376) {422 741)

Borrowings under long-termdebt............ ... ... ... .. 328,331 - - 328,331
Principal payments on long-termdebt ..................... (333,410} - - (333,410)
- (54,728) 1,291 (53,437)
.............................. (13,028) - - {13,028)

Stock options exercised and employee stock purchases ........ 7.504 - - 7,504
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ... .... (10.603) (54,728) 1,291 (64,040}
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .......... 64 (7,487) (3,758} (11,181)
.......................................... - - {644) (644)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . .. ............ 15 18,387 7.757 26,159

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . ................... $ 79 $__ 10,900 $ 3355 $_ 14334




PIONEER NATURAL RESQOURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Cepitalized Costs
December 31,
2003 2002
(in thousands)

Qil and Gas Properties:
Proved
Unproved

$ 4,983,558
179,825

$ 4,252,897
219073

Capitalized costs for oil and gas properties
Less accurmulated depletion
Net capitalized costs for oil and gas properties

5,163,383

(1.676.136)
$_3,487.247

4,471,970

(1,303.541)
$_3.168,429

Costs Incurred for Ofl and Gas Producing Activities (a)

Property Total

Year Ended December 31, 2003:
United States
Argentina
Canada
Africa and other
Total costs incurred

Year Ended December 31, 2002:
United States
Argentina
Canada
Africa and other
Total costs incurred

Year Ended December 31, 2001:
United States
Argentina
Canada
Africa and other
Total costs incurred

Acguisition Cests

Proved

Unproved

Exploration
Costs

Development
Caosts

Costs
[meurred

$ 130,876
97
63

$ 12,264
1,787
5,028

910

$_131.036

$ 156,736
12
457

$_ 19,989

$ 34,048
51

2,329
1,843

$_157.205

$ 132,793
13,182

29

706

$_38271

$ 19,572
2,465

97

_1.960

$_146.710

$_24094

(im thousznds)

$ 191,809
24,893
24,899
33212

$ 228,064
25,361
23,040
20,697

$ 563,013
52,138
53,030
54,819

$ 274813

$ 72,831
14,530
9,992
34,125

$_297.162

$ 269,945
20,528
20,728
34,300

$_723.000

$ 533,560
35,121
33,506
70,268

$ 131,478

$_345,501

$ 129,639
36,237
12,707
41,446

$ 172,225
46,427
23,215
13,860

$_672.455

$ 454,229
98,311
36,048
57,972

$ 220,029

s 255727

$_646,560

(a) The Company has not included asset retirement obligation accruals in the costs incurred for oil and gas producing activities
presented in the table above. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2001, the Company accrued $46.7 million and $1.0
million of asset retirement obligations, respectively, associated with new wells and changes in estimates. The Company did not
accrue any increases to asset retirement obligations during the year ended December 31, 2002. See Notes B and L for additional
information regarding the Company's asset retirement obligations.




PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2632 and 2001

Results of Operations

Information about the Company's results of operations for oil and gas producing activities by geographic operating
segment is presented in Note R of the accompanying Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reserve Quantity Information

The estimates of the Company's proved oil and gas reserves as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, which are located
in the Urited States, Argentina, Canada, Gabon, South Africa and Tunisia, were based or evaluztions audited by
independent petroleum engineers with respect to the Company's major properties and prepared by the Company's engineers
with respect o all other properties. The estimates of the Company's proved cil and gas reserves as of December 31, 2001
were prepared by the Company's engineers, Reserves were estimated in accordance with guidelines established by the SEC
and the Financial Accounting Standards Board, which reguire that reserve estimates be prepared under existing economic
and operating conditions with no provision for price and cost escalations except by contractual arrangements. The reserve
estimates as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 utilize respective oil prices of $31.10, $29.67 and $18.88 per Bbl
(reflecting adjustments for cil quality), respective NGL prices of $20.26, $19.01 and $11.58 per Bbl, and respective gas
prices of $4.23, $3.37 and $2.21 per Mcf (reflecting adjustments for Btu content, gas processing and shrinkage).

01} and gas reserve quantity estimates are subject toc numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation of guantities
of proved reserves and in the projection of future rates of production and the timing of development expenditures. The
accuracy of such estimates is a function of the quality of available data and of engineering and geological interpretation and
judgment. Results of subseguent drilling, testing and production may cause either upward or downward revision of previous
estimates. Further, the volumes considered to be commercially recoverable fluctuate with changes in prices and operating
costs. The Company emphasizes that reserve estimates are inherently imprecise and that estimates of new discoveries are

more imprecise than those of currenily producing oil and gas properties. Accordingly, these estimates are expected to
change as additional information becomes available in the future.

The following table provides a rollforward of total proved reserves by geographic area and in total for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, as well as proved developed reserves by geographic area and in total as of the beginning
and end of each respective year:




PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended December 31, 2003; 2002 zand 2001

Oil and Gas Producing Actlvities:

2003 2002 2001
Qil an il
& NGLs Gas & NGLs Gas & NGLs Gas

Totak Proved Reserves: (MBbls) _ (MM MBOE  (MEBbIs) _(RMed) MBOE  (MEBbls) _(MMe) MBOE
UNITED STATES
Balance, January 1 ................ 337,631 1,483,971 584,960 279,146 1,474,090 524,829 266,802 1,354,327 492,523
Revisions of previous estimates . ... ... 36,823 94,759 52,616 61,529 5,983 62,525 1,179) 41,039 5,661
Purchases of minerals-in-place ....... 4,422 57,124 13,942 8,634 83,361 22,528 24,943 63,113 35,462
New discoveries and extensions ...... 250 80,769 13,712 4,364 5,349 5,255 4,442 93,220 19,979
Production....................... (16,375 (162,647) _(43,483) (16,042) (84,812) (30,177) (15.862) (77.609) (28,796
Balance, December 31 ............. 362,751 1,553,976 621,747 337,631 1,483,971 584,960 279,146 1,474,090 524,829
ARGENTINA
Balance, January 1 ................ 31,532 532,081 120,211 35,669 471,150 114,193 35,843 408,282 103,890
Revisions of previous estimates . . . . . . . 2,027 44,064 9,372 (4,954) 47,829 3,017 (932) 4,460 (189)
Purchases of minerals-in-place ....... - - - - - - 170 31,760 5,453
New discoveries and extensions . ..... 3,562 8,068 4,907 3,985 41,652 10,927 4,354 58,538 14,110
Production....................... (3,652) (34,357) (9,378) (3,168) (28,550) (7,926) (3,766) (31,830 (9,071
Balance, December 31 ............. 33,469 549,856 125,112 31,532 532,081 120,211 35,669 471,150 114,193
CANADA
Balance, January 1 ................ 2,361 119,328 22,249 2,659 132,061 24,669 4,066 132,919 26,219
Revisions of previous estimates . . . . . .. 344 (14,920) (2,143) 24 (1,150) (167) 212 15,067 2,723
New discoveries and extensions . .. ... 73 4,630 845 68 6,070 1,080 81 5,644 1,022
Production....................... (371) (15,209) (2,906) (390) (17,653) (3,333) (671) (18,426) (3,742)
Sales of minerals-in-place ........... - - - - - - (1,029 (3,143) (1,553)
Balance, December 31 ............. 2,407 93,829 18,045 2,361 119,328 22,249 2,659 132,061 24,669
AFRICA
Balance, January 1 ................ 9,320 - 9,320 7,685 - 7,685 5,552 - 5,552
Revisions of previous estimates . . . . . .. (1,817) - (1,817) 790 - 790 - - -
Purchases of minerals-in-place ....... - - - - - - 2,133 - 2,133
New discoveries and extensions ...... 17,374 - 17,374 845 - 845 - - -
Production....................... (723) - (723) - - - - - -
Balance, December 31 ............. 24,154 - 24,154 9,320 - 9,320 7,685 - 7,685
TOTAL
Balance, January 1 ........... ..... 380,844 2,135,380 736,740 325,159 2,077,301 671,376 312,263 1,895,528 628,184
Revisions of previous estimates (a) . . . . 37,377 123,903 58,028 57,389 52,662 66,165 (1,899} 60,566 8,195
Purchases of minerals-in-place . ...... 4,422 57,124 13,942 8,634 83,361 22,528 27,246 94,813 43,048
New discoveries and extensions ... ... 21,259 93,467 36,838 9,262 53,071 18,107 8,877 157,402 35,111
Production . . . .....ooveenerenei... (21,121)  (212,213)  (56,490)  (19,600) (131,015)  (41,436) (20,299}  (127,865)  (41,609)
Sales of minerals-in-place ........... - - - - - - (1,029 (3,143) (1,553
Balance, December 31 ............. 422.781 2,197,661 789,058 380,844 2,135,380 736,740 325,159 2,077,301 671,376
Proved Developed Reserves:

United States . .................. 209,948 1,067,701 387,899 196,893 1,027,750 368,184 206,922 1,081,592 387,188

Argentina ...................... 22,180 402,640 89,287 28,248 341,967 85,243 22,679 345,281 80,226

Canada ........................ 2,042 90,003 17,042 2,086 94.607 17,854 2,930 80,953 16,422

January 1 .......... ... ... 234,170 1,560,344 494,228 227,227 1,464,324 471,281 232,531 1,507.826 483,836

United States . .................. 209,349 1,202,264 409,727 209,948 1,067,701 387,899 196,893 1,027,750 368,184

Argentina ............. ... ... .. 21,149 352,660 79,926 22,180 402,640 89,287 28,248 341,967 85,243

Canada ........................ 2,312 86,500 16,728 2,042 90,003 17,042 2,086 94,607 17,854

Africa ... oLl 6,817 - 6,817 - - - - - -

December31 ................. 239,627 1,641424 513,198 234.170 1,560,344 494,228 227,227 1,464,324 471,281

(a) The revisions of previous estimates above, include revisions attributable to changes in commodity prices totaling a 3,429 MBOE increase, a 28,643
MBOE increase and a 24,970 MBOE decrease for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended Decembear 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Standardized Measure of Biscounted Future Net Cash Flows

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows is computed by applying year-end prices of oil and
gas (with consideration of price changes only to the extent provided by contractual arrangements) to the estimated future
preduction of proved oil and gas reserves less estimated future expenditures (based on year-end costs) to be incurred in
developing and producing the proved reserves, discounted using a rate of 10 percent per year to reflect the estimated
timing of the future cash flows. Future income taxes are calculated by comparing undiscounted future cash flows to the
tax basis of oil and gas properties plus available carryforwards and credits and applying the current tax rates io the
difference. The discounted future cash flow estimates do not include the effects of the Company's commodity hedging
contracts. Utilizing December 31, 2003 commodity prices held constant over each hedge contract's term, the net present
value of the Company's hedge contracts, less associated estimated income taxes and discounted at 10 percent, was 2
liability of approximately $191.0 million.

Discounted future cash flow estimates lile those shown below are not intended to represent estimates of the fair
value of oil and gas properties. Estimates of fair value should also consider probable reserves, anticipated future oil and
gas prices, interest rates, changes in development and production costs and risks associated with future production,
Because of these and other considerations, any estimate of fair value is necessarily subjective and imprecise.

The following tables provide the standardized measure of discounted future cash flows by geographic area and
in total for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, as well as a roliforward in total for each respective year:
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PIONEER NATURAL RESOURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

UNITED STATES
Gil and gas producing activities:
Future cashinflows .......... .o iiiiiiiiiiiiiian ..

Year Ended December 31,

2003

2002

2001

$18,239,318

(in thousands)

$ 15,161,717

$ 8,222,573

Future production COSES .. ... uvut i i (5,918,790) (4,830,294) (3,231,730)

Future development COStS ... ... oot i (1,188,394) (864,386) (735,984)

Future income tax EXPENSE . .« .ot vren e tine e (3.057.968) (2,325.946) (598,612)
8,074,166 7,141,091 3,656,247

10% annual discount factor ........... ... ... ... i, (4,276.678) (3.684.400) (1.691,118)

Standardized measure of discounted future cash flows .............

ARGENTINA
Qil and gas producing activities:

$_3,797.488

$_3,456,691

$_1.965,129

Future cashinflows ....... ..o, $ 1,257,068 $ 986,716 $ 1,070,664
Future production COStS . .. .....vrvet e e (233,399) (175,938) (227,435)
Future development costs ... .......... i, (136,663) (84,669) (144,604)
Future inCome tax EXPeNSE . . v .. vnvrenrenerenieanennn s (161,683) (143.845) {45.140)
725,323 582,264 653,485
10% annual discount factor ........... ... ... .. (282.205) _ (242.158) (262,334)
Standardized measure of discounted future cash flows ............. $__ 443,118 $__ 340,106 $__391.151
CANADA
Oil and gas producing activities:
Futurecashinflows ......... i $ 520,976 $ 502,260 $ 301,002
Future production COSIS .. oo vvi et et (91,675} (89,246) (73,601)
Future development Costs . . .. ..ot (11,551 (22,294) (27,050)
Future inCome tax €XPense . . ....oovreirnveeenrrerrnenneenns (72,895 (87.363) (10.771)
344,855 303,357 189,580
10% annual discount factor ........... ... ... .. ... ... _ (126,436) (104.345) (59.995)
Standardized measure of discounted future cash flows ............. $__ 218,419 $_ 199012 $__129.585
AFRICA
Cil and gas producing activities:
Future cash inflows . ... .ot e $ 713,459 $ 279,89 $ 149,777
Future production CostS ... ....oviir i (212,615) (95,216) (73,697)
Future developmentcosts . . ... i (261,413) (26,770) (54,281)
Future income tax eXPENSE - . ..o vt vrein i _ (17.062) (10.912) -
222,369 146,998 21,799
10% annual discount factor .......... ... .. ... ... .. i .., (98.141) (16,255) (7.338)
Standardized measure of discounted future cash flows ............. $ 124228 $_ 130,743 $ 14,461
TOTAL
Qil and gas producing activities:
Futurecashinflows ........... ... o i, $ 20,730,821 $ 16,930,589 $ 9,744,016
Future production costs . ............. ... i, (6,456,479) (5,190,694} (3,606,463)
Future developmentcosts{a) ..............oviiiiiiinnin, (1,598,021) (998,119) (961,919)
Future incCOome tax eXpense .. . ......convvetinneernnnenn... (3.309.608) (2,568.066) (654.523)
9,366,713 8,173,710 4,521,111
10% annual discount factor ....... ... ... ... (4,783.460) {4.047.158) (2,020.785)
Standardized measure of discounted future cash flows ............. $_4,583.253 $_4.126,552 $_2,500,326

(a) Includes $208.1 million of undiscounted future asset retirement expenditures estimated as of December 31, 2003 using current
estimates of future abandonment cests. See Notes B and L for corresponding information regarding the Company's discounted

asset retirement obligations.
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PIONEER NATURAL RESQURCES COMPANY

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Year Ended December 31
Ol and Gas Producing Activities 2003 2062 2881
(in thousands)

Qil and gas sales, net of production costs . ..........viininan $(1,136,520) $ (489,338) § (631,365)
Net changes in prices and preduction costs ....................... 670,165 2,042,575 (4,528,168)
Extensions and diSCOVETIES . . ..ot it ittt i v e e 413,777 152,253 184,454
Development costs incurred during the period . .................... 202,396 262,469 239,156
Sales of minerals-in-place ............... . i il - - (23,372)
Purchases of minerals-in-place . ........coovviiiiii i 198,442 187,460 201,535
Revisions of estimated future developmentcosts ................... (444,726) (387,404) (429,365)
Revisions of previous quantity estimates ......................... 458,468 527,987 40,771
Accretion of diSCOUNT . ... ..ottt e 514,608 250,033 701,943
Changes in production rates, timingand other ..................... (71,557) 99,722 {274.68%)
Change in present value of future net revenues .................... 805,053 2,645,757 (4,519,100)
Net change in present value of future income taxes ................. (348.352) (1.019.531) 1,373,924

456,701 1,626,226 (3,145,176)
Balance, beginningofyear ................ ... o e 4,126,552 2,500,326 5,645,502
Balance, end 0f Year ... ...t e $.4,583,253 $_4,126,552 $2,500.326

Selected Quarterly Financial Results
The following table provides selected quarterly financial results for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:
Quarter

First Second Third (2) Fourth
(in thousands, except per share data)

2003
Oiland gasrevenues . ..................v.n. $ 281,156 $ 339,954 $ 332,515 $ 345,022
Total revenues and other income ............. $ 285,295 $ 341,318 $ 332,909 $ 352,673
Total costs and expenses . ................... $ 214,184 $ 261,503 $ 240,991 $ 264,741
Net income:
Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle. . ............... $ 68,807 $ 77,185 $ 191,813 $ 57374
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, netofiax ................... 15413 - - -
Netincome .. ......ovviiiinaen.n $ 84220 $_77,185 $_191.813 $__ 57374
Net income per share: -
Basic:
Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle . . . .. ........... $ .59 $ .66 $ 1.64 $ 49
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, netoftax .................. 13 - - -
Netincome .. .......ooverinenaein, $ 72 $ .66 $ 1.64 $ 49
Diluted: -
Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle . . . ............. $ 58 $ .65 $ 1.62 $ 48
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, netoftax .................. 13 - - -
Netincome . ... . $ 71 $ .63 $ 1.62 $ .48
2002
QOiland gasrevenues .................c...... $ 165,539 $ 172,430 $ 168,317 $ 195,494
Total revenues and otherincome ............. $ 166,658 $ 174,338 $ 178,753 $ 197,685
Total costs and expenses .. .................. $ 169,027 $ 161,759 $ 177,454 $ 177,418
Netincome (10SS) ... ...vvviveiniinnna... $ (1,959) $ 11,142 $ (890) $ 18,420
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic .......... .. $ {.02) 3 .10 $ {.01) $ .16
Diluted ... $ (.02) $ .10 $ (01) $ 16

(a) The Company's third quarter results for 2003 include a $104.7 million adjustment to reduce United States deferred tax asset
valuation allowances. See Note P for additional information regarding income taxes.




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
PART I
ITEM 1¢. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required in response to this item is set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement for
the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 13, 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required in response to this item is set forth in the Company's definitive proxy staterment for
the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 13, 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required in response to this item is set forth in the Company's definitive proxy statement for
the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 13, 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K in response to this item is provided in "Item 5.
Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters". The information required by Item 403 of

Regulation S-K in response to this item is set forth in the Company's definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting
of stockholders to be held on May 13, 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required in response to this item is set forth in the Company's definitive proxystatement for
the annual meeting of stockholdess to be held on May 13, 2004 and is incorperated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXEIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPOCRTS ON FORM §-K

Listing of Financial Statements and Exkibits

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in “ltem 8. Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data":

Independent Auditors' Report
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Cperations for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 20C1
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years Ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited Supplementary Information

Reports on Form 8-K

During the three months ended December 31, 2003, the Company filed one Current Report on Form 8-K dated

October 30, 2003. The Company's October 30, 2003 Form 8-K provided, under [tems 7 and 12, the Company's news
release including attached schedules dated Cctober 30, 2003 that announced the Company's financial and cperating
results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2003, an operational update and the Company's fourth
quarter 2003 financial cutlock.

Exhibits

The exhibits to this Report required to be filed pursuant to [tem 15(c) are included in the Company's Form 10-K

filed with the SEC on February 3, 2004.

Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are required to be filed as part of this Report or they are inzpplicable.
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direct mailing list please contact:

Pioneer Natural Resources Company
Investor Relations

5205 N. O’Connor Blvd., Suite 900
Trving, TX 75039

(972) 969-3583

ir@pioneernrec.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS / WMEDIA CONTACT

Shareholders, portfolio managers, brokers and securities
analysts seeking information concerning Pioneer’s
operations or financial condition are encouraged to contact
Susan Spratlen, Vice President, Investor Relations and
Communication at (972) 444-9001.

SUBSIDIARIES

Pioneer Natural Resources Alaska, Inc.
Kenneth H. Sheffield, Jr., President
700 G Street, Suite 600

Anchorage, AKX 99501

Telephone: (907) 277-2700

Pioneer Natural Resources Canada Inc.
Todd A. Dillabough, President

2900, 255-5th Avenue S.W.

Calgary, AB T2P 3G6, Canada
Telephone: (403) 231-3100

Pioneer Natural Resources (Argentina) S.A.
Guimar J. Vaca Coca, President

Della Paolera 265, 24th Floor
C1001ADA-Buenos Aires, Argentina
Telephone: 5411 4312-9081

Pioneer Natural Resources South Africa
(PTY) Limited

Marek Ranoszek, General Manager
21st Floor, #1 Thibault Square

1 Long Street,

Cape Town 8001, RSA

Telephone: 27 21 425-5012

Pioneer Resources Gabon — Olowi Ltd.

Francklin Assoko-Mve, Resident Manager

Hotel Intercontinental Okoume Palace, Suite 315
BP 641

Libreville, Gabon, West Africa

Telephone: 241-734646

Pioneer Natural Resources Tunisia LTD
Hashim Alkhersan, Manager

La Residence Lakeo-3rd Floor

Rue Du Lac Michigan

Les Berges du Lac

1053 - Tunis, Tunisia

Telephone: 216-71-960 885




“The membsers of eur beard have always taken thelr responsibility to
sharehelders seriously, and they bring to the table knewledde and
experience that is beth broad and deep. We appreciate thelr willing-
ness to roll up thelr sleeves and join us In cur commitment to laying
out the rght course for Ploneer.”

EERIEND]

4 BOARD OF
DIRECTORS:

(PICTURED ABOVE, IN ORDER FROM
LEFT 7O RIGHT, TOP TO BOTTCM)

Scott D. Sheffield
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Charles £. Ramsey, . 1,34
Financial Consultant

James L. Houghton 2,4
Retired Senior Tax Partner
Ernst & Young, L.L.P

Jerry P. Jomes 2,4
Retired Shareholder and Of Counsel
Thompson & Knight, PC.

Edison C. Buchanan 3%
Former Managing Director
Credit Suisse First Boston

Robert A. Solberg 214
Retired Vice President
Texaco, Inc.

Linda K. Lawson 212
Former Vice President
Williams Companies

James R. Bzroffio 3:%
Former President
Chevron Canada Resources

R. Hartwell Gardner 2%
Retired Treasurer
Mobil Corporation

1) ead Director

2pudit Committee

3 Compensation Committee

4 Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee

Corporate Officers on page 9.
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